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HOLDINGS LIMITED
CORPORATE PROFILE: A WORLD CLASS
COMPANY IN THE OFFSHORE INDUSTRY

From the Group’s incorporation in 1996,
to the Group’s listing on the Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited on
November 8, 2006, Swiber remains dedicated
to building the Group into a leader in the
Offshore Oil & Gas Industry. Today, Swiber
has achieved an eminent position amongst
global offshore oil and gas industry players
and continues to set a blazing trail.
Swiber has an outstanding, extensive and
growing operating fleet of 53 vessels,
comprising 41 offshore vessels and 12
construction vessels, and more than
2,500 employees of over 40 different
nationalities in strategically located offices
in the region.

Renowned amongst the Group’s customers
for service that epitomises excellence, safety,
innovation and value, Swiber has won several
accolades. In September 2008, Swiber was
featured on Forbes Asia’s “Best under a Billion”
list, an honour given to the top 200 Asia-Pacific
companies with consistent growth in both
sales and profits over three years.
Swiber continues to ascend the ranks of the
nation’s “Top 100 Brands” in the Brand Finance’s
Annual Report, ranking as one of the nation’s
top 100 brands in the Brand Finance's Annual
Report of “Singapore’s Intangible Assets and
Brands” with the AA-Brand Rating consecutively
for 2010 and 2011. Swiber now has a brand
value of US$79 million as of 2011. This reaffirms
Swiber’s rapid growth as an EPIC player that is
well-positioned to capitalise on the upswings
of the offshore oil and gas sphere.
Swiber is synonymous with Excellence, Safety
and Value. Our steady commitment to the
core values of Trust, Respect, Affirmation,
Determination and Excellence will continue to
guide us as we position ourselves to capitalise
on the world’s growing energy demands.
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At the heartbeat of the vast Offshore Oil &
Gas Industry is Swiber Holdings Limited and
together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”),
a world class integrated construction and
support services provider that offers a wide
range of offshore Engineering, Procurement,
Installation and Construction (EPIC) services,
and marine support solutions across the
Asia Pacific and the Middle East.
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Exceeding the US$1 billion mark is a culmination
of our combined hard work and strong focus
to succeed. Swiber’s concerted efforts and
right moves made over the years are key
contributing factors to this achievement.

Strong order book
of over

Hitting this target is a major milestone in our
corporate history and it indeed inspires us to
intensify our efforts as we continue to expand
and penetrate existing markets and explore
more opportunities in new business areas.
This is just the beginning as we fortify our
position as a major player in the oil and gas
industry.

US$1
BILLION

Armed with the tenacity to deliver and a deep
commitment to excellence in quality and
service, Swiber is ready to break new barriers.

RIERS
Highest in
corporate history

4
Diverse talent
base of more than

Integrated business
units offering topnotch support
solutions to the offshore oil and
gas industry

2,500
40
Employees of over

nationalities
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Swiber’s success story is built upon the
dedication and determination of our team
of experienced professionals. We synergise
the best of skills, knowledge and equipment
with people of high Cause No Harm (CNH)
values and strong Emotional Excellence (EE)
mindset.

Our top-in-class workforce has demonstrated
an ability to service world class oil majors
with challenging offshore projects that require
precise execution and timely deliveries.
A t S w i b er, we are ever read y t o go
Beyond Boundaries.

Bounties
Q U A L I T Y, H E A LT H , S A F E T Y A N D
E N V I R O N M E N TA L ( Q H S E ) M A N A G E M E N T
Delivering consistent and superior quality
services as well as Health, Safety, and
Environmental performance is paramount
to Swiber’s aspiration in becoming
an integrated niche energy company.
Swiber’s QHSE management entails
the following:
•

•

Meeting or exceeding customers'
expectations by regularly collecting
and analysing customer feedback
Promoting continual improvement by
managing processes and resources
in a planned, efficient and controlled
manner

•

Continually improving the effectiveness
of the QHSE system by establishing
annual objectives

•

Ensuring that all employees and
subcontractors understand the
importance of their roles in contributing
to the success of QHSE performance

•

Providing frequent communication
of QHSE results and successful
milestones

•

Promoting the well being of all
employees, encouraging team spirit,
active participation and effective
communication throughout the
organisation

•

Contributing to the profitability of
the company through the Risk and
Opportunity Knowledge Management
System, collecting learning points and
sharing best practices

•

Regular reviews of the effectiveness
of the QHSE Management System
and company's QHSE Policies

•

Ensuring all business risks are
identified and controlled

•

Ensuring compliance with internal
QHSE processes and statutory
requirements

In order to deliver consistent superior
results, Swiber’s QHSE Management
System is certified to ISO 14001:2004
for environmental management, ISO
9001:2008 for quality management and
OHSAS 18001:2007 for occupational

health and safety management. In addition,
its modern marine fleet is certified to the
International Maritime Organisation’s
ISM Code and its construction and
diving divisions are certified contractor
members of the International Marine
Contractors Association (IMCA).
At the core of the QHSE management
system lies an unwavering commitment
to Cause No Harm, where every decision
and action taken by employees must
Cause No Harm to individuals; equipment,
materials and assets; the environment
and the planet; and future generations.
Cause No Harm is integral to, and
complements Swiber’s core TRADEmark
values of Trust, Respect, Affirmation,
Determination and Excellence.

Large fleet
size of

53

Vessels
41
Support
Vessels

12
Construction

Vessels

Swiber is driven to constantly push the
limit in enhancing our capabilities. With our
enlarged asset base, we will have greater
flexibility in resource planning and reduced
reliance on third party assets. Establishing
a critical mass, both in terms of vessel fleet
size as well as the range of support services,
is essential.
As we expand our presence in our existing
markets and make inroads into new ones,
our young and modern fleet will help to
strengthen our market share in the Southeast
Asia, South Asia and Middle East region.
We will continue to invest in our assets and
our people to grow our business in different
countries, building bounties to cushion
ourselves better amidst volatilities and for
greater growth.
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CORE BUSINESSES

Swiber offers a comprehensive suite
of services to support exploration,
field development and on to
production. Our operations span
four main business units: Swiber
Offshore Construction Services,
Newcruz Offshore Marine Services,
Kreuz Offshore Subsea Services and
Equatoriale Offshore Development
Services. The four business units
are highly complementary and
offer dynamic synergies in coming
together to present a solid value
proposition to our customers.

SWIBER OFFSHORE
CONSTRUCTION SERVICES
Swiber Offshore Construction Services
provides a full suite of services encompassing
Engineering, Procurement, Installation,
and Construction (EPIC). Our team of
highly experienced engineers and project
managers and our extensive fleet of
modern construction and support vessels
will deliver integrated and innovative
solutions to a wide and diverse range of
projects, even in the most challenging
offshore environments.

•
•
•
•
•
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•
•
•
•

Project management and engineering
Procurement services
Platform construction
Transportation and installation of fixed
offshore platforms
Transportation and installation of subsea
pipelines
Floating Production Systems (FPS)
Subsea field commissioning
FPSO, FSO, CALM Buoy
Mooring installation services

FY2011 HIGHLIGHTS

• Secured contracts totaling approximately
US$733 million to perform offshore
construction projects related to EPIC
and transportation of major pipelines,
platforms and trunklines for several
oil majors.
FY2012 OUTLOOK AND STRATEGY

• Strengthen our position as an
experienced and reputable offshore
service provider in Southeast Asia,
South Asia and Middle East
• Prudent in managing business operations
and cost efficiencies
• Continue with our key strategies of
maintaining a sizeable fleet in tandem
with our geographical expansion
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NEWCRUZ OFFSHORE
MARINE SERVICES

KREUZ OFFSHORE
SUBSEA SERVICES

EQUATORIALE OFFSHORE
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

Newcruz Offshore Marine Services
provides a full spread of services that
are highly complementary to our offshore
EPIC business. These services include
extensive offshore support services,
comprehensive yard facilities with
a growing capability for ship repair,
conversion and construction, and
a widening range of engineering
d e s i g n , f a b r i c a t i o n a n d o ff s h o re
engineering services.

Kreuz Offshore Subsea Services provides
subsea construction and installation
solutions as well as Inspection, Repair,
and Maintenance (IRM) to complement our
offshore EPIC services with a formidable
team of divers and ROV operators.

In addition to Swiber’s continued focus
on the offshore oil and gas sector, Swiber
is also exploring new offshore work
opportunities through Equatoriale Offshore
Development Services. Leveraging on its
extensive engineering expertise, offshore
EPIC services and its large and suitable
vessel fleet, Swiber is well-positioned
to provide:

Offshore marine transportation
Charter of offshore marine support vessels
Provision of diving support vessels
Shipyard facilities
Ship repair and maintenance services
Shipbuilding services
Conceptualisation and feasibility study
Mooring systems design
Basic and detailed engineering
Start up and commissioning
Operations and maintenance

FY2011 HIGHLIGHTS
• Took delivery of Swiber Lina, Swiber Anna
and Swiber Carina
• Long-term charter contract for AHT Swiber
Anna and AHTS Swiber Anne Christine
FY2012 OUTLOOK AND STRATEGY

• Active cost management by reducing use
of third party vessels
• Active delivery of new support vessels
• Actively penetrate the Americas and
Middle East markets

FY2011 HIGHLIGHTS

• Secured contracts totalling approximately
US$25 million with a $10 million option, for
subsea installation works
FY2012 OUTLOOK AND STRATEGY

• Maintain focus on providing subsea
construction and installation services
which support new offshore construction
and installation projects as well as IRM
services for existing facilities
• Continue to expand our range of subsea
services and invest in our operating
assets through the acquisition of new
operating assets, including ROV and air
diving systems
• Increase our penetration in the Southeast
Asia, South Asia and Middle East
subsea market

• Offshore wind farm engineering, transportation,
and installation services
• Wave Energy Convertor (WEC) engineering
and installation services
• Ocean Tide Energy Convertor (OTEC)
engineering and installation services
• Ocean Thermal Energy Convertor engineering
and installation services
FY2012 OUTLOOK AND STRATEGY

• Explore new opportunities, leveraging on
our extensive engineering expertise and
existing vessel fleet to provide offshore
wind farm installation services and wave
energy installation services, especially
in Europe where the main market is
experiencing rapid growth
• Develop the engineering capabilities with
research and development in Singapore
based on partnerships
• Develop efficient methods to install
offshore wind turbines safely and at
reduced cost
• Establish long term partnerships with the
major players in the renewable energy
sector in Europe
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•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

• Commercial saturation and air diving
services
• Underwater Inspection, Repair, and
Maintenance (IRM) of existing offshore oil
and gas field structures
• Subsea barge support diving and Remotely
Operated Vehicle (ROV) services
• Provision of turnkey subsea solutions
from Diving Support Vessels (DSV),
construction and IRM based projects
• Provision of vessels and subsea
inspection, construction and support
activities as a complete package on
turnkey or day rate basis
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SWIBER'S FLEET

From just 10 vessels in
2006, Swiber has expanded
dynamically to own and operate
a young fleet of 53 modern,
well-equipped vessels as
at March 2012, comprising
41 offshore support vessels
and 12 construction vessels
to strengthen our market
presence, reduce our reliance
and thus charter costs,
on third party vessels and
provide turnkey solutions to
our Clients’ needs.

FLEET FULFILLMENT PLAN UP TO 2013
– Current Fleet of 53 Vessels
– 56 Vessels by 2013
CONSTRUCTION VESSELS
Jack-up barge
Pipelay barge
Derrick pipelay barge
Derrick crane barge
Accommodation barge
Submersible barge
Dive support work barge
TOTAL
SUPPORT VESSELS
Cargo/ Flat top barge

FY07

FY08

FY09

FY10

FY11

1Q12

FY12F

FY13F

1
1
–
1
–
2
–
5

1
1
–
1
1
1
–
5

–
3
1
1
3
1
–
9

–
3
3
1
3
1
1
12

–
3
3
1
3
1
1
12

–
3
3
1
3
1
1
12

–
3
3
1
3
3
1
14

–
3
3
2
3
3
1
15

FY07

FY08

FY09

FY10

FY11

1Q12

FY12F

FY13F

10

11

17

16

12

12

12

12

Utility/ Towing tug

4

4

3

4

4

6

6

6

AHTS/ AHT

9

12

14

19

23

23

23

23

TOTAL

23

27

34

39

39

41

41

41

GRAND TOTAL

28

32

43

51

51

53

55

56

THE CONSTRUCTION FLEET
S/N
1

VESSEL NAME
Derrick Crane Barge

ACCOMMODATION / CRANE LIFTING CAPACITY

CLASS

YEAR BUILT

Magnificent

240 men / 3,000 T

ABS

2010

300 men / 1,100 MT

ABS

2009

Derrick Pipelay Barge
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2

Swiber Resolute

3

Swiber PJW3000

310 men / 3,000 T

ABS

2010

4

Aziz

300 men / 500 MT

ABS

2010

280 men / 420 T

BV

2007

Pipelay Barge
5

Swiber Conquest

6

Swiber Concorde

248 men / 450 T

ABS

2008

7

1MAS-300

300 men / 300 MT

ABS

2010

Dive Support Accommodation Work Barge
8

Swiber Victorious

300 men / 300 T

ABS

2009

9

Kreuz Glorious

286 men / 60 T

ABS

2006

10

Kreuz Supporter

120 men / 200 T

ABS

2006

VESSEL NAME

GRT/NRT TONNES

CLASS

YEAR BUILT

10,850 / 3,255 T

BV

2006

3,437 / 1,031 MT

ABS

2010

S/N

Submersible cum Launch Barge
11

Holmen Arctic
DP2 Diving Support Vessel

12

Swiber Atlantis (DP2)
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Magnificent

Swiber Resolute

Swiber PJW3000

Aziz

Swiber Conquest

Swiber Concorde

1MAS-300

Swiber Victorious

Kreuz Glorious

Kreuz Supporter

Holmen Arctic

Swiber Atlantis
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CONSTRUCTION VESSELS
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SWIBER'S FLEET

THE SUPPORT FLEET
S/N

VESSEL NAME

BHP/BP/GRT/NRT TONNES

CLASS

YEAR BUILT

Anchor Handling Tug
1

Swiber Explorer

4,000 BHP / 50T BP

BV

2007

2

Swiber Navigator

4,000 BHP / 50T BP

BV

2007

3

Vallianz Hope

4,200 BHP / 52T BP

BV

2008

4

Swiber Bhanwar

4,750 BHP / 58T BP

BV

2009

5

Swiber Singapore

4,750 BHP / 60T BP

BV

2007

6

Swiber Gallant

5,000 BHP / 60T BP

GL

2006

7

Swiber Valiant

5,000 BHP / 60T BP

GL

2006

8

Swiber Lina

5,150 BHP / 65T BP

ABS

2011

Anchor Handling Tug / Supply
9

Swiber Ada

5,000 BHP / 66T BP

BV

2008

10

Swiber Torunn

5,000 BHP / 68T BP

BV

2008

11

Swiber Sandefjord

5,000 BHP / 66T BP

BV

2009

12

Swiber Oslo

5,000 BHP / 68T BP

BV

2009

13

Swiwar Challenger

5,150 BHP / 68T BP

BV

2007

14

Swiwar Venturer

5,150 BHP / 63T BP

ABS

2007

15

Swiwar Victor

5,150 BHP / 63T BP

ABS

2007

16

Swiber Trader

6,000 BHP / 67T BP

DNV

1979

17

Swiber Else-Marie

10,800 BHP / 130T BP

ABS

2009

18

Swiber Anne-Christine

10,800 BHP / 136T BP

ABS

2009

19

Swiwar Surya

10,800 BHP / 135T BP

ABS

2010

20

Swiber Mary-Ann

10,800 BHP / 135T BP

ABS

2010

21

Swiber Anna

3,500 BHP / 43T BP

BV & BKI

2007

22

Rawabi 1

5,150 BHP / 60T BP

BV

2010

23

Rawabi 2

5,150 BHP / 60T BP

BV

2010

Towing Tug
24

Swiber Raven

3,200 BHP / 36T BP

GL

2009

25

Swiber Charlton

3,200 BHP / 42T BP

BV

2010
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Utility Vessel
26

Swiber Carina

2,400 BHP

NKK

2009

27

Swiber 99

2,500 BHP / 30T BP

BV & BKI

1998

28

Swiber Pearl

700 BHP / 10T BP

BV

1996

29

Swiber Peacock

700 BHP / 10T BP

BV

1996

Flat Top Cargo Barge
30

Swiber 123

270 T GRT / 81T NRT

BKI

2006

31

Swiber 255

2,294 T GRT / 689T NRT

GL

2006

32

Swiber 282

2,572 T GRT / 772T NRT

GL

2007

33

Kreuz 231

1,469 T GRT / 440T NRT

BV

2008

34

Kreuz 232

1,469 T GRT / 440T NRT

BV

2008

35

Kreuz 241

1,830 T GRT / 549T NRT

GL

2006

36

Kreuz 281

3,427 T GRT / 1,028T NRT

ABS

2008

37

Kreuz 282

3,427 T GRT / 1,028T NRT

ABS

2008

38

Kreuz 283

3,427 T GRT / 1,028T NRT

ABS

2008

39

Kreuz 284

3,427 T GRT / 1,028T NRT

ABS

2008

40

Newcruz 331

4,955 T GRT / 1,486T NRT

ABS

2011

41

Newcruz 332

4,955 T GRT / 1,486T NRT

ABS

2011
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VESSELS TO BE DELIVERED
S/N

VESSEL NAME

ACCOMMODATION / CRANE LIFTING CAPACITY

CLASS

YEAR TO BE DELIVERED

Derrick Crane/ Accommodation Work Barge		
1
S/N

Swiber Kaizen 4000

320 men / 3,800 T

BV

2013

VESSEL NAME

GRT/NRT TONNES

CLASS

YEAR TO BE DELIVERED

Submersible cum Launch Barge
2

Holmen Atlantic

13,500 / 4,050 MT

BV

2012

3

Holmen Pacific

26,000 / 7,800 MT

BV

2012

Swiber Valiant

Swiber Lina

Swiber Ada

Swiber Torunn

Swiber Oslo

Swiber Trader

Swiber Else-Marie

Swiber Anne-Christine

Swiwar Surya

Swiber Anna

Rawabi 1

Rawabi 2

Swiber Carina

Swiber Pearl

Swiber Peacock
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SUPPORT VESSELS
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STRONGER PRESENCE AND NETWORK
O U R L O C AT I O N S , PA R T N E R S H I P S
AND ALLIANCES

Our strategic cross-border presence
gives us the proximity necessary
to swiftly service our international
clientele and allows us to capitalise
on high-growth markets in and
b e y o n d t h e r e g i o n . We h a v e
also partnered with reputable
organisations to strengthen our
local networks and further solidify
our market position.

EUROPE

MIDDLE EAST
INDIA
MEXICO
WEST AFRICA

BRAZIL
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GEOGRAPHICAL PRESENCE
Headquartered in Singapore with offices
and joint ventures established in Brunei,
India, Indonesia, Malaysia and Middle East.
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CHINA

VIETNAM
MYANMAR
BRUNEI
SINGAPORE
INDONESIA

AUSTRALIA

Markets where Swiber has
offices/presence
Markets we are targetting
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MALAYSIA

CROSSING EACH MILESTONE
WITH CONFIDENCE

With solid growth strategies in
place, Swiber is well-positioned
to meet our targets, deliver
long-term growth and create
more milestones.

MAR 2011
• Secured contract worth US$34.0
million for transportation, installation
and subsea works
• Secured contract worth US$125.0
million for engineering, procurement,
laying of subsea pipelines and platform
modifications
• Secured charter contracts worth
US$27.0 million for AHTS, flat top
barges, construction barge, and other
services
MAY 2011
• Secured contracts worth US$109.0
million for execution of offshore
construction projects, chartering
o f o ff s h o re c o n s t r u c t i o n a n d
support vessels, and execution
of subsea and related projects in
Southeast Asia

AUG 2011
• Secured contracts worth US$82.0
million for pipeline installation works
• Secured contract worth US$30.0
million for platform installation works
• Secured contract worth US$25.0
million for subsea installation works

FEB 2012
• Secured contracts worth US$216.0
million for offshore construction
projects and vessel chartering, with
additional US$38.0 million for vessel
chartering services for the Middle East
joint venture

SEP 2011
• Secured contract worth US$155.0
million for EPIC pipeline project
• Secured contracts worth US$69.0
million for pipeline transportation and
installation, subsea installation and
chartering of marine vessels (including
extension options)
• Swiber's order book surges past
o n e b i l l i o n U S D , a re c o rd i n
corporate history

MAR 2012
• Secured charter contracts worth
US$36.0 million for vessel chartering
services in the Gulf of Mexico

OCT 2011
• Secured contracts worth US$102.0
million for pipeline and subsea
installation works

APR 2011
• Took delivery of 2,400 BHP Tonnes
Utility Vessel, Swiber Carina
MAY 2011
• Took delivery of 3,500 BHP / 43T BP
Anchor Handling Tug, Swiber Anna
JUL 2011
• Took delivery of 5,150 BHP / 65T BP
Anchor Handling Tug, Swiber Lina

JAN 2012
• Took delivery of 5,150 BHP / 60T BP
Tonnes Anchor Handling Tug Supply,
Rawabi 1
FEB 2012
• Took delivery of 700 BHP / 10T BT
Utility Vessel Swiber Pearl
• Took delivery of 700 BHP / 10T BT
Utility Vessel Swiber Peacock
• Took delivery of 5,150 BHP / 60T BP
Tonnes Anchor Handling Tug Supply,
Rawabi 2
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GROUP FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Gross Profit: FY2011

Revenue: FY2011

US$654.5M

Net Profit: FY2011

US$112.9M

40.5% increase from
US$465.7m in FY2010

US$42.2M

6.9% increase from
US$105.6m in FY 2010

7.1% increase from
US$39.4m in FY2010

Revenue

Gross Profit

Net Profit

(US$’m)

(US$’m)

(US$’m)

654.5

151.2=
428.4=
393.4=
465.7=
654.5=

105.6

428.4 393.4 465.7

42.8

112.9

49.7

FY11

FY07

39.5 39.0 39.4 42.2

64.3 56.3

151.2

FY07

FY08

FY09

FY10

FY11

FY07

FY08

FY09

FY10

FY08

FY09

FY11

FY10

SEGMENT REVIEW
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499.5
Revenue
(US$’m)

372.1
291.3

117.1

253.0
111.6

91.9
22.4

11.7

FY07
Swiber Offshore Construction Services

5.5 39.7
FY08

14.6 14.2
FY09

Newcruz Offshore Marine Services

73.0

91.6
18.0 2.6

FY10
Kreuz Offshore Subsea Services

52.9
FY11
Others

10.6

IN T H E BI G L E A G UE

Net Debt/Equity (times):
FY2011

US$116.5M

EPS (US cents): FY2011

6.3 US
CENTS

0.88

15.5% decrease from
US$137.8m in FY2010

14.6% decrease from
1.03 in FY2010

14.9% decrease from
7.4 US cents in FY2010

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Net Debt/Equity

EPS

(US$’m)

(US$’m)

(US$’cents)

97.7

137.8
74.7 83.2

1.03

1.03

116.5

0.86

0.88

12.6
9.2

7.4

7.4

FY09

FY10

0.53

FY07

FY08

FY09

FY10

FY11

FY07

FY08

FY09

FY10

FY11

FY07

FY08

6.3

FY11

S W IB E R H OL D ING S L IMIT ED A N N UA L R EP ORT 2011

Cash and Cash Equivalents:
FY2011
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We secured contract
wins amounting to
US$758.0 million in
FY2011, with our order
book escalating to
a record of over
US$1.0 billion,
the highest in our
corporate history.
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MESSAGE FROM THE
EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,
On behalf of the Board and
Management, I am pleased to
present Swiber’s Annual Report
for the financial year ended 31
December 2011 (“FY2011”).

With our expanded capabilities and
established networks in strategic locations
such as South Asia, South East Asia,
East Asia and the Middle East, Swiber
was able to swiftly capitalise on the
opportunities arising from the strong
increase in momentum of the offshore
industry.
Indeed, we are proud to have continued
to break new frontiers in FY2011 – hitting
new records in terms of revenue, order
book and size of contracts, as well as
new markets and new customers. We
secured contract wins amounting to
US$758.0 million in FY2011, with our
order book escalating to a record of
over US$1.0 billion, the highest in our
corporate history.
On the back of record revenue which
climbed 40.5% to reach US$654.5
million, we achieved a 7.1% increase
i n n e t p ro f i t t o U S $ 4 2 . 2 m i l l i o n
in FY2011.

DELIVERING ON
EXPANSION PLANS
In line with our business expansion plans,
we acquired the office building at 12
International Business Park, Singapore.

On the back of record revenue which
climbed 40.5% to reach US$654.5 million,
we achieved a 7.1% increase in net
profit to US$42.2 million in FY2011.
We also took delivery of three support
vessels in FY2011, closing the year with
a fleet size of 51 vessels. As at March
2012, our fleet size has increased to 53
vessels. With our vessel fleet plan largely
in place, our position in bidding for major
contracts is further enhanced.
Indeed, with the strengthening of our
assets and resources, we have grown
from strength to strength, handling
larger and more complex projects
over the past few years. With our focus
on consistent excellent service, efficiency,
commitment to safety and timely deliveries,
we have seen repeat business from
existing oil majors whilst acquiring new
world class players in both existing and
new markets – notably, we’ve made
further breakthroughs into the vast Middle
Eastern market and entered the offshore
construction work in the Gulf of Mexico.

CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT
Swiber has adopted the Kaizen management
philosophy to further strengthen the
company, preserving the value of its
services with less work and waste,
through “lean” management. The Kaizen
management philosophy is inspired from

the success of a multinational Japanese
automaker, whose production system is
renowned for its focus on reduction to
improve overall customer value.
Last May 2011, we launched our
Continuous Swiber Improvement (CSI)
programme which signified the start of
our journey towards lean management.
I can only foresee positive changes in our
operations as we continue to eliminate
waste and streamline our processes.
We remain committed to the essence of
CSI – which is to continuously improve.
As we are starting to see the physical
changes in our workplaces through the
efforts, we know that this is just the
beginning of a journey towards operational
excellence. Going “lean” provides us
with the foundation that will prepare us
to further improve on our work processes
to give us the competitive advantage.
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During the year under review, the oil
and gas industry resumed their capex
investment after the previous year’s financial
crisis, in response to increasing appetite
for energy in developing economies.
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BRIGHT OUTLOOK IN OIL AND
GAS INDUSTRY
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Looking ahead, according to International
Energy Agency, oil demand is expected to
rise to 90.3 million barrels a day in 2012
and 99 million barrels a day by 2035 as
countries such as China and India have
an interest in fulfilling as much domestic
demand as possible, so as to boost
energy security.
Global offshore oil production has been
forecasted by Douglas Westwood to grow
steadily to reach 34.3 million bpd in 2015.
There is also the constant need for repair
and maintenance of oil field infrastructure
to ensure smooth production from the oil
wells. The growth in offshore production
is expected to drive global operation
expenditure to US$180 billion in 2015
and offshore capital expenditure to grow
to above US$160 billion by 2015.
With oil prices forecasted to sustain at
close to US$120 per barrel in 2012, the
demand for offshore EPIC and support
services should remain robust.

With these positive macro developments,
we expect that structural growth in
demand for energy in Asia and Middle
East, our key markets, will catalytically
lead to increased capex expenditure in
the next two years, providing a boost
to offshore construction activities. We
are also encouraged by two recent high
profile consolidations in Malaysia and the
US in the offshore construction industry.
These consolidations set the valuation
of international offshore construction
companies like Swiber and provide
a good benchmark for the rest of the
industry players.
Our strategy of providing a full suite of
integrated services is gaining traction, and
we will continue to press on in expanding
our capabilities to further entrench our
leading position in this sector and to
capture opportunities open to us from
these exciting industry developments.

Our strategy of
providing a full
suite of integrated
services is gaining
traction, and we will
continue to press
on in expanding
our capabilities to
further entrench our
leading position in
this sector.

IN T H E BI G L E A G UE

Through the years, Swiber’s CSR
initiatives have evolved from corporateinitiated activities to employee-initiated
efforts. The commitment to serve and
to help those in need have been deeply
ingrained within the organization, from
its senior management to the staff level
– both onshore and offshore.

Swiber will
continue to be
good stewards of
our resources and
talents, making a
positive difference
within our spheres
of influence.

Swiber embarked on projects together
with various organizations such as Gawad
Kalinga (Philippines), Tomorrow’s Hope
(Indonesia) and Phoenix Association
(Myanmar) to build homes for displaced
families and set up scholarships for
orphaned children and students with HIV,
respectively. To date, there are now 22
homes that have been completed and
34 full-time scholars.
Swiber volunteers worked alongside
community members for a Weekend Build
last October; and in December, the new
homes were turned over to the families.
The Swiber GK Village is an ongoing
project and Swiber is grateful that this
initial seed of giving has inspired some
of its partners to support the endeavor
by committing to share in the funding of
more homes.
Volunteerism was at its peak in 2011
when employees responded to the call
to make giving as creative and engaging
as possible through the “Swiber Gives
Back” programme. The different business
units, overseas offices and associate
companies got into the thick of giving
and devised activities to raise funds that
will in turn enable them to support the
institutions and causes that they have
chosen to be involved in. As varied as the
groups that participated, there was also a
variety of recipients that benefited: elderly
communities, needy families, abused girls
(Singapore) orphans and a critically-sick
baby (Indonesia), mentally-challenged
children (India), a hit and run victim
(UAE), physically handicapped children
(Brunei) among others. The amazing
aspect through all these experiences
was the lasting relationships that were

established between the employees and
the beneficiaries. This collective giving has
turned into a unifying force for Swiber.
Last year as well, saw the successful
completion of the Swiber 7 Summits
partnership with renowned mountain
climber Ms. Jane Lee. While this incredible
feat afforded Jane the personal distinction
to be the first female from Southeast Asia
to reach the peaks of the World’s Seven
Summits, it was also an achievement
for Singapore – and we are privileged to
be a part of it.

THANKSGIVING
For our ongoing and successful expansion,
strategic partnerships built and networks
established, as well as a strong and
experienced leadership steering Swiber
forward, Swiber has been recognised
as being amongst Singapore’s top 100
brands in Brand Finance’s “Brand Strength
Index”, for three consecutive years.
The achievements in 2011 would not have
been possible without our stakeholder’s
support and faith in Swiber. I would
hence take this opportunity to express
my appreciation firstly to our Board of
Directors for your counsel which stems
out of years of experience. To our
Senior Management and members of
Team Swiber, thank you for your spirit
of excellence and unending dedication
towards the success of the Group. To
our business partners and clients, for
your faithful partnership and trust. Last
but not least, our shareholders for your
unwavering support, for which we are
very grateful.
I also want to give the highest glory to God
for his grace and favour upon Swiber and
me personally. He has been our source
of strength and courage. Through Him,
we have been tremendously blessed.

RAYMOND KIM GOH
Executive Chairman
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GIVING BACK
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The Group's
net asset value
rose to 71.1 US cents
as at 31 December 2011,
from 64.4 US cents in
the same corresponding
period in FY2010.
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DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

FY2011 – A RECORD-BREAKING
YEAR FOR THE GROUP
In line with the rise in revenue, gross
profit increased 6.9% to US$112.9
million, up from US$105.6 million in
FY2010. In line with our expectations,
our gross profit margin stood at 17.3%.
Administration expenses on the other
hand rose 32.2% to US$58.5 million in
FY2011 from US$44.3 million in FY2010
mainly due to depreciation of office
building which we acquired in 1Q2011
as well as costs associated with our
business expansion. The Group’s staff
headcount grew, leading to an increase in
professional fees and staff related costs.
Other operating expenses decreased
98.0% from US$39.0 million to US$787,000
due mainly to the changes in fair value
of financial derivative embedded in the

Swiber maintained a
strong balance sheet with
a healthy cash position of
US$116.5 million.
US$ million

FY2011

FY2010

Revenue

654.5

465.7

Gross profit

Change (%)
40.5

112.9

105.6

6.9

Profit before tax

69.4

46.2

50.4

Net profit

42.2

39.4

7.1

6.3

7.4

- 14.9

71.1

64.4

10.4

EPS (US cents)
NAV per share (US cents)

Convertible Bonds of US$9.3 million,
allowance for doubtful debts of US$10.1
million and higher foreign exchange losses
of US$17.1 million recorded in FY2010.
Finance costs rose 8.4% from US$20.7
million in FY2010 to US$22.4 million in
FY2011 due to higher bank borrowing
and higher principal amount and interest
rate of the multicurrency medium term
notes series 7, series 8 and series 9 issued
in quarter 3 of 2010, quarter 4 of 2010
and quarter 1 of 2011, respectively. The
increase associated with series 7, 8 and 9
was however offset by the redemption of
series 1 and 2 in third quarter 2010, and
series 3 and series 4 in first quarter 2011.
Share of profit from associates and joint
ventures declined 34.7% from US$3.8
million to US$2.5 million as the Group
incurred operating costs from some
joint ventures.

Correspondingly, our earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation (EBITDA) rose 38.5% from
US$81.3 million in FY2010 to US$112.6
million in FY2011. Profit before tax
surged 50.4% to US$69.4 million whilst
net profit grew 7.1% to US$42.2 million
in FY2011.

OUR STRONG BALANCE SHEET
Swiber maintained a strong balance
sheet with a healthy cash position of
US$116.5 million. Net debt to equity
stood at 0.88 times as at December 31,
2011 as compared to 1.03 times as at
December 31, 2010.
The Group’s basic earnings per share for
FY2011 were 6.3 US cents as compared
to 7.4 cents in FY2010. Net asset value
rose to 71.1 US cents as at December
31, 2011, from 64.4 US cents in the same
corresponding period in FY2010.
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On behalf of the Board and
Management, I am pleased
to present Swiber’s FY2011
performance. During the year
under review, Group revenue
increased 40.5% to an all-time
high of US$654.5 million for
FY2011 from US$465.7 million
in FY2010. The Group’s turnover
was driven by progressive
revenue recognition from various
contracts that are concentrated
in Southeast Asia and South
Asia, awarded to the Group in
the last two years. This recordbreaking performance in our
topline reflects the payoffs
arising from a successful
delivery of our capabilities
and geographical expansion
strategies.
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Revenue

Gross Profit

Net Profit

(US$’m)

(US$’m)

(US$’m)

151.2=
428.4=
393.4=
465.7=
654.5=

654.5
428.4 393.4 465.7

105.6
42.8

112.9

49.7

FY11

FY07

39.5 39.0 39.4 42.2

64.3 56.3

151.2
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FY07

FY08

FY09

FY10

FY11

With strengthened
capabilities to
provide a wide
range of solutions
to customers in
different markets,
we are ready
to expand our
geographical
footprint globally to
markets including
China, Australia,
Middle East, West
and East Africa,
North and South
America, and
Europe.

FY07

FY08

FY09

FY10

RENEWING OUR YOUNG AND
MODERN FLEET
Over the course of FY2011, we took
delivery of three support vessels which
includes Swiber Lina, a 5,150 BHP / 65T
BP Anchor Handling Tug; Swiber Anna,
a 3,500 BHP / 43T BP Anchor Handling
Tug; and Swiber Carina, a 2,400 BHP
Utility Vessel.
For the first quarter of 2012, we took
delivery of two 700 BHP / 10T BP Utility
Vessels, Swiber Pearl and Swiber Peacock
and two 5,150 BHP / 60T BP Anchor
Handling Tug Supply Vessels, Rawabi 1
and Rawabi 2, both of which will be under
long-term charter. We are at the tail-end
of our vessel expansion blueprint. With
most of our vessels in place to support
our increasing orderbook, we will continue
to seek to improve utilisation rates by
increasing our geographical coverage
and reducing our reliance on third party
vessels and sub-contract work.

FY08

FY09

FY10

FY11

OUR GROWING BUSINESS
Our Offshore Construction Services
Division remains the core contributor
for the Group, accounting for 76.3%
of FY2011 revenue, slightly lower than
79.9% in FY2010. Our Offshore Subsea
Services Division’s share of revenue in
FY2011 was 14.0%, as compared to
3.9% in FY2010. These two divisions
are our two main business segments
and accounted for over 90% of revenue
in FY2011. They will continue to be our
main revenue contributors.

OUR REGIONAL FOOTPRINT
In FY2011, Southeast Asia and South
Asia were the Group’s key markets,
contributing to 87.0% of the Group’s
revenue. We were able to achieve a more
stable revenue inflow, as Swiber delivered
projects according to the different work
seasons in different markets.

Business Segment

FY 2009
(US$000)

FY 2010
(US$000)

FY 2011
(US$000)

Swiber Offshore Construction Services

253,002

372,089

499,526

14,621

18,068

91,566

111,623

72,978

52,870

Kreuz Offshore Support Services
Newcruz Offshore Marine Services
Others
Total

14,184

2,608

10,525

393,430

465,743

654,487

IN T H E BI G L E A G UE

The Group will
remain prudent
in managing
our operations,
maximising cost
efficiencies to
provide value
added solutions to
our customers.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
(US$’m)

FY07

74.7 83.2

FY08

FY09

FY10

116.5

in the Middle East signals a breakthrough
into the Middle East market. In swift
succession, we secured a string of vessel
chartering contracts from oil majors in
the Gulf of Mexico and Southeast Asia,
worth approximately US$36.0 million.

FY11

With strengthened capabilities to provide
a wide range of solutions to customers in
different markets, we are ready to expand
our geographical footprint globally to
markets including China, Australia, Middle
East, West and East Africa, North and
South America and Europe.

OUR CONTRACT WINS
IN FY2011
The Group was awarded a steady stream
of contracts in FY2011, totaling US$758.0
million.
The winning season opened with the
awarding of a US$34.0 million contract
for transportation, installation, and subsea
works and a US$125.0 million contract for
engineering, procurement, laying of subsea
pipelines and platform modifications, on
March 10, 2011. Also in the same month,
the Group was awarded charter contracts
for AHTS, flat top barges, construction
barge, and other services in Southeast
Asia which amounted to US$27.0 million
on March 22.
In May, Swiber secured contracts totaling
US$109.0 million for execution of offshore
construction projects, chartering of offshore
construction and support vessels and
execution of subsea and related projects
in Southeast Asia.

In August, we clinched a series of
contracts totaling US$82.0 million for
pipeline installation works from three oil
majors from Southeast Asia, a US$30.0
million contract for platform installation
works from an oil major in South Asia,
and a US$25.0 million contract for
subsea services from an oil major in the
Middle East.
In September, we won a US$155.0
million EPIC pipeline project from an
oil major in South Asia and US$69.0
million worth of contracts for pipeline
transportation and installation,
subsea services and chartering
of marine vessels (including extension
options) from various leading offshore
construction companies and oil majors.
Finally in October, Swiber clinched an
EPIC pipeline project worth US$102.0
million from an oil major in Southeast
Asia, bringing the Group’s order book
to tip over US$1.0 billion, the highest in
our corporate history.
Order momentum has picked up again as
we entered into 2012. This year, we have
started strong, securing contract wins
worth US$216.0 million with additional
US$38.0 million awarded to our JV in the
Middle East. The contract win by our JV

OUR WAY AHEAD
Swiber is now in the big league and en
route to being an integrated niche energy
company by 2015. As we continue with
our key strategies of maintaining a
sizeable, modern fleet in tandem with
our geographical expansion, the Group
will remain focused on providing a
comprehensive suite of services. We will
expand our markets globally, tapping on
our strategic alliances with our partners
and leveraging on the strengths of their
local networks.
The fundamentals of the offshore oil and
gas industry remain sound. Increasing
activities in the oil and gas sector will be
supported by sustained high oil prices. Our
Group’s strong order book gives strong
earnings visibility for the next two years.
At the same time, the Group will remain
prudent in managing our operations,
maximising cost efficiencies to provide
value added solutions to our customers.
We have a positive outlook on the future
and are confident of delivering positive
results to our stakeholders.

FRANCIS WONG

Group Chief Executive Officer and
President
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97.7

137.8
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

RAYMOND KIM GOH

FRANCIS WONG

JEAN PERS

DARREN YEO

Executive Chairman

Executive Director and
Group CEO

Executive Director

Executive Director

Mr. Raymond Goh founded the Swiber
Group in 1996 and was appointed to
the Board on November 2004. As the
Executive Chairman, Mr. Goh is the key
figure in leading Swiber’s overall business,
operations and marketing aspects in the
region. He sets the long-term growth
strategy and spearheads growth initiatives
to expand the Group’s resources, develop
new markets and invest in new vessel
designs and technology. Being an industry
veteran with close to two decades of
experience, Mr. Goh is currently also
the Non-Executive Chairman of Vallianz
Holdings Limited and Kreuz Holdings
Limited. At the same time, Mr. Goh is
active in grassroot community activities,
serving as a patron of the Punggol North
Citizen’s Consultative Committee. Mr.
Goh graduated from Murdoch University
in Australia with a Bachelor of Commerce
(Honours) degree.

Mr. Francis Wong joined Swiber in
2005 and was appointed to the Board
in November 2005. As Swiber’s Group
CEO and President, Mr. Wong has been
charting Swiber's corporate and strategic
directions as well as steering its operations.
With his strong financial background, Mr.
Wong has put in place strong financial
controls for the Group to support its rapid
expansion regionally and globally, and

into new business operations. In support
of the Group’s investments, he also sits
on the Board of Kreuz Holdings Limited
as a Non-Executive Director. Active in his
professional field, Mr. Wong is a fellow
member of the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators and a
fellow certified practicing accountant
of CPA Australia. He is also a chartered
accountant certified by the Malaysian
Institute of Accountants and the New
Zealand Institute of Chartered Accountants.
Mr. Wong holds a Bachelor of Commerce
degree from Australia's Deakin University
in 1988 and a Master of Commerce
in Accounting from the University of
Auckland in 1990.

Mr. Jean Pers joined Swiber in 2002
to develop the offshore EPIC business,
and was appointed to the Board of
Directors in 2005. Mr. Pers is currently
the President and CEO of Equatoriale
Offshore Development Services. He
brings with him close to 35 years of
engineering and operational experience
in the offshore EPIC business, He had
an illustrious career in the industry,
previously heading the Marine Department
at IKL Indonesia and being advisor to
Voies Navigables de France and the
Navigation Authority, which controls most
of French navigable rivers and canals.

Mr. Pers graduated from Ecole Nationale
Ingenieurs in France in 1974 with an
Engineer diploma. Since 1988, Mr. Pers
has been a member of CNEDIES Centre
National des Experts, an organisation
that provides expertise to analyse the
causes of industrial accidents.

Mr. Darren Yeo joined the Group in
2003 and was appointed to the Board in
November 2004. Mr. Yeo is currently the
President and CEO of Newcruz Offshore
Marine Services and is responsible for
the management and development of
the Group's offshore marine support
business operations. He brings with him
over 2 decades of industry experience
under his belt. He is also an Alternate
Director to Mr. Francis Wong for Kreuz
Holdings Limited. Mr. Yeo graduated
from the National University of Singapore
in 1993 with a Bachelor of Engineering
degree. He later obtained a diploma in
Marketing from the Singapore Institute
of Management in 1995.
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NITISH GUPTA

YEO JEU NAM

OON THIAN SENG

CHIA FOOK ENG

Executive Director

Lead Independent Director

Independent Director

Independent Director

Mr. Yeo Jeu Nam, who has more than
30 years of consultancy experience, was
appointed to the Board of Directors in 2006.
Mr. Yeo is also an Independent Director
of EDMI Limited, an Independent NonExecutive Director of Vallianz Holdings
Limited and Frencken Group Limited.
Before founding Radiance Consulting, of
which Mr. Yeo is currently its Managing
Director, he was a Senior Consulting
Partner with Ernst & Young Consultants
Pte. Ltd. where he headed the Strategy
and Transformation practice as well as
the HR Consulting practice for more
than 12 years. He was also previously
a Director at PwC Consulting where he
headed their Public Sector Consulting
practice. He graduated from the National
University of Singapore with a Bachelor

of Arts and a Bachelor of Social Sciences
(Class II Upper, Honours).

Mr. Oon Thian Seng is an advocate
and solicitor, being one of the founding
partners of TS Oon & Bazul, Singapore
and sole proprietor of Oon & Partners
LLP, Malaysia. He was appointed to the
Board of Directors of Swiber in 2006.
Mr. Oon holds a Bachelor of Laws (Honours)
degree from the University of Warwick
and a Master of Laws from the London
School of Economics, University of London
in England. Mr. Oon was admitted to the
Bar of England and Wales in 1991 and as
an Advocate and Solicitor of the Supreme
Court of Singapore in 1993 and the High
Court of Malaya in 2001.

Mr. Chia Fook Eng was appointed as
an Independent Director on Swiber’s
Board of Directors in 2009. Prior to his
appointment, Mr. Chia served as an Advisor
to Swiber’s Board of Directors on matters
relating to the Group’s business. Mr. Chia
comes from a strong marine engineering
background, bringing with him almost
40 years of management experience in
the marine and the oil and gas industry,
working for established engineering and
construction companies in Singapore and
the Asia Pacific region.
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Mr. Nitish Gupta joined Swiber in 2006 as
the Executive Vice President of the Offshore
Construction Services Division and was
appointed Chief Executive Officer of the unit
in 2008. In March 2009, he was appointed
to the Board of Directors. Having worked
for a number of established offshore oil
and gas construction companies since
1992, Mr. Gupta has extensive industry
experience in India, Southeast Asia and
the Middle East. Mr. Gupta graduated
from Delhi College of Engineering, Delhi
University in India with a Bachelor in Civil
Engineering (Honours).
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S W I B E R C O R P O R AT E
MANAGEMENT TEAM

FRANCIS WONG

LEONARD TAY

DEEPAK KINGSLEY

Group CEO and President

VP and Group CFO

VP and General Counsel

Mr. Francis Wong joined Swiber in
2005 and was appointed to the Board
in November 2005. As Swiber’s Group
CEO and President, Mr. Wong has
been charting Swiber's corporate and
strategic directions as well as steering
its operations. With his strong financial
background, Mr. Wong has put in
place strong financial controls for the
Group to support its rapid regional
and global expansion, and into new
business operations. In support of the
Group’s investments, he also sits on
the Board of Kreuz Holdings Limited as
a Non-Executive Director. Active in his
professional field, Mr. Wong is a fellow
member of the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators and a
fellow certified practicing accountant
of CPA Australia. He is also a chartered
accountant certified by the Malaysian
Institute of Accountants and the
New Zealand Institute of Chartered
Accountants. Mr. Wong holds a Bachelor
of Commerce degree from Australia's
Deakin University in 1988 and a Master
of Commerce in Accounting from the
University of Auckland in 1990.

Mr. Leonard Tay who was an Independent
Director and Audit Committee Chairman
on the Board of Swiber since 2006 took
on the role of Vice President and Group
CFO in 2009. Mr. Tay is deeply involved in
the strategic planning and management
of the Group's financial directives and
fiscal policies. Mr. Tay has over a decade
of financial management experience
under his belt. Prior to his appointment
to the Swiber Board in 2006, he was an
Executive Director and Chief Financial
Officer of Altitude Trust Management
Pte. Ltd., the trustee manager of Altitude
Aircraft Leasing Trust. He has also spent
nine years in public accounting with the
Big Four accounting firms. Mr. Tay holds
a Bachelor's degree in Business from
Monash University and is a member of the
Institute of Certified Public Accountants
of Singapore, CPA Australia and the
Singapore Institute of Directors.

Mr. Deepak Kingsley joined Swiber in
2008 as the General Counsel. In the role,
Mr. Kingsley oversees the Group's legal
affairs and advises the Chairman and the
management on such matters. Prior to
joining Swiber, Mr. Kingsley was heading
the Legal Department of Nippon Steel
Engineering Co. Ltd. covering Southeast
Asia. Mr. Kingsley has over 20 years
of legal experience and has headed
legal departments and has served as
counsel to other large construction and
engineering companies. Mr. Kingsley
is a qualified Advocate in India and a
Solicitor in Hong Kong. Mr. Kingsley
holds a Bachelor of Laws degree and
a Bachelor of Commerce degree from
University of Madras.

JOHN SWINDEN

ALBERT LIM

DR. GANESH SHASTRI

Chairman of Advisory Board,
Business Development

VP Human Resource, IT,
and Administration

HSE Director

Mr. John F. Swinden joined Swiber in
July 2011 as Chairman to Advisory Board,
Business Development. Mr. Swinden has
close to 40 years of leadership and industry
experience prior to his service with Swiber.
He had previously co-founded Cal Dive
International, which is now known as
Helix and served in senior key positions
at J. Ray McDermott, Oceaneering
International Inc. and Horizon Offshore
Contractors. He was also President and a
co-founder of Maritime Offshore, a marine
construction company that is based in
Houston, Texas. Mr. Swinden attended
St. Mary's College in England and the
British Naval Diving School.

Mr. Albert Lim was appointed as VP for
Human Resources, IT and Administration
in January 2011. Prior to his appointment
in the Swiber Group, he has held various
management roles in the financial services
industry in Australia. Mr. Lim holds a
Bachelor’s degree in Acturial Science
from the City University in London.

Dr. Ganesh Shastri joined Swiber
in 2007 as a HSE Training Manager
and was appointed as HSE Director
in 2010. As the leading force behind
Swiber’s Health, Safety & Environment
initiatives, Dr. Ganesh was heavily
involved in developing Swiber’s current
HSE management system and has also
been key in improving the HSE culture
within Swiber, driving home the message
of Cause No Harm. Furthermore, Swiber’s
successful Behavioural Based Safety
Initiative (BBSI) was the brainchild of Dr.
Ganesh. He has had over 15 years of
experience in HSE in offshore drilling and
construction industries. Dr. Ganesh holds
a Bachelor Degree in Ayurvedic Medicine
and Surgery from Pune University, Diploma
in Industrial Safety from NACOLAM and is
currently undergoing his Master of Science
in Environment and Ecology at the Indian
Institute of Ecology and Environment.
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SWIBER OFFSHORE
CONSTRUCTION SERVICES
MANAGEMENT TEAM

NITISH GUPTA

SANJAY ANAND

STEPHEN CHURCH

CEO

COO

VP Fleet Management and
Yard Services

Mr. Nitish Gupta joined Swiber in 2006 as
the Executive Vice President of the Offshore
Construction Services Division and was
appointed Chief Executive Officer of the unit
in 2008. He was appointed to the Board of
Directors in March 2009. Having worked
for a number of established offshore oil
and gas construction companies since
1992, Mr. Gupta has extensive industry
experience in India, Southeast Asia and
the Middle East. Mr. Gupta graduated
from Delhi College of Engineering, Delhi
University in India with a Bachelor in Civil
Engineering (Honours).

Mr. Sanjay Anand joined Swiber in
September 2010 and is currently the
Chief Operating Officer. He is responsible
for the overall management of the
following project functions: Project
Management, Project Controls including
Cost Control, Planning and Document
Control; Procurement; Subcontracts;
and Contract Administration. Mr. Anand
brings to Swiber over thirty years of
overall experience in project management,
design engineering, onshore/offshore
construction, cost engineering, contract
administration, proposals and estimating.
Mr. Anand graduated from Delhi College
of Engineering, Delhi University in India
with a Bachelor in Civil Engineering in
the year 1981.

Mr. Stephen Church joined Swiber in
March 2007 and has risen within the ranks
to become VP for Fleet Management
and Yard Services. He has close to 35
years of industry experience, covering
all facets of the offshore construction
field, including subsea pipelaying, riser
setting, jacket and deck installation, rig
moves, heavy lifts, SBM installation and
maintenance, topside maintenance and
hook-up. Mr. Church is a graduate of
University of Otago, New Zealand with
Bachelor of Commerce degree, Major
in Accounting.
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E Q U AT O R I A L E O F F S H O R E
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES
MANAGEMENT

VP Brunei

Mr. Joseph Chen joined Swiber in
2007 to spearhead operations in Brunei
Darussalam and drive the Group's
expansion, strategic alliances and activities
in the Asia Pacific region. With close to
35 years of management experience, he
has held various senior administrations
and business management positions
in the oil and gas related construction
industry in Brunei. He holds a Master
of Business Administration Degree,
University of Southern Cross, Australia
(Best Graduate) and a Business Diploma
in Industrial Administration, School of
Accountancy and Business Studies, UK.

JEAN PERS
President and CEO

Mr. Jean Pers joined Swiber in 2002
to develop the offshore EPIC business.
Bringing with him close to 35 years of
engineering and operational experience
in the Offshore EPIC business, mainly
in the North Sea, he was appointed
to the Board of Directors in 2005.
Mr. Pers is currently the President and
CEO of Equatoriale Offshore Development
Services. He had an illustrious career
in the industry, previously heading the
Marine Department at IKL Indonesia
and being advisor to Voies Navigables
de France, the Navigation Authority that
controls most of French navigable rivers
and canals. Mr. Pers graduated from
Ecole Nationale Ingenieurs in France in
1974 with an Engineer diploma. Since
1988, Mr. Pers has been a member of
CNEDIES Centre National des Experts,
an organisation that provides expertise to
analyse the causes of industrial accidents.
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NEWCRUZ OFFSHORE
MARINE SERVICES
MANAGEMENT TEAM

DARREN YEO

ROY YAP

President and CEO

GM Operations

Mr. Darren Yeo joined Swiber in 2003
and was appointed to the Board in
November 2004. With over two decades
of industry experience under his belt, Mr.
Yeo is currently the President and CEO
of Newcruz Offshore Marine Services
and is responsible for the management
and development of the Group's offshore
marine support business operations. He
is also an Alternate Director to Mr. Francis
Wong for Kreuz Holdings Limited. Mr. Yeo
graduated from the National University
of Singapore in 1993 with a Bachelor of
Engineering degree. He later obtained a
Diploma in Marketing from the Singapore
Institute of Management in 1995.

Mr. Roy Yap began his career in Swiber
in November 2007 and has risen within the
ranks to become the GM for Operations
of the offshore marine services division
of the Group. Mr. Yap is responsible for
managing and leading the offshore marine
support-related operations of Swiber. Mr.
Yap brings with him close to 15 years of
industry experience and prior to joining
the Group, he had led operations and HSE
units of other marine and offshore services
companies, where he had successfully
implemented operations and safety
systems. A graduate in Nautical studies,
Mr. Yap is also a qualified Internal Quality
Auditor, Company Security Officer, and
ISM Internal Auditor.
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KURUSH CONTRACTOR
President and CEO

Backed by close to 30 years of experience
in the offshore industry, Mr. Kurush
Contractor joined the Group in August
2008. He is also currently an Executive
Director and the CEO of Kreuz Holdings
Limited and has been in charge of
establishing and charting strategic
growth of the Group’s offshore subsea
business operations since its initiation.
He has strong hands-on experience,
being a qualified commercial deep
sea saturation diver certified by the
Health and Safety Executive of the
United Kingdom, and has received
various technical credentials such as
for saturation diving, underwater Non
Destructive Testing, diving hyperbaric
medicine and supervisor training. Mr.
Contractor graduated from Bombay
University, India with a Bachelor of
Science degree majoring in Chemistry,
with Physics and Mathematics.

CYRUS CAMA

SHELDON HUTTON

VP Operations

VP Installations

Mr. Cyrus Cama has been in the subsea
construction industry since 1991 and
joined as the VP for Operations in June
2008 where he is responsible for leading
the offshore subsea operations. He
has held several posts as diver, project
coordinator and project manager for
several subsea projects in India, Middle
East, Southeast Asia and Europe carried
out by companies such as Rockwater
Limited, Coflexip Stena Offshore Inc.,
Global Industries Limited, Stolt Comex
Seaway and Subtec Middle East Ltd.

Mr. Sheldon Hutton joined the Swiber
Group in June 2008 and is responsible
for the offshore subsea installation
projects. With close to 35 years of industry
experience, he has played a vital role in
major project completions for Hyundai,
Shell, Exxon, British Petroleum, Petro
Canada and Global Industries amongst
many others. Mr. Hutton is instrumental
in developing and pioneering methods for
providing cost-effective and successful
completions of various kinds of subsea
construction and installation works,
enabling oil companies and producers to
get online faster and safely. Mr. Hutton
graduated from Seneca College in
welding technology.
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KREUZ OFFSHORE
SUBSEA SERVICES
MANAGEMENT TEAM
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C O R P O R AT E S O C I A L
RESPONSIBILITY

Swiber is committed in making a
positive impact in the lives and in
the communities that it is operating
in and beyond. As global citizens,
we strive to reach out and provide
help where it is most needed. Hence,
socially responsible activities are
an integral part of how Swiber
conducts its business, make
decisions, and sets its priorities.
The employees of Swiber have
increasingly engaged themselves
in volunteer work, partnering
with other non-profit, charitable
organizations, doing fund-raising
efforts and forming taskforces for
Swiber’s CSR’s initiatives.

SUPPORTING THE YOUTH
Tomorrow’s hope truly lies in the youth and yet due to diseases, economic hardships
and social ills, they are one of the most vulnerable groups in our society today. But
be that as it may, where you find the most disadvantaged, there you find that hope
shines brightest. Swiber lends a helping hand to harness these dreams and talents.

Singapore: North View Primary School – Swiber Jazz Band,
annual stipend for the country’s first-ever primary school jazz band

Nias, Indonesia: Scholarship for primary students in dire financial
needs; some are orphans

Yangon, Myanmar: Scholarship for High School and
University students with HIV

Singapore: Ahuva Good Shepard: Mentoring and Social Support

CARING FOR THE COMMUNITY

S W IB E R H OL D ING S L IMIT ED A N N UA L R EP ORT 2011

Volunteer work at its best – Swiber employees both onshore and offshore did not just give their time and money but their hearts
and talents as well. Whether it is building houses, spending time with mentally challenged children, cleaning homes of the
elderly or going to the movies with children from abusive backgrounds, Swiberites have proven that giving is its own reward.

Philippines: Swiber GK Village

Singapore: Care Corner Toa Payoh

Singapore : Lakeside Family Center

Singapore: Lions Befrienders Service Association for the Elderly

Mumbai, India: Home for Mentally, Deficient Children Mankhurd

Indonesia: Pondok Taruna Orphanage
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REACHING OUT TO INDIVIDUAL NEEDS
Even as Swiber works with existing charitable organizations and institutions to carry
out its CSR activities, it keeps itself attuned to the plight of some private individuals
– whose stories have reached the media. Going beyond writing cheques, Swiberites
have given some time off their weekends to bring a wheel-chair bound man to visit
theme parks, volunteered to care for a baby with a congenital anomaly after work
hours, accompanied an amputee-father to fit his new prosthetics, visited a victim of a
hit and run accident and journeyed miles to spend time with a lonely, blind old man.

Kruez Subsea

PAPE Engineering

Swiber UAE

Swiber Corporate Services

Swiber Brunei

Using its own resources, Swiber has
sent its HSE team of medical doctors
to respond to the urgent medical
needs after the Padang Earthquake
and donated critical medicines for the
victims of Typhoon Ketsana in Manila.
We also donated funds through Citycare
Limited Singapore and Singapore Red
Cross Society for the Haiti and Japan
earthquakes, respectively.

Earthquake in Padang Indonesia

Typhoon Ketsana in the Philippines

A ‘Thank You’ Postcard from Haiti

Earthquake in Haiti
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CALAMITIES
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C O R P O R AT E S T R U C T U R E

SWIBER HOLD
OFFSHORE
CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

Swiber
Resolute
Holmen
Corporate
Offshore
Heavylift
Services
Pte. Ltd.
Offshore
(Singapore)
Pte. Ltd.
Pte. Ltd.
(Singapore)
(Singapore)

Swiber
Rahaman
Sdn. Bhd.
(Brunei)

Swiber
Offshore
Marine
Pte. Ltd.
(Singapore)

Swiber
Offshore
Construction
Pte. Ltd.
(Singapore)

Swiber
International
Pte. Ltd.
(Singapore)

100%

51%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Holmen
Holmen
Swiber
Swiber
Swiber
Swiber
Holmen
Swiber
Arctic
Pacific
Marine
Marine (B)
Offshore Engineering
Atlantic
Maritime
Pte. Ltd.
Pte. Ltd.
Pte. Ltd.
Sdn. Bhd. Middle East
Ltd.
Limited
Pte. Ltd.
(Singapore) (Singapore) (Singapore) (Seychelles) (Singapore) (Brunei)
FZE
(Labuan)
(UAE)
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100%

100%

Resolute
Pte. Ltd.
(Singapore)

Vallianz
Holdings
Limited
(Singapore)

49%

28.8%

100%

PT. Swiber PT. Rajawali
Berjaya
Swiber
(Indonesia) Cakrawala
(Indonesia)

49%

100%

100%

49%

100%

100%

100%

Swiwar
Offshore
Pte. Limited
(Singapore)

Alam
Swiber DLB
1 (L) Inc.
(Labuan)

Rawabi
Swiber
Offshore
Services
Co. Ltd.
(Saudi)

50%

49%

50%

Rawabi
Alam
SWP
Swiber
Swiber
Engineering
Offshore Offshore (M) Pte. Ltd.
Marine
Sdn. Bhd. (Singapore)
Pte. Ltd.
(Malaysia)
(Singapore)
50%

50%

49%

Rawabi
Swiber
Offshore
Services
Limited
(BVI)
50%

Swiber
Offshore
(India)
Private
Limited
(India)

Victorious
LLC
(Marshall
Islands)

Vallianz
Marine
Pte. Ltd.
(Singapore)

Atlantis
Navigation
AS
(Norway)

49%

49%

49%

49.3%
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INGS LIMITED
OFFSHORE
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

OFFSHORE
SUBSEA SERVICES

Swiber PJW
3000
Pte. Ltd.
(Singapore)

Swiber PJW
4000
Pte. Ltd.
(Singapore)

Newcruz
International
Pte. Ltd.
(Singapore)

Equatoriale
International
Pte. Ltd.
(Singapore)

Kreuz
Holdings
Limited
(Singapore)

100%

100%

100%

100%

63.2%

PJW 4000
LLC
(Marshall
Islands)

100%

PAPE
Newcruz
Kreuz
Newcruz
Newcruz
Newcruz
Engineering Engineering Engineering Shipbuilding Offshore
Offshore
Ltd.
&
Pte. Ltd.
Limited
Marine
Services
(Singapore) (Labuan)
(Labuan) Engineering Pte. Ltd.
Pte. Ltd.
Pte. Ltd. (Singapore) (Singapore)
(Singapore)
80%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Equatoriale Equatoriale Equatoriale
Kreuz
Services Resources
Pte. Ltd.
Subsea
Pte. Ltd. (Mauritius) (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.
(Singapore)
Limited
(Singapore)
(Mauritius)

100%

100%

100%

SwiberEquatorial
Oil Field
Services
(Uganda)
Limited
(Uganda)
90%

Kreuz
Offshore
Contractors
Limited
(Labuan)

Newcruz
Offshore
(Australia)
Pty. Ltd.
(Australia)

Equatoriale
Offshore
Pte. Ltd.
(Singapore)

100%

100%

100%

PJW 3000
LLC
(Marshall
Islands)

Offshore
Engineering
Resources
Pte. Ltd.
(Singapore)

PT. Kreuz
Berjaya
(Indonesia)

33.3%

25%

49%

100%

Kreuz
Subsea
Marine
Pte. Ltd.
(Singapore)

100%

100%

KSS
Kreuz
Engineering Subsea (B)
Ltd.
Sdn. Bhd.
(Labuan)
(Brunei)

100%

100%

Subsidiary
Joint Venture
Associate
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C O R P O R AT E I N F O R M AT I O N

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Raymond Kim Goh, Executive Chairman
Francis Wong, Executive Director and Group
Chief Executive Officer
Jean Pers, Executive Director
Darren Yeo, Executive Director
Nitish Gupta, Executive Director
Yeo Jeu Nam, Lead Independent Director
Chia Fook Eng, Independent Director
Oon Thian Seng, Independent Director

COMPANY SECRETARIES
Lee Bee Fong
Tan Ping Ping

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
Raymond Kim Goh, Chairman
Francis Wong
Jean Pers
Darren Yeo
Nitish Gupta
Kurush Phiroze Contractor

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Yeo Jeu Nam, Chairman
Chia Fook Eng
Oon Thian Seng
Francis Wong

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Yeo Jeu Nam, Chairman
Chia Fook Eng
Oon Thian Seng

NOMINATING COMMITTEE
Oon Thian Seng, Chairman
Yeo Jeu Nam
Chia Fook Eng
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REGISTERED OFFICE

12 International Business Park
Swiber@IBP #04-01
Singapore 609920
T: +65 6505 0800
F: +65 6505 0802
www.swiber.com

SHARE REGISTRAR

Boardroom Corporate & Advisory
Services Pte Ltd
50 Raffles Place
Singapore Land Tower #32-01
Singapore 048623

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Australia and New Zealand
Banking Group Limited
10 Collyer Quay #22-00
Ocean Financial Centre
Singapore 049315

The Siam Commercial Bank
Public Company
8th Floor, Zone B
9 Ratchadapisek Road
Chatuchak
Bangkok 10900

Bank of America
9 Raffles Place #18-00
Republic Plaza Tower 1
Singapore 048619

United Overseas Bank Limited
80 Raffles Place
UOB Plaza
Singapore 048624

Chinatrust Commercial Bank Co., Ltd
8 Marina View #33-02
Asia Square Tower 1
Singapore 018960

FINANCE COMPANIES

Caterpillar Financial Services Asia Pte. Ltd.
14 Tractor Road
Singapore 627873

CIMB Bank Berhad
50 Raffles Place #09-01
Singapore Land Tower
Singapore 048623

Coface Singapore
36 Robinson Road #19-01
City House
Singapore 068877

Citibank N.A.
3 Temasek Avenue
Centennial Tower
Singapore 039190

GE Capital Services Pte Ltd
72 Anson Road
Level 5 Anson House
Singapore 079911

DBS Bank Limited
6 Shenton Way
DBS Building Tower One
Singapore 068809

Orix Leasing Singapore Limited
331 North Bridge Road
#19-01/06 Odeon Towers
Singapore 188720

Deutsche Bank
One Raffles Quay
#16-00 South Tower
Singapore 048583

AUDITORS

ICICI Bank Limited
9 Raffles Place
#50-01 Republic Plaza
Singapore 048619
Malayan Banking Berhad
2 Battery Road
Maybank Tower #03-01
Singapore 049907
Qatar National Bank SAQ
One Temasek Ave #22-03
Millenia Tower
Singapore 039192
The Bank of East Asia, Limited
60 Robinson Road
BEA Building
Singapore 068892
The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited
21 Collyer Quay
#04-01 HSBC Building
Singapore 049320

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
8 Cross Street
#17-00
PWC Building
Singapore 048424
Partner-in-charge: Lee Chian Yorn
(Appointed with effect from
financial year ended
31 December 2011)

LEGAL ADVISOR

WongPartnership LLP
One George Street #20-01
Singapore 049145

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Dolores Phua/Pearl Lam
Citigate Dewe Rogerson, i.MAGE
1 Raffles Place #26-02
One Raffles Place
Singapore 048616
T: +65 6534-5122
F: +65 6534-4171
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C O R P O R AT E G O V E R N A N C E S TAT E M E N T

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance within the Group and adopts practices based
on the Code of Corporate Governance 2005 (the “Code”) and the amendments to the Mainboard Listing Rules (“Listing Rules”) which came into effect
on 29 September 2011 as announced by the Singapore Exchange Limited Securities Trading (“SGX-ST”) to strengthen corporate governance practice
and foster greater corporate disclosure, where it is applicable and practical to the Group. The Company recognizes the importance of good governance
for continued growth and investor confidence.
In line with the commitment by the Company to maintaining high standards of corporate governance, the Company will continually review its corporate
governance processes to strive to fully comply with the Code and Listing Rules.
The Board is pleased to report compliance of the Company with the Code and Listing Rules except where otherwise stated.

BOARD MATTERS
Principle 1: Board’s Conduct of Affairs
Every company should be headed by an effective Board to lead and control the company. The Board is collectively responsible for the
success of the company. The Board works with Management to achieve this and the Management remains accountable to the Board.
The Board’s primary role is to protect and enhance long-term shareholder value. Apart from its statutory duties and responsibilities, the Board sets
the strategies for the Group, oversees the executive management and affairs of the Group. It reviews and advises on overall strategies, policies
and objectives, sets goals, supervises Management, monitors business performance and goals achievement, and assumes responsibility for overall
corporate governance of the Group to ensure that the Group’s strategies are in the interests of the Company and its shareholders.
The Board is also responsible for the following corporate matters:
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)
(g)
(h)

Approval of quarterly, half-yearly and year-end results announcements;
Approval of the annual report and accounts;
Convening of shareholders’ meetings;
Major investments and funding;
Interested person transactions;
Material acquisitions and disposal of assets;
Corporate strategic direction, strategies and action plans; and
Issuance of policies and key business initiatives.

The Board meets on a regular basis and as and when necessary to address any specific significant matters that may arise, if physical meeting is not
possible, the Article of Association of the Company provides for directors to conduct meetings by tele-conferencing or video-conferencing. While the
Board considers directors’ attendance at Board meetings to be important, it should not be the main criteria to measure their contributions. The Board
also takes into account the contributions by board members in other forms including periodical reviews, provisions of guidance and advice on various
matters relating to the Group.
In recognition of the high standard of accountability to our shareholders, the Board has established various Board committees, namely, Audit Committee
(“AC”), Nominating Committee (“NC”), Remuneration Committee (“RC”) and Executive Committee (“Exco”). These committees function within clearly
defined terms of references and operating procedures, which will be reviewed on a regular basis by the Board. The effectiveness of each committee
will also be constantly reviewed by the Board.
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Apart from the above, interested person transactions and the Group’s internal audit procedures are reviewed by the Group’s Internal Auditors, Messrs
Moore Stephens LLP who were appointed during the financial year under review, and reported to the Audit Committee and the Board.
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
The Exco was established under the leadership of the Executive Chairman and comprises of representatives from the main business units. The Exco
is a formal committee and is charged with supporting the Executive Chairman and the Group Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) in delivering the Group’s
long term strategic plans, annual business plans and major corporate projects, handling of operating matters that are significant or involve questions
of principle, and in ensuring a good internal flow of information.
The Exco comprises the following members:
Raymond Kim Goh, Executive Chairman, Swiber Corporate (Chairman)
Francis Wong, Group CEO and President, Swiber Corporate
Nitish Gupta, CEO, Offshore Construction Services
Darren Yeo, CEO and President, Offshore Marine Services
Kurush Phiroze Contractor, CEO and President, Offshore Subsea Services
Jean Pers, CEO and President, Offshore Development Services
The Exco meets regularly and exercises its powers and authority, taking into consideration the best interest of the Group. The Exco shall meet at such
times and places as the Exco shall deem advisable on the call of the Chairman of the Exco, the Chairman of the Board, the Group CEO, or, in their
absence, by any member of the Exco.
The main responsibilities of the Exco include:
(a)
(b)
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(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)
(g)
(h)
(i)
(j)
(k)
(l)

to formulate the Group’s strategic development initiatives, direct the Group in its widest context and ensures sound operation of general Group
management;
to ensure implementation, checking and coordination of the Group’s strategic plans in the areas of research and development, operations,
financial, administrative, risk and legal issues, human resources and investment;
to review, recommend and confirm presidential appointments to the Group;
to establish policies for the Group and make sure those are followed through with at all times;
to consider cross-business major project issues; identify, manage and mitigate business risks;
to promote and maintain the TRADE values of the Group;
to monitor working capital and cash collection and prioritise the allocation of capital;
to promote the principles inherent in the Group becoming an Integrated Global Enterprise;
to ensure co-ordination across the Group; identify gaps, issues and conflicts and commission appropriate resolutions;
to foster relations with global clients and improve existing client associations;
to consider promotions and succession planning;
to undertake other roles and responsibilities as directed by the Group CEO.

The Exco is guided by and practises the following principles:
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)
(g)
(h)
(i)
(j)
(k)
(l)
(m)

Provide clear vision and a sense of direction
Articulate a strategy
Establish and live the corporate values
Lead by example
Align individual and company goals
Encourage and respond to feedback
Coach and support to deliver peak performance
Behave consistently and in accordance with the Group’s TRADEMark values, namely Trust, Respect, Affirmation, Determination and Excellence
Promote empowerment
Encourage and stimulate change
Aim to give praise
Work as a team to deliver corporate success
Become a global business

IN T H E BI G L E A G UE
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During the financial year, the number of meetings held and the attendance of each member of the Board and Board committees’ meetings are as follows:

Number of meetings held
Directors
Raymond Kim Goh
Francis Wong
Jean Pers
Darren Yeo
Nitish Gupta
Yeo Jeu Nam
Oon Thian Seng
Chia Fook Eng

Board
4
4
4
3
4
4
4
4
4

AC
NC
6
2
Number of meetings attended
NA
NA
6
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
6
2
6
2
6
2

RC
2
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
2
2
2

Note
NA Not applicable

The directors received briefings and updates on changes in the relevant laws, regulations and accounting standards. The directors also received
updates on the business of the Group through regular scheduled meetings and ad hoc Board meetings.

Principle 2: Board Composition and Guidance
There should be a strong and independent element on the Board, which is able to exercise objective judgment on corporate affairs
independently, in particular, from Management. No individual or small group of individuals should be allowed to dominate the Board’s
decision making.
The Board comprises eight directors of whom five are Executive Directors and three are Independent Non-Executive Directors, with the Independent
Non-Executive Directors making up of not less than one third of the Board, thus providing a strong and independent element on the Board capable of
exercising objective judgment.
The Board has the appropriate mix of expertise and experience, and collectively possesses the necessary core competencies for effective functioning
and informed decision-making. Each director has been appointed based on the strength of his calibre, experience and stature and is expected to bring
a valuable range of experience and expertise to contribute to the development of the Group’s strategies and the performance of its business.

The criteria for independence are determined taking into account the definition provided in the Code and also the followings:
(a)
(b)

(c)

The Board will assess the independence of directors regularly. For the avoidance of doubt, only Non-Executive Directors (that is, a director who
is not a member of management) can be considered independent.
The Board will endeavour to consider all of the circumstances relevant to a director in determining whether the director is free from any interest
and any business or other relationship which could, or could reasonably be perceived to, materially interfere with the director’s ability to act in
the best interests of the Company.
Amongst the circumstances considered by the Board will be a range of factors, including that a director or his immediate family member:
(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)

is not being employed by the Company or of its related companies for the current or any of the past three financial years;
is not a substantial shareholder or an immediate family member (being a spouse, child, adopted child, step-child, brother, sister and
parent) of a substantial shareholder of the Company;
is not a director who is or has been directly associated with a substantial shareholder of the Company in the current or any of the past
three financial years;
is not an immediate family member who is, or has been in any of the past three financial years, employed by the Company or of its
related companies as a senior executive officer whose remuneration is determined by the RC;
has not accept any compensation from the Company or any of its related companies other than compensation for board service for
the current or immediate past financial year;
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The independence of each Independent Non-Executive Director is reviewed annually by the NC. The NC adopts the Code’s definition of what constitutes
an Independent Director in its review. The NC is of the view that the three Independent Non-Executive Directors (who represent one-third of the Board)
are independent.
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(vi)

(d)

is not a substantial shareholder of or a partner in (with 5% or more stake), or an executive officer of, or director of any organization to
which the Company made or any of its subsidiaries made, or from which the company or any of its subsidiaries received significant
payment or material services in excess of S$200,000.00 in the current or immediate past financial year.

Each director is responsible for notifying the Chairman and the Company Secretary about any external positions, appointments or arrangements
that could result in the director not being “independent”.

The Board considers the present Board size facilitates effective decision making and is appropriate for the nature and scope of the Group’s operations.
None of the Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company has been appointed as Director to the Company’s principal subsidiaries, as at
todate. The Board and the Management are of the view that the current Board structure in the principal subsidiaries are currently well organized and
constituted.
The Board will from time to time make the appropriate corporate decisions to consider the appointment of the Independent Non-Executive Director to
the Company’s principal subsidiaries.
The profiles of each of the directors are set out on pages 28 and 29 of this Annual Report.

Principle 3: Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
There should be a clear division of responsibilities at the top of the company, the working of the Board and the executive responsibility
of the company’s business, which will ensure a balance of power and authority, such that no one individual represents a considerable
concentration of power.
Mr Raymond Kim Goh continues to serve as the Executive Chairman of the Group and play an active role in mapping out the directions for Swiber’s
growth at a strategic level. He promotes culture of openness and debate within the Board and between the Board and Management. Mr Francis Wong,
the Group CEO and President, leads the Management in setting strategies, objectives and missions and is responsible for the day-to-day operations of
the Group. He ensures that the Board members are provided with accurate and timely information.
The separation of the roles of Chairman and CEO is to ensure an appropriate balance of power, increased accountability and greater capacity of the
Board for independent decision-making. The Chairman and CEO are not related.
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Their performance and remuneration will be reviewed annually by the NC and the RC, whose members comprise only of Independent Non-Executive
Directors of the Company. As such, the strong independent element on the Board ensures decisions are not based on a considerable concentration of
power in a single individual. With the existence of various committees with power and authority to perform key functions, the Board believes that there
are adequate safeguards in place against an uneven concentration of power and authority in a single individual.
Mr Yeo Jeu Nam is the Lead Independent Director of the Company to whom concerns may be conveyed to as and when the need arises.

NOMINATING COMMITTEE
Principle 4: Board Membership
There should be a formal and transparent process for the appointment of new directors to the Board.
The NC comprises Mr Oon Thian Seng, Mr Yeo Jeu Nam and Mr Chia Fook Eng as members who are Independent Non-Executive Directors. Mr. Oon
Thian Seng is the Chairman of the NC.
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The NC is responsible for:
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

re-nominating directors (including Independent Directors) taking into consideration each director’s contribution and performance;
determining annually whether or not a director is independent;
deciding whether or not a director is able to and has been adequately carrying out his duties as a director; and
proposing a set of objective performance criteria to the Board for approval and implementation, to evaluate the effectiveness of the Board as
a whole and the contribution of each director to the effectiveness of the Board.

New directors are appointed by way of a Board Resolution, after the NC has approved their nomination. In its search and selection process for new
directors, other than through formal search, the NC taps on the resources of directors’ personal contacts and recommendations of potential candidates
and appraises the nominees to ensure that the candidates possess relevant experience and have the calibre to contribute to the Group and its
businesses, having regard to the attributes of the existing Board and the requirements of the Group.
All directors are subject to retirement in accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association whereby one third of the directors are
required to retire (or if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than one third) and subject themselves to re-election
by shareholders at every annual general meeting (“AGM”). A new director who is appointed by the Board is subject to re-election by shareholders at
the next AGM following his appointment and, thereafter, shall be taken into account in determining the number of directors who are to retire by rotation.
At the forthcoming AGM, Mr Jean Pers, Mr Nitish Gupta and Mr Oon Thian Seng will be retiring by rotation pursuant to the relevant Company’s Articles
of Association. All of them, being eligible for re-election, have offered themselves for re-election.
Each member of the NC abstains from voting on any resolutions and making any recommendation and/or participating in respect of matters in which
he has an interest.

Date of appointment/
last re-election

Present

Past (for the last 3 years)

Raymond Kim Goh

12 November 2004
29 April 2011

Kreuz Holdings Limited
Vallianz Holdings Limited

–

Francis Wong

29 November 2005
30 April 2010

Kreuz Holdings Limited

CCK Consolidated Holdings Berhad

Jean Pers

29 November 2005
30 April 2010

–

–

Darren Yeo

12 November 2004
29 April 2011

Kreuz Holdings Limited
(alternate director to
Mr Francis Wong)

–

Nitish Gupta

19 March 2009
30 April 2009

–

–

Yeo Jeu Nam

29 September 2006
29 April 2011

Vallianz Holdings Limited
Frencken Group Limited

EDMI Limited

Oon Thian Seng

29 September 2006
30 April 2010

–

–

Chia Fook Eng

17 June 2009
30 April 2010

–

–

Name of directors
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All directors are required to declare their board representation, as at the date of this Annual Report, the date of appointment and last re-election of
each director together with their directorships and chairmanships in other listed companies both current and those held over in the preceding three
years are as follows:
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Principle 5: Board Performance
There should be a formal assessment of the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the contribution by each director to the effectiveness
of the Board.
The Group implemented the Board-approved evaluation process and performance criteria to assess the performance of the Board as a whole as well
as the contribution of each individual director.
At the date of this Annual Report, the NC has adopted a formal process to assess the effectiveness of the Board and the Board committees as a whole.
The qualitative measures include the effectiveness of the Board in its monitoring role and the attainment of the strategic objectives set by the Board.
The evaluation exercise is carried out by way of a Board Assessment Checklist, which is circulated to the Board members for completion and thereafter
for the NC to review and determine the actions required to improve the corporate governance of the Company and effectiveness of the Board as a
whole.
A review of the Board’s performance is undertaken collectively by the Board annually and informally on a continuous basis by the NC with input from
the other Board members. Renewals or replacement of Board members, when it occurs, do not necessarily reflect their contributions to date, but may
be driven by the need to position and shape the Board in line with the medium term needs of the Company and its business.
The performance of the Board is evaluated using agreed criteria, aligned as far as possible with appropriate corporate objectives. The criteria include
board structure, board processes, board accountabilities and responsibilities, conduct and performance of its principle functions and duties.
Assessment of individual director's performance is undertaken by the NC. Some factors considered in the individual review are director’s attendance
and participation in and outside meetings, the quality of director’s intervention and industry and business knowledge made by the director.
The NC is aware that some of the Directors do hold multiple directorships as each of them are required to disclose their other directorships to the
Board, upon appointment and cessation. Therefore, the NC will from time to time, evaluate their performance to ensure that each Director is able to
carry out his duties effectively, taking into consideration the Director’s others board representation and principal commitments. The NC reviewed,
taking into account the individual performance assessment and their actual conduct on the board, and is satisfied that the Directors with multiple board
representations have given adequate time and attention to the Company affairs during the year under review.
The NC is satisfied that the current size and composition of the Board provides it with adequate ability to meet the existing scope of needs and the
nature of operations of the Company. From time to time, the NC will review the appropriateness of the current Board size, taking into consideration the
changes in the nature and scope of operations as well as the regulatory environment.
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ACCESS TO INFORMATION
Principle 6: Access to Information
In order to fulfill their responsibilities, Board members should be provided with complete, adequate and timely information prior to board
meetings and on an on-going basis.
The Board and the Board committees are furnished with management reports containing complete, adequate and timely information, and papers
containing relevant background or explanatory information required to support the decision-making process. Management team and the Company’s
auditors would also provide additional information on the matters for discussion.
All directors have separate and independent access to senior management and to the Company Secretary. The Company Secretary administers and
prepares minutes of the Board and the Board committees' meetings and assists the Chairman in ensuring that the Board procedures are followed and
that applicable statutory and regulatory rules and regulations are complied with.
The directors, in furtherance of their duties, are entitled to take independent professional advice at the expense of the Company when necessary.
When a director is first appointed to the Board, an orientation program is arranged for him to ensure that he is familiar with the Company’s business
and governance practices.
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REMUNERATION MATTERS
Principle 7: Procedures for Developing Remuneration Policies
There should be a formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on executive remuneration and for fixing the remuneration
packages of individual directors. No director should be involved in deciding his own remuneration.
The RC comprises Mr Yeo Jeu Nam, Mr Oon Thian Seng and Mr Chia Fook Eng who are Independent Non-Executive Directors. Mr Yeo Jeu Nam is the
Chairman of the RC.
The RC is responsible for:
(a)
(b)
(c)

recommending to the Board a framework of remuneration for the directors and key executives;
determining specific remuneration package for each Executive Director; and
reviewing all aspects of remuneration, including directors’ fees, salaries, allowances, bonuses, the options to be issued under the share option
scheme, the awards to be granted under the share plan and other benefit in-kind.

The Chairman of the RC reviews, for recommendation to the Board, the specific remuneration package for the Executive Directors and key executives
or senior management. There are appropriate and meaningful measures in place for the purpose of assessing the performance of Executive Directors
and key executives or senior management. In determining remuneration packages of Executive Directors and key executives or senior management,
the RC will ensure that directors and key executives are adequately but not excessively rewarded. The RC will consider, in consultation with the Board,
amongst other things, their responsibilities, skills, expertise and contributions to the Company’s performance and whether the remuneration packages
are competitive and sufficient to ensure that the Company is able to attract and retain the best available executive talent. Each member of the RC does
not participate in any decision concerning his own remuneration.

Principle 8: Level and Mix of Remuneration
The level of remuneration should be appropriate to attract, retain and motivate the directors needed to run the company successfully but
companies should avoid paying more than is necessary for this purpose. A significant proportion of executive directors’ remuneration should
be structured so as to link rewards to corporate and individual performance.
The Company sets remuneration packages to ensure that it is competitive and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate directors and senior management
of the required experience and expertise to run the Group successfully.

The Executive Directors of the Company, Mr Raymond Kim Goh, Mr Francis Wong, Mr Jean Pers, Mr Darren Yeo and Mr Nitish Gupta have entered into
separate service agreements with the Company which are reviewed annually (unless otherwise terminated by either party giving not less than six
months’ notice to the other). The service agreements cover the terms of employment and specifically, the salaries and bonuses.
The Independent Non-Executive Directors do not have any service agreements with the Company. Except for directors’ fees, which have to be approved
by shareholders at AGMs, the Independent Non-Executive Directors do not receive any other forms of remuneration from the Company.
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The Executive and Non-Executive Directors receive directors’ fees, in accordance with their level of contributions, taking into account factors such
as responsibilities, effort and time spent for serving on the Board and the Board committees. The directors’ fees are recommended by the Board for
approval at the AGM.
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Principle 9: Disclosure on Remuneration
Each company should provide clear disclosure of its remuneration policy, level and mix of remuneration, and the procedure for setting
remuneration in the company’s annual report. It should provide disclosure in relation to its remuneration policies to enable investors to
understand the link between remuneration paid to directors and key executives, and performance.
The following table shows a breakdown of the annual remuneration (in percentage terms) of directors of the Group for the financial year under review:

Salary
%

Performance
Incentives(1)/
Bonus(2)
%

Directors’ fees
%

Others Benefits
%

Total
%

S$500,000 and above
Raymond Kim Goh
Francis Wong
Jean Pers
Darren Yeo
Nitish Gupta

72
64
71
72
63

21
21
21
20
20

4
4
5
5
5

3
11
3
3
12

100
100
100
100
100

Below S$150,000
Yeo Jeu Nam
Chia Fook Eng
Oon Thian Seng

–
–
–

–
–
–

100
100
100

–
–
–

100
100
100

Remuneration Band and Name of
Directors

Notes:
(1) Performance incentives refer to long term cash incentive plan and long term performance driven award.
(2) Bonus is short term cash incentive plan and is a sum of money or given in addition to usual compensation, normally for outstanding performance and service for certain period.

To maintain confidentiality of staff remuneration matters and for competitive reason, the names of the key executives of the Group are not disclosed in
this Annual Report. The following shows the annual remuneration of the top 10 key executives of the Group for the financial year under review:
(a)
(b)

Four key executives received total remuneration of more than S$450,000.
Six key executives received total remuneration of more than S$250,000 but less than S$449,999.
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The Company does not have any employee who is immediate family member of a Director or the CEO, whose remuneration exceeded S$150,000 for
the financial year ended 31 December 2011.
Details of the share options and awards under the Swiber Employee Share Option Scheme and Swiber Performance Share Plan can be found on pages
55 to 57.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Principle 10: Accountability
The Board should present a balanced and understandable assessment of the company’s performance, position and prospects.
The Company provides the shareholders with a detailed and balanced explanation and analysis of the Company’s performance, position and prospects
on a quarterly basis. The Board is provided with appropriately detailed management reports on a quarterly basis.
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Principle 11: Audit Committee
The Board should establish an audit committee with written terms of reference which clearly set out its authority and duties.
The AC comprises Mr Yeo Jeu Nam, Mr Oon Thian Seng, Mr Chia Fook Eng and Mr Francis Wong. Save for Mr Francis Wong, an Executive Director of the
Company, the other three members of the AC are Independent Non-Executive Directors. Mr Yeo Jeu Nam is the Chairman of the AC.
The AC is responsible for:
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)
(g)
(h)
(i)

(j)
(k)

reviewing the audit plans of the Company’s external auditors;
reviewing the reports of the Company’s external auditors;
reviewing the co-operation given by the Company’s officers to the external auditors;
reviewing the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries before their submission to the Board;
the quarterly, half-yearly and annual announcements as well as the related press releases on the results and financial positions of the
Company and the Group;
nominating the Company’s external auditors for re-appointment;
approving the Company’s internal audit plans;
reviewing interested person transaction (if any);
reviewing and considering transactions in which there may be potential conflicts of interests between the Group and its interested persons
and recommending whether those who are in a position of conflict should abstain from participating in any discussion or deliberations of the
Board or voting on resolutions of the Board or the shareholders in relation to such transactions;
a reviewing and approving procedures to hedge the exposure to foreign currency fluctuations (if any); and
reviewing the findings of internal investigations into matters where there is any suspected fraud or irregularity or failure of internal controls
or infringement of any Singapore law, rule or regulation which has or is likely to have a material impact on the Group’s results of operation
and/or financial position.

The AC has the express power to conduct or authorize investigations into any matters within its terms of reference, has full access to and co-operation
by Management. The AC has full discretion to invite any other directors or Executive Directors to attend its meetings and to ensure that adequate
resources are available to enable it to discharge its function properly. As at the date of this Annual Report, the AC has met with the external and internal
auditors separately without the presence of Management to review any area of audit concern. Ad-hoc AC meetings may be carried out from time to
time, as circumstances require.

The Group has outsourced its internal audit function to an international public accounting firm, Messrs Moore Stephens LLP. They carry out their
duties as set out in their engagement terms, together with review and audit on the Company’s design and implementation of the internal controls to
the extent as set out in their annual internal audit plan. Any internal control issues will be highlighted and noted during their audit review and their
recommendations will be reported to the AC during the AC quarterly meeting.
During the financial year under review, the Company had appointed new external auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (“PwC”) to replace Deloitte
& Touche LLP who had retired with effect from 13 July 2011. As part of ongoing good corporate governance initiatives, the Board and Management
are of the view that it was timely to effect a change of the external auditors. PwC meets the criteria set for auditing firm under Rule 712 of the Listing
Manuals of the SGX-ST.
Statutory audit review and the implementation of the Company’s material internal controls will be reviewed by PwC to the extent set out in their audit
plan. Any material non-compliance and internal control weaknesses noted during their audit, and the external auditors’ recommendations to address
such non-compliance and weaknesses, will be reported to the AC.
Any material non-compliances and internal control weaknesses will be followed up by the Management as part of Management’s role in the review of
the Company’s internal control systems. The Board is satisfied that the Company’s internal controls are adequate.
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The Company has implemented a whistle blowing policy which will provide well-defined and accessible channels in the Group through which employees
may raise concerns about improper conduct within the Group. The AC will review arrangements by which staff of the Company may, in confidence,
raise concerns about possible improprieties in matters of financial reporting or other matters. The AC’s objectives are to ensure that arrangements are
in place for the independent investigation of such matters and for appropriate follow-up action.
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During the financial year under review, the AC has reviewed the independence of PwC including the volume of all non-audit services provided to the
Group, and is satisfied that the nature and extent of such services will not prejudice the independence and objectivity of the external auditors. The AC
is pleased to recommend the re-appointment of PwC as external auditors of the Company at the forthcoming AGM.
The Group has appointed different auditors for its overseas subsidiaries. The Board and the AC are satisfied that the appointment would not compromise
the standard and effectiveness of the audit of the Group. Accordingly, the Company has complied with Rule 716 of the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST.
The aggregate amount of agreed fees to be paid to all of the external auditing firms of the Group for the financial year under review is US$589,000
which comprises of audit fee of US$567,000 and non-audit fee of US$22,000.
In order to ensure that the AC is able to fulfill its responsibilities, Management provides Board members with management reports. In addition, all
relevant information on material events and transactions are circulated to AC as and when they arise. Whenever necessary, senior management staff
will be invited to attend the AC meetings to answer queries and provide detailed insights into their areas of operations. The AC is kept informed by
Management on the status of on-going activities between Board meetings. Where a decision has to be made before a Board meeting, a directors’
resolution is done in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company and the AC are provided with all necessary information to enable them
to make informed decisions.
The AC has full access to and co-operation by the Management and has been given resources to enable the AC to discharge its functions properly. The
external and internal auditors have unrestricted access to the AC.
The AC has been provided with the phone numbers and email particulars of the Company’s senior management and Company Secretary to facilitate access.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND AUDITS
Principle 12: Internal Controls
The Board should ensure that the Management maintains a sound system of internal controls to safeguard the shareholders’ investments
and the company’s assets.
The Group’s internal controls and systems are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the
financial information and to safeguard and maintain the accountability of the assets.
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The Board believes that, in the absence of any evidence to the contrary, the system of internal controls maintained by the Group’s Management and
that was in place through the year and up to the date of this report, is adequate to meet the needs of the Group in its current business environment.
Based on the findings and recommendations made by the internal and external auditors and the implementation of various Company’s policies, the
Board, in concurrence with the AC, is satisfied that the Company has an adequate system of internal controls, addressing the financial, operational and
compliance risks. The Company is also consistently improving and adopts the recommendations which were highlighted by the auditors to safeguard
the Company’s internal controls.

Principle 13: Internal Audit
The company should establish an internal audit function that is independent of the activities it audits.
The Board supports the need of an internal audit function where its primary objective is to maintain a system of internal controls and processes to
safeguard shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets. Messrs Moore Stephens LLP, the internal auditors review the effectiveness of the key
internal controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls, and risk management on an ongoing basis. The internal auditor team is
expected to meet the standards set by nationally or internationally recognized professional bodies including the standards for the Professional Practice
of Internal Auditing of the Institute of Internal Auditors.
The internal auditors’ primary line of reporting is to the Chairman of the AC. Procedures are in place for internal auditors to report independently their
findings and recommendations to the AC. The AC will review the internal audit plan, the scope and findings of internal audit procedures during the year and
the internal auditors’ reports on a quarterly basis. The AC is satisfied that the internal audit is adequately resourced and has appropriate standing within
the Group.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
Principle 14: Companies should engage in regular, effective and fair communication with shareholders.
Principle 15: Companies should encourage greater shareholder participation at AGMs, and allow shareholders the opportunity
to communicate their views on various matters affecting the company.
The Board is mindful of its obligations to provide its shareholders with timely disclosure of material information presented in a fair and objective manner.
The Company does not practise selective disclosure. In line with the continuing obligations of the Company pursuant to the Listing Manual of the
SGX-ST, the Board’s policy is that all shareholders would be equally informed of all major developments and/or transactions impacting the Group.
Quarterly results of the Company will be published through the SGXNET, news releases and the Company’s website. All information on the Company’s
new initiatives will be first disseminated via SGXNET followed by a news release, which will also be available on the website. Price sensitive information
is first publicly released, either before the Company meets with any group of investors or analysts or simultaneously with such meetings. Results and
annual reports are announced or issued within the period prescribed by the SGX-ST and are available on the Company’s website. The Company notifies
the date of the release of its quarterly results at least five days prior to the date of the results announcements through the SGXNET.
The Company has investor relations team and supported by external consultant firm in promoting communication with shareholders and analysts.
Contact information of the internal and external investor relations teams are made available on the Company website.
The AGM of the Company is a principal forum for dialogue and interaction with all shareholders. All shareholders will receive the annual report of the
Company and notice of AGM. At the AGM, shareholders will be given the opportunity to voice their views and to direct questions regarding the Group to
the directors. The Chairmen of the AC, NC and RC would be present at the AGMs to answer any question relating to the work of these committees. The
external auditors are also present to address shareholders’ queries about the conduct of the audit and preparation and content of the auditors’ report.
Shareholders are given the right to vote on the resolutions at general meetings. Each item of special business included in the notice of the meeting is
accompanied, where appropriate, by an explanation for the proposed resolution. Each distinct issue will be carried in a separate resolution. The results
of all general meetings of the Company are notified and released through SGXNET after the meetings. Proxy form is sent with the notice of general
meeting to all shareholders so that those shareholders who are unable to attend the general meeting in person can appoint a proxy or proxies to attend
and vote on their behalf. The Company’s Articles of Association allow a shareholder of the Company to appoint up to two proxies to attend and vote at
all general meetings on his/her behalf.

The Company has established procedures to ensure that all transactions with interested persons are reported in a timely manner to the AC and that the
transactions are carried out on an arm’s length basis. There were no material interested person transactions entered into by the Group for the financial
year under review.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS
Save for the service agreements entered into between the Executive Directors and the Company, there was no material contract entered into by the
Company and its subsidiaries involving the interests of any director or controlling shareholders subsisting at the end of the financial year ended 31
December 2011.
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INTERESTED PERSON TRANSACTIONS

52

C O R P O R AT E G O V E R N A N C E S TAT E M E N T

DEALINGS IN SECURITIES
The Company has adopted an internal code on dealings in securities. Directors, senior management and employees (collectively “Officers”) of the
Group who have access to price-sensitive, financial or confidential information are not permitted to deal in the Company’s securities during the periods
commencing two weeks before announcement of the Group’s quarterly results and one month before the announcement of the Group’s yearly results
and ending on the date of announcement of such result, or when they are in possession of unpublished price-sensitive information on the Group. In
addition, the Officers of the Company are advised not to deal in the Company’s securities for a short term considerations and are expected to observe
the insider trading laws at all times even when dealing in securities within the permitted trading periods. Officers are to consult with the Group CFO or
Company Secretary before trading in Company’s securities and to confirm annually that they have complied with and not in breach of the code. The
Board is kept informed when a Director trades in the Company’s securities.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND PROCESSES
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The Company does not have a risk management committee. The senior management assumes the responsibility of the risk management function. The
senior management regularly assesses and reviews the Group’s business and operational environment in order to identify areas of significant business
and financial risks, such as credit risks, foreign exchange risks, liquidity risks and interest rate risks, as well as appropriate measures to control and
mitigate these risks.

F I N A N C I A L S TAT E M E N T S

54

Report of the Directors

59

Statement of Directors

60

Independent Auditor's Report

62

Statements of Financial Position

64

Consolidated Income Statement

65

Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income

66

Statements of Changes in Equity

68

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

70

Notes to Financial Statements

127

Statistics of Shareholdings

129

Notice of Annual General Meeting
Proxy Form

54

R eport O F T H E D I R E C T O R S
Year ended 31 December 2011

The directors present their report together with the audited financial statements of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2011 and
statement of financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2011.

1

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company in office at the date of this report are as follows:
Raymond Kim Goh
Francis Wong Chin Sing
Jean Pers
Yeo Chee Neng
Nitish Gupta
Yeo Jeu Nam
Oon Thian Seng
Chia Fook Eng

2

ARRANGEMENTS TO ENABLE DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND DEBENTURES
Neither at the end of nor at any time during the financial year was the Company a party to any arrangement whose object was to enable
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate other than as disclosed under Share Options on pages 55 to 57 of this report.

3

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND DEBENTURES
According to the register of directors' shareholdings, none of the directors holding office at the end of the financial year had any interests in
the shares or debentures of the Company or its related corporations except as follows:
Holdings registered in
name of director or nominee
At 1 January
At 31 December
2011
2011

Holdings in which director is
deemed to have an interest
At 1 January
At 31 December
2011
2011
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Swiber Holdings Limited
(Ordinary shares)
Raymond Kim Goh
Francis Wong Chin Sing
Jean Pers
Yeo Chee Neng
Nitish Gupta
Yeo Jeu Nam
Oon Thian Seng
Chia Fook Eng
Note
(1)

30,280,000
13,333,333
29,569,000
30,100,000
5,000,000
30,000
30,000
15,000

26,206,000
13,333,333
16,544,000
30,100,000
5,000,000
30,000
30,000
15,000

17,200,000(1)
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

These shares are the subject of a put option pursuant to the share financing transaction granted by Credit Suisse AG to Mr Goh, a call option granted by Mr Goh to Credit Suisse
AG, and a further call option granted by Credit Suisse AG to Mr Goh which has expired during the year.
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3

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Cont'd)

Related Corporation

Holdings registered in
name of director or nominee
At 1 January
At 31 December
2011
2011

Holdings in which director is
deemed to have an interest
At 1 January
At 31 December
2011
2011

Kreuz Holdings Limited
(Ordinary shares)
Raymond Kim Goh
Francis Wong Chin Sing
Jean Pers
Yeo Chee Neng
Nitish Gupta
Yeo Jeu Nam
Oon Thian Seng
Chia Fook Eng

1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
150,000
90,000
150,000

1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
–
1,000,000
150,000
60,000
150,000

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

There was no change in any of the abovementioned interests in the Company or in related corporation between the end of the financial year
and 21 January 2012.

4

DIRECTORS’ CONTRACTUAL BENEFITS
Since the end of previous financial year, no director has received or become entitled to receive a benefit by reason of a contract made by the
Company or a related corporation with the director or with a firm of which he is a member, or with a company in which he has a substantial
financial interest except for salaries, bonuses and other benefits as disclosed in the accompanying financial statements. Certain directors
received remuneration from related corporations in their capacity as directors and/or executives of those related corporations.

SHARE OPTIONS
(a)

Options to take up unissued shares
Swiber Employee Share Option Scheme
On 29 September 2006, the company adopted the Swiber Employee Share Option Scheme (“Scheme”) to grant share options to
eligible employees (including executive directors) and non-executive directors (including independent directors) of the Company and
its subsidiaries. Under the Scheme, the executive directors who are controlling shareholders and their respective associates shall not
be eligible to participate in the Scheme.
The Scheme is administered by Share Options Committee comprising the following members:
Yeo Jeu Nam
Chia Fook Eng
Oon Thian Seng
Raymond Kim Goh
The Scheme shall continue in operation for a maximum period of 10 years commencing from 29 September 2006, provided always
that the Scheme may continue for any further period thereafter with the approval of the shareholders by ordinary resolution in general
meeting and of any relevant authorities which may then be required.
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5

SHARE OPTIONS (Cont'd)
The Share Options Committee has the absolute discretion to grant options with an exercise price at a discount to market price (subject
to a maximum limit of 20%) or at a price equal to the average of the last dealt prices for the shares on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited for the five consecutive market days immediately preceding the relevant date of grant of the options. A one
year vesting period is required commencing from the first date of grant if offer price is not at a discount or a two years vesting period
is required commencing from the first date of grant if offer price is at a discount. The total number of shares over which options may
be granted under the Scheme on any date, when added to the number of shares issued and issuable in respect of all options granted
under the Scheme and all awards granted under Swiber Performance Share Plan and all shares, option or awards granted under any
other share option schemes or share plans of the Company shall not exceed 15% of the issued share capital of the Company on the
date preceding the date of the relevant grant. The options granted under the Scheme will have a life span of five years. Options granted
may lapse or be exercised earlier in circumstances which includes the termination of the employment of the participants in the group,
the bankruptcy of the participants, the death of the participants, a take-over or winding up of the Company.

(b)

Unissued shares under option
Swiber Employee Share Option Scheme
Details of share options are disclosed in Note 25 to the financial statements.
During the financial year, the following options in respect of unissued ordinary shares in the Company were granted:

Date of grant

At 1 January
2011

Granted

At 31 December
2011

Exercise price
per share

26 January 2011

–

15,000,000

15,000,000

S$0.97

Exercise
period
26 January 2012 to
25 January 2016

The details of share options granted under the Scheme to the directors of the Company are as follows:
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Name of Director

Options granted
during the year

Aggregate granted
since commencement
of Scheme to
31 December 2011

Raymond Kim Goh
5,000,000
Francis Wong Chin Sing
3,000,000
Jean Pers
2,000,000
Yeo Chee Neng
2,000,000
Nitish Gupta
2,000,000
Yeo Jeu Nam
400,000
Oon Thian Seng
300,000
Chia Fook Eng
300,000
				
Except as disclosed above, there were no participants to
associates.

5,000,000
3,000,000
2,000,000
2,000,000
2,000,000
400,000
300,000
300,000

Aggregate exercise
since commencement
of Scheme to
31 December 2011

Aggregate
outstanding as at
31 December 2011

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

5,000,000
3,000,000
2,000,000
2,000,000
2,000,000
400,000
300,000
300,000

the Scheme who are controlling shareholders of the Company and their

No participants to the Scheme received options which represents 5% or more of the total number of shares available under the
Scheme and no shares were issued at a discount to the market price.
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5

SHARE OPTIONS (Cont'd)
Swiber Performance Share Plan
The Swiber Performance Share Plan (the “Plan”) was approved by the shareholders on 29 September 2006. The purpose of the
Plan is to provide eligible participants with an opportunity to participate in the equity of the company and to motivate them towards
excellence performance and to maintain high level of contribution to the group. Full-time employees of the group (including executive
directors) and non-executive directors (including independent directors) are eligible to participate in the Plan. Under the Plan, the
executive directors who are controlling shareholders and their respective associates shall not be eligible to participate in the Plan.
The Plan is administered by the Award Committees comprising the following members:
Yeo Jeu Nam
Chia Fook Eng
Oon Thian Seng
Raymond Kim Goh
The total number of new Swiber shares which may be issued pursuant to the awards granted on any date and total number of existing
shares which may be purchased from the market for delivery pursuant to awards granted under the Plan, when added to the number
of new Swiber Shares issued and issuable or existing shares delivered and deliverable in respect of all awards granted under the Plan,
all options granted under the Scheme and all shares, options or awards granted under any other share scheme of the Company shall
not exceed 15% of the number of issued shares of the Company on the day preceding the date of awards. The Plan is designed to
reward the participants by the issue of fully-paid shares free of charge according to the extent to which they complete certain timebase service conditions or achieve their performance targets over set performance periods. The Awards Committee has the absolute
discretion to determine the eligible participants in the Plan.
Details of share awards are disclosed in Note 25 to the financial statements.
During the financial year, the following shares awards in the Company were as follows:
At 1 January 2011

Granted

Vested

At 31 December 2011

26 January 2011

–

3,095,000

–

3,095,000

AUDIT COMMITTEE
At the end of financial year, the Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive directors and one executive director:
Yeo Jeu Nam (Chairman)
Oon Thian Seng
Chia Fook Eng
Francis Wong Chin Sing
The financial statements, accounting policies and system of internal accounting controls are the responsibility of the Board of Directors acting
through the Audit Committee.
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6

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Cont'd)
The Audit Committee has met six times during the financial year and has reviewed the following, where relevant, with the executive directors
and the external and internal auditors of the Company:
a)

the audit plans and results of the internal auditors’ examination and evaluation of the group’s systems of internal accounting controls;

b)

the group’s financial and operating results and accounting policies;

c)

the financial statements of the Company and the consolidated financial statements of the group before their submission to the
directors of the Company and external auditors’ report on those financial statements;

d)

the quarterly, half-yearly and annual announcements as well as the related press releases on the results and financial position of the
Company and the group;

e)

the co-operation and assistance given by the management to the group’s external auditors; and

f)

the re-appointment of the external auditors of the group.

The Audit Committee has full access to and has the co-operation of the management and has been given the resources required for it to
discharge its function properly. It also has full discretion to invite any director and executive officer to attend its meetings. The external
auditors have unrestricted access to the Audit Committee.
The Audit Committee has recommended to the directors the nomination of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, for re-appointment as external
auditors of the group at the forthcoming AGM of the Company.

7

AUDITORS
The independent auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, have expressed their willingness to accept re-appointment.
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ON BEHALF OF THE DIRECTORS

Raymond Kim Goh

Francis Wong Chin Sing

26 March 2012
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Year ended 31 December 2011

In the opinion of the directors,
(a)

the balance sheet of the Company and the consolidated financial statements of the Group as set out on pages 62 to 126 are drawn up so as
to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2011 and of the results of the business,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Group for the financial year then ended; and

(b)

at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts when they fall due.

ON BEHALF OF THE DIRECTORS

Raymond Kim Goh

Francis Wong Chin Sing
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF SWIBER HOLDINGS LIMITED

Year ended 31 December 2011

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Swiber Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 62 to 126, which comprise the statements of financial position of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2011, the consolidated
income statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with the provisions of the Singapore
Companies Act (the “Act”) and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls
sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are
properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair profit and loss accounts and balance sheets and
to maintain accountability of assets.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore
Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the statement of financial position of the Company are properly drawn up in
accordance with the provisions of the Act and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2011 and the results, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group for the financial year ended on
that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company and by those subsidiaries incorporated in Singapore of
which we are the auditors have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF SWIBER HOLDINGS LIMITED

Year ended 31 December 2011

Other Matters
The financial statements for the preceding financial year were reported on by auditors other than PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. The auditors' report
dated 8 April 2011 issued by the predecessor auditors on the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2010 was unqualified.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Public Accountants and Certified Public Accountants
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Singapore, 26 March 2012
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S TAT E M E N T S O F F I N A N C I A L P O S I T I O N
Year ended 31 December 2011

Group
Note

Company

2011
US$’000

2010
US$’000

2011
US$’000

2010
US$’000

116,458
276,660
4,768
91,696
118,832
–
608,414

137,847
251,425
1,561
20,224
103,821
1,334
516,212

8,476
–
–
–
764,116
–
772,592

20,085
–
–
–
434,680
–
454,765

552,736
309
–
110,447
20,238
82,808
–
–
766,538

316,893
309
–
57,190
18,504
75,666
5,783
1,414
475,759

583
–
249,628
33,428
–
16,305
–
–
299,944

985
–
249,962
7,173
–
17,594
5,783
–
281,497

1,374,952

991,971

1,072,536

736,262

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables
Construction contract work-in-progress
Inventories
Other assets and receivables
Assets held for sale
Total current assets

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Goodwill
Subsidiaries
Associates
Joint ventures
Other assets and receivables
Derivative financial instruments
Deferred income tax assets
Total non-current assets
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Total assets

4
5
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
8
15
16
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S TAT E M E N T S O F F I N A N C I A L P O S I T I O N
Year ended 31 December 2011

Group

Company

2011
US$’000

2010
US$’000

2011
US$’000

2010
US$’000

17
18
19
20
21
22

154,782
98,106
105,757
128,445
102,570
4,384
8,608
602,652

71,398
79,385
83,018
76,418
–
1,899
8,671
320,789

–
462,180
–
128,445
102,570
184
143
693,522

–
232,441
–
76,418
–
181
5,945
314,985

19
20
21
22
15
16

76,625
151,330
–
7,840
3,908
9,005
248,708

48,195
146,249
113,813
3,407
38
3,208
314,910

–
151,330
–
225
3,855
19
155,429

–
146,249
113,813
413
–
72
260,547

23
24
25
25
25
25

158,006
(2,507)
(1,991)
538
(8,206)
4,009
209,314
359,163
164,429
523,592

158,006
(2,507)
(1,704)
508
(8,206)
–
179,569
325,666
30,606
356,272

158,006
(2,507)
(1,991)
–
–
4,009
66,068
223,585
–
223,585

158,006
(2,507)
(1,704)
–
–
–
6,935
160,730
–
160,730

1,374,952

991,971

1,072,536

736,262

Note

Current liabilities
Trade payables
Other payables
Bank loans
Bonds
Convertible loan notes
Finance leases
Income tax payable
Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Bank loans
Bonds
Convertible loan notes
Finance leases
Derivative financial instruments
Deferred income tax liabilities
Total non-current liabilities
Capital, reserves and non-controlling interests
Share capital
Treasury shares
Hedging reserve
Translation reserve
Equity reserve
Employees’ share option reserve
Retained earnings
Equity attributable to owners of the company
Non-controlling interests
Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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C O N S O L I D AT E D I N C O M E S TAT E M E N T
Year ended 31 December 2011

Group
Note

2011
US$’000

2010
US$’000

26

654,487

465,743

Cost of sales

(541,541)

(360,128)

Gross profit

112,946

105,615

35,713
(58,523)
(787)
(22,433)
2,489

40,730
(44,279)
(39,022)
(20,702)
3,812

69,405

46,154

(27,227)
42,178

(6,758)
39,396

32,067
10,111
42,178

37,269
2,127
39,396

6.34
3.72

7.37
7.37

Revenue

Other operating income
Administrative expenses
Other operating expenses
Finance costs
Share of profits of associates and joint ventures

27

28
13,14

Profit before tax
Income tax expense
Profit for the year

29

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share (in US cents):
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Basic
Diluted

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

32
32
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C O N S O L I D AT E D S TAT E M E N T O F C O M P R E H E N S I V E I N C O M E
Year ended 31 December 2011

Group
2011
US$’000

2010
US$’000

42,178

39,396

Cash flow hedges
- Fair value losses
- Reclassification
Currency translation differences on translation of foreign operations

(2,467)
2,180
30

(2,334)
(1,014)
1,627

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

41,921

37,675

31,810
10,111
41,921

35,631
2,044
37,675

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests
Total

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Total comprehensive income attributable to:
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S TAT E M E N T S O F C H A N G E S I N E Q U I T Y
Year ended 31 December 2011

Equity
Employees’
attributable
share
to owners
NonHedging Translation Equity
option
Retained
of the
controlling
reserve
reserve
reserve
reserve
earnings company interests
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000

Share
capital
US$’000

Treasury
shares
US$’000

158,006

(2,507)

(1,704)

508

(8,206)

–

179,569

325,666

30,606

356,272

Total comprehensive
income for the year

–

–

(287)

30

–

–

32,067

31,810

10,111

41,921

Value of employee
services received
for issue of share
options

–

–

–

–

–

4,009

–

4,009

–

4,009

Preference shares
issued by a
subsidiary

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

123,750

123,750

Change of interest
in subsidiary

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

(38)

(38)

Dvidends paid
on preference
shares issued by a
subsidiary

–

–

–

–

–

–

(2,322)

(2,322)

–

(2,322)

158,006

(2,507)

(1,991)

538

(8,206)

4,009

209,314

359,163

164,429

523,592

Total
US$’000

Group
Balance at
1 January 2011
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Balance at
31 December 2011

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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S TAT E M E N T S O F C H A N G E S I N E Q U I T Y
Year ended 31 December 2011

Share
capital
US$’000

Treasury
shares
US$’000

Hedging
reserve
US$’000

158,006

(2,507)

1,644

Total comprehensive
income for the year

–

–

Dilution in equity interest
of subsidiary

–

Acquisition of subsidiary

Translation
reserve
US$’000

Equity
attributable
to owners
Nonof the
controlling
company
interests
US$’000
US$’000

Equity
reserve
US$’000

Retained
earnings
US$’000

493

–

139,947

297,583

5,753

303,336

(3,348)

1,710

–

37,269

35,631

2,044

37,675

–

–

–

(8,044)

–

(8,044)

23,350

15,306

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

58

58

Change of interest in
subsidiary

–

–

–

–

(162)

–

(162)

162

–

Disposal of subsidiary

–

–

–

(1,695)

–

2,353

658

(761)

(103)

158,006

(2,507)

(1,704)

508

(8,206)

179,569

325,666

30,606

356,272

Total
US$’000

Balance at
1 January 2010

Balance at
31 December 2010

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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C O N S O L I D AT E D S TAT E M E N T O F C A S H F L O W S
Year ended 31 December 2011

Group
2011
US$’000
Operating activities
Profit after income tax
Adjustments for:
Allowance for impairment of receivables
Income tax expenses
Bad debts written off
Reversal of doubtful debt expenses
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Employees' share options/awards expense
Property, plant and equipment written off
Interest income
Finance costs
Fair value loss of derivative financial instrument not designated as hedge instruments
Fair value (gain)/loss on financial liabilities
designated as fair value through profit or loss
Unrealised currency translation losses
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Gain on disposal of assets held for sale
Gain on disposal of joint venture
(Gain)/loss on disposal of subsidiaries
Share of profit of associates and joint ventures
Change in working capital, net of effects from acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries:
Trade receivables
Construction work-in-progress
Inventories
Other assets and receivables
Trade payables
Other payables
Cash generated by/(used in) operations
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Income taxes paid
Interest expense paid
Net cash generated by/(used in) operating activities

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

2010
US$’000

42,178
–
27,227
31
(115)
20,801
4,009
31
(2,197)
22,433
15

39,396
10,090
6,758
48
(343)
14,480
–
15
(1,856)
20,702
38

(11,243)
5,042
(1,007)
(830)
–
(788)
(2,489)
103,098
(25,151)
(3,207)
(71,472)
(69,672)
83,384
31,943
48,923

9,313
11,676
(5,177)
(26,576)
(1,908)
43
(3,812)
72,887
34,647
(1,561)
(15,809)
(59,929)
8,021
(129,598)
(91,342)

(20,070)
(12,809)

(7,552)
(16,580)

16,044

(115,474)
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C O N S O L I D AT E D S TAT E M E N T O F C A S H F L O W S
Year ended 31 December 2011

2010
US$’000

2,197
8,646
–
20,282
2,164
115
(171,932)
–
–
(38)
(18,786)
–
–
(157,352)

1,856
4,650
1,161
32,101
316,942
(3,678)
(126,733)
(157,693)
355
–
(135)
(5,109)
(15,015)
48,702

869
135,773
(7,649)
(78,680)
240,046
(169,459)
–
120,900

(7,348)
141,631
(918)
(79,737)
264,775
(219,603)
15,345
114,145

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents

(20,408)

47,373

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Effects of exchange rate changes on the cash balance held in foreign currencies
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

123,908
(112)
103,388

76,567
(32)
123,908

103,249
13,161
48
116,458
(13,070)
103,388

121,794
15,986
67
137,847
(13,939)
123,908

Note
Investing activities
Interest income received
Dividend received from associates
Dividend received from joint ventures
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of assets held for sale
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Purchases of assets held for sale
Acquisition of subsidiary
Investment in subsidiaries
Investment in associate
Investment in a joint venture
Advances to third party
Net cash (used in)/generated by investing activities

13
14

(Note A)

Financing activities
Pledged deposits
Proceeds on issue of bonds
Repayment of obligations under finance leases
Redemption of bonds
New bank loans raised
Repayments of bank loans
Contribution from non-controlling interest of subsidiary
Net cash generated by financing activities

Cash and cash equivalents consists of:
Cash at bank
Fixed deposits
Cash on hand
Less: Pledged cash placed with banks
Total

4

4

Notes to the consolidated statement of cash flows
During the financial year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment with an aggregate cost of US$297,553,000 (2010: US$130,063,000)
(A)
of which US$1,871,000 (2010 : US$3,330,000) and US$123,750,000 (2010: Nil) were acquired under finance lease and redeemable preference
share arrangements respectively.

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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N O T E S T O F I N A N C I A L S TAT E M E N T S
Year ended 31 December 2011

1

GENERAL
Swiber Holdings Limited is listed on the Singapore Exchange and incorporated and domiciled in Singapore. The address of its registered office
is 12 International Business Park, #04-01 Swiber@IBP, Singapore 609920.
The principal activities of the Company are that of investment holding and provision of corporate services. The principal activities of the
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are disclosed in Notes 12, 13 and 14 respectively.

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1

Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (“FRS”). The financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except as disclosed in the accounting policies below.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. It also requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and assumptions. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in
Note 3.
Interpretations and amendments to published standards effective in 2011
On 1 January 2011, the Group adopted the new or amended FRSs and Interpretations of FRSs (“INT FRSs”) that are mandatory for application
from that date. Changes to the Group’s accounting policies have been made as required, in accordance with the transitional provisions in the
respective FRS and INT FRS.
The adoption of these new or amended FRS and INT FRS did not result in substantial changes to the Group’s and Company’s accounting
policies and had no material effect on the amounts reported for the current or prior years.

2.2

REVENUE RECOGNITION
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue are presented, net of value-added tax, rebates and
discounts, and after eliminating sales within the Group.
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The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue and related cost can be reliably measured, it is probable that the collectability of
the related receivables is reasonably assured and when the specific criteria for each of the Group’s activities are met as follows:
Charter hire income
Charter hire income from vessels, derived from the offshore marine support business, is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of
the charter agreement.
Rendering of service
Engineering, shipbuilding and repair work income from short-term contracts is recognised as and when service is rendered.
Revenue from engineering and shipbuilding long-term contracts are recognised in accordance with the group’s accounting policy on
construction contracts (Note 2.9).
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2.2

REVENUE RECOGNITION (Cont'd)
Construction contract
Please refer to the paragraph "Construction contracts" for the accounting policy for revenue from construction contracts.
Interest income
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable.
Dividend income
Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established.

GROUP ACCOUNTING
(a)

Subsidiaries
(i)

Consolidation
Subsidiaries are entities (including special purpose entities) over which the Group has power to govern the financial and
operating policies so as to obtain benefits from its activities, generally accompanied by a shareholding giving rise to a
majority of the voting rights.
The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing
whether the Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are de-consolidated from the date on which control ceases.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group
entities are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated but are considered an impairment indicator of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
Non-controlling interests are that part of the net results of operations and of net assets of a subsidiary attributable to the
interests which are not owned directly or indirectly by the equity holders of the Company. They are shown separately in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and balance sheet. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to the non-controlling interests based on their respective interests in a subsidiary, even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

(ii)

Acquisitions
The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business combinations by the Group. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary or business comprises the fair value of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred also includes the fair value of any contingent consideration
arrangement and the fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with limited
exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree at the date of
acquisition either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s net identifiable assets.
The excess of (i) the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and fair value on the
acquisition-date of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the (ii) fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill.
Please refer to the paragraph “Intangible assets - Goodwill” for the subsequent accounting policy on goodwill.
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2.3

GROUP ACCOUNTING (Cont'd)
(a)

Subsidiaries (Cont'd)
(iii)

Disposals
When a change in the Group ownership interest in a subsidiary results in a loss of control over the subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of the subsidiary including any goodwill are derecognised. Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are also reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained earnings if required by
a specific Standard.
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Any retained equity interest in the entity is remeasured at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the
retained interest at the date when control is lost and its fair value is recognised in profit or loss.
(b)

Transactions with non-controlling interests
Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control over the subsidiary are accounted for
as transactions with equity owners of the Company. Any difference between the change in the carrying amounts of the non-controlling
interest and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised within equity attributable to the equity holders of the
Company.

(c)

Associated companies
Associated companies are entities over which the Group has significant influence, but not control, generally accompanied by a
shareholding giving rise to voting rights of 20% and above but not exceeding 50%. Investments in associated companies are
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting less impairment losses, if any.
(i)

Acquisitions
Investments in associated companies are initially recognised at cost. The cost of an acquisition is measured at the fair value
of the assets given, equity instruments issued or liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly
attributable to the acquisition. Goodwill on associated companies represents the excess of the cost of acquisition of the
associate over the Group’s share of the fair value of the identifiable net assets of the associate and is included in the carrying
amount of the investments.

(ii)

Equity method of accounting
In applying the equity method of accounting, the Group’s share of its associated companies’ post-acquisition profits or
losses are recognised in profit or loss and its share of post-acquisition other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income. These post-acquisition movements and distributions received from the associated companies are
adjusted against the carrying amount of the investments. When the Group’s share of losses in an associated company equals
or exceeds its interest in the associated company, including any other unsecured non-current receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has obligations to make or has made payments on behalf of the associated company.
When the Group sells assets to associated companies, the Group recognises only the portion of gains or losses on the sale
of assets that is attributable to the interest of the other venturers. The Group recognises the full amount of any loss when the
sale provides evidence of a reduction in the net realisable value of current assets or an impairment loss.
Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associated companies are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the associated companies. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. The accounting policies of associated companies have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the accounting policies adopted by the Group.
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2.3

GROUP ACCOUNTING (Cont'd)
(iii)

Disposals
Investments in associated companies are derecognised when the Group loses significant influence. Any retained equity
interest in the entity is remeasured at its fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the retained interest at
the date when significant influence is lost and its fair value is recognised in profit or loss.
Gains and losses arising from partial disposals or dilutions in investments in associated companies in which significant
influence is retained are recognised in profit or loss.
Please refer to the paragraph “Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associated companies” for the accounting
policy on investments in associated companies in the separate financial statements of the Company.

(d)

Joint ventures
The Group’s joint ventures are entities over which the Group has contractual arrangements to jointly share control over the economic
activity of the entities with one or more parties. The Group’s interest in joint ventures is accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements using equity method.
In applying the equity method of accounting, the Group’s share of its joint ventures’ post-acquisition profits or losses are recognised in
profit or loss and its share of post-acquisition other comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive income. These postacquisition movements and distributions received from the associated companies are adjusted against the carrying amount of the
investments. When the Group’s share of losses in a joint venture company equals or exceeds its interest in the associated company,
including any other unsecured non-current receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has obligations to make
or has made payments on behalf of the associated company.
When the Group sells assets to a joint venture, the Group recognises only the portion of gains or losses on the sale of assets that is
attributable to the interest of the other venturers. The Group recognises the full amount of any loss when the sale provides evidence
of a reduction in the net realisable value of current assets or an impairment loss.
The accounting policies of joint ventures have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting policies
adopted by the Group.
Please refer to the paragraph “Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associated companies” for the accounting policy on
investments in joint ventures in the separate financial statements of the Company.

FINANCIAL ASSETS
(a)

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, heldto-maturity, and available-for sale. The classification depends on the nature of the asset and the purpose for which the assets were
acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition and in the case of assets classified as
held-to maturity, re-evaluates this designation at each balance sheet date.
(i)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets designated as at fair value through profit or loss at inception are those that are managed and their
performances are evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented Group investment strategy. Assets in this
category are presented as current assets if they are either held for trading or are expected to be realised within 12 months
after the balance sheet date.
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2.4

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont'd)
(a)

(b)

Classification (Cont'd)
(ii)

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. They are presented as current assets, except for those expected to be realised later than 12 months after the
balance sheet date which are presented as non-current assets. Loans and receivables are presented as “trade receivables”
(Note 5) and “cash and cash equivalents” (Note 4) on the balance sheet.

(iii)

Held-to-maturity financial assets
Held-to-maturity financial assets, are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities
that the Group’s management has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. If the Group were to sell other than an
insignificant amount of held-to-maturity financial assets, the whole category would be tainted and reclassified as availablefor-sale. They are presented as non-current assets, except for those maturing within 12 months after the balance sheet date
which are presented as current assets.

(iv)

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets, are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or not classified in any of
the other categories. They are presented as non-current assets unless the investment matures or management intends to
dispose of the assets within 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Recognition and derecognition
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade date – the date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. On disposal of a financial asset,
the difference between the carrying amount and the sale proceeds is recognised in profit or loss. Any amount in other comprehensive
income relating to that asset is reclassified to profit or loss.
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Trade receivables that are factored out to banks and other financial institutions with recourse to the Group are not derecognised until
the recourse period has expired and the risks and rewards of the receivables have been fully transferred. The corresponding cash
received from the financial institutions is recorded as borrowings.
(c)

Initial measurement
Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs except for financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, which are recognised at fair value. Transaction costs for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately as expenses.

(d)

Subsequent measurement
Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans
and receivables and held-to-maturity financial assets are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Changes in the fair values of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss including the effects of currency translation, interest
and dividends, are recognised in profit or loss when the changes arise.
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2.4

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont'd)
(e)

Impairment
The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired and recognises an allowance for impairment when such evidence exists.
(i)

Loans and receivables/Held-to-maturity financial assets
Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy, and default or significant delay
in payments are objective evidence that these financial assets are impaired. The carrying amount of these assets is reduced
through the use of an impairment allowance account which is calculated as the difference between the carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. When the asset becomes
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
recognised against the same line item in profit or loss.
The impairment allowance is reduced through profit or loss in a subsequent period when the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the related decrease can be objectively measured. The carrying amount of the asset previously impaired is
increased to the extent that the new carrying amount does not exceed the amortised cost had no impairment been recognised
in prior periods.

(ii)

Available-for-sale financial assets
In addition to the objective evidence of impairment described in Note 2.4(e) (i), a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an equity security below its cost is considered as an indicator that the available-for-sale financial asset is impaired.
If any evidence of impairment exists, the cumulative loss that was previously recognised in other comprehensive income
is reclassified to profit or loss. The cumulative loss is measured as the difference between the acquisition cost (net of any
principal repayments and amortisation) and the current fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognised as an
expense. The impairment losses recognised as an expense on equity securities are not reversed through profit or loss.

(f)

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid.
They are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If
not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value, and subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.6

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES
A derivative financial instrument is initially recognised at its fair value on the date the contract is entered into and is subsequently carried at its
fair value. The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and
if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Group designates each hedge as either: (a) fair value hedge (b) cash flow hedge.
Fair value changes on derivatives that are not designated or do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in profit or loss when the
changes arise. The Group documents at the inception of the transaction the relationship between the hedging instruments and hedged items,
as well as its risk management objective and strategies for undertaking various hedge transactions. The Group also documents its assessment,
both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives designated as hedging instruments are highly effective in
offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows of the hedged items.
The carrying amount of a derivative designated as a hedge is presented as a non-current asset or liability if the remaining expected life of
the hedged item is more than 12 months, and as a current asset or liability if the remaining expected life of the hedged item is less than 12
months. The fair value of a trading derivative is presented as a current asset or liability.
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Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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2.6

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES (Cont'd)
Cash flow hedge
The Group has entered into interest rate swaps that are cash flow hedges for the Group’s exposure to interest rate risk on its borrowings. These
contracts entitle the Group to receive interest at floating rates on notional principal amounts and oblige the Group to pay interest at fixed rates
on the same notional principal amounts, thus allowing the Group to raise borrowings at floating rates and swap them into fixed rates. The fair
value changes on the effective portion of interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges are recognised in other comprehensive income,
accumulated in the fair value reserve and reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged interest expense on the borrowings is recognised in
profit or loss. The fair value changes on the ineffective portion of interest rate swaps are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

2.7

FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
The fair values of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as exchange traded and over-the-counter securities and derivatives) are
based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. The quoted market prices used for financial assets are the current bid prices; the
appropriate quoted market prices for financial liabilities are the current asking prices.
The fair values of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market are determined by using valuation techniques. The Group uses a
variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at each balance sheet date. Where appropriate, quoted
market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments are used. Valuation techniques, such as discounted cash flow analyses, are also used to
determine the fair values of the financial instruments. The fair values of currency forwards are determined using actively quoted forward exchange
rates. The fair values of interest rate swaps are calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at actively quoted
interest rates. The fair values of current financial assets and liabilities carried at amortised cost approximate their carrying amounts.

2.8

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES
The Company has issued corporate guarantees to banks for borrowings of its subsidiaries. These guarantees are financial guarantees as they
require the Company to reimburse the banks if the subsidiaries fail to make principal or interest payments when due in accordance with the
terms of their borrowings.
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Financial guarantees are initially recognised at their fair values plus transaction costs in the Company’s balance sheet. Financial guarantees
are subsequently amortised to profit or loss over the period of the subsidiaries’ borrowings, unless it is probable that the Company will
reimburse the bank for an amount higher than the unamortised amount. In this case, the financial guarantees shall be carried at the expected
amount payable to the bank in the Company’s balance sheet.
Intra-group transactions are eliminated on consolidation.

2.9

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS
When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, contract revenue and contract costs are recognised as revenue and
expenses respectively by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the balance sheet date (“percentage-of-completion
method”). When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the extent of contract
costs incurred that are likely to be recoverable. When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected
loss is recognised as an expense immediately.
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2.9

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS (Cont'd)
Contract revenue comprises the initial amount of revenue agreed in the contract and variations in the contract work and claims that can be
measured reliably. A variation or a claim is recognised as contract revenue when it is probable that the customer will approve the variation
or negotiations have reached an advanced stage such that it is probable that the customer will accept the claim. Depending on the nature of
the contract, the stage of completion is measured by reference to the physical proportion of contract work completed, or to the proportion of
contract costs incurred to date to the estimated total costs for the contract. Costs incurred during the financial year in connection with future
activity on a contract are excluded from the costs incurred to date when determining the stage of completion of a contract. Such costs are
shown as construction contract work-in-progress on the balance sheet unless it is not probable that such contract costs are recoverable from
the customers, in which case, such costs are recognised as an expense immediately.
At the balance sheet date, the cumulative costs incurred plus recognised profit (less recognised loss) on each contract is compared against the
progress billings. Where the cumulative costs incurred plus the recognised profits (less recognised losses) exceed progress billings, the balance
is presented as due from customers on construction contracts within “trade receivables”. Where progress billings exceed the cumulative costs
incurred plus recognised profits (less recognised losses), the balance is presented as due to customers on construction contracts within “trade
payables”. Progress billings not yet paid by customers and retentions by customers are included within “trade receivables”. Advances received
are included within “trade payables”.

LEASES
(a)

When the Group is the lessee
The Group leases motor vehicles and certain plant and machinery under finance leases, vessel, and land, dormitories and certain plant
and machinery under operating leases from non-related parties.
(i)

Lessee - Finance leases
Leases where the Group assumes substantially all risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the leased assets are classified
as finance leases. The leased assets and the corresponding lease liabilities (net of finance charges) under finance leases are
recognised on the balance sheet as plant and equipment and borrowings respectively, at the inception of the leases based on
the lower of the fair value of the leased assets and the present value of the minimum lease payments.
Each lease payment is apportioned between the finance expense and the reduction of the outstanding lease liability. The finance
expense is recognised in profit or loss on a basis that reflects a constant periodic rate of interest on the finance lease liability.

(ii)

(b)

Lessee - Operating leases
Leases where substantially all risks and rewards incidental to ownership are retained by the lessors are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessors) are recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

When the Group is the lessor:
The Group leases equipment under finance leases and building and certain vessels under operating leases to non-related parties.
(i)

Lessor - Finance leases
Leases where the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the leased assets to
the lessees, are classified as finance leases.
The leased asset is derecognised and the present value of the lease receivable (net of initial direct costs for negotiating
and arranging the lease) is recognised on the balance sheet and included in “trade and other receivables”. The difference
between the gross receivable and the present value of the lease receivable is recognised as unearned finance income.
Each lease payment received is applied against the gross investment in the finance lease receivable to reduce both the
principal and the unearned finance income. The finance income is recognised in profit or loss on a basis that reflects a
constant periodic rate of return on the net investment in the finance lease receivable.
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2.10

LEASES (Cont'd)
(b)

When the Group is the lessor: (Cont'd)
(i)
Lessor - Finance leases (Cont'd)
Initial direct costs incurred by the Group in negotiating and arranging finance leases are added to finance lease receivables
and recognised as an expense in profit or loss over the lease term on the same basis as the lease income.
(ii)

Lessor - Operating leases
Leases where the Group retains substantially all risks and rewards incidental to ownership are classified as operating leases.
Rental income from operating leases (net of any incentives given to the lessees) is recognised in profit or loss on a straightline basis over the lease term.
Initial direct costs incurred by the Group in negotiating and arranging operating leases are added to the carrying amount of
the leased assets and recognised as an expense in profit or loss over the lease term on the same basis as the lease income.

2.11

DIVIDENDS
Dividends are recognised when the dividends are approved for payment.

2.12

NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
Non-current assets classified as assets held for sale are carried at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell if their carrying
amount is recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. The assets are not depreciated or amortised
while they are classified as held-for-sale. Any impairment loss on initial classification and subsequent measurement is recognised as an
expense. Any subsequent increase in fair value less costs to sell (not exceeding the accumulated impairment loss that has been previously
recognised) is recognised in profit or loss.
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2.13

INVENTORIES
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost for consumables and spare parts are determined using the weighted
average method and pipe lines using the first in first out method. Cost of work-in-progress comprises direct materials and, where applicable,
direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads (based on normal operating capacity) but excludes borrowing costs. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and applicable variable
selling expenses.

2.14

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(a)

Measurement
(i)
Property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost and subsequently carried at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses.
(ii)

Components of costs
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment initially recognised includes its purchase price and any cost that is
directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management. Cost also includes borrowing costs (refer to Note 2.16 on borrowing costs).
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2.14

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)
(b)

Depreciation
Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost, other than construction-in-progress, over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method, on the following bases:
Leasehold property
Vessels
Transportation equipment
Furniture and equipment
Motor vehicles
Drydocking
Cranes and machineries

–
–
–
–
–
–
–

Over the term of the lease
18 years, net of residual value
3 to 8 years
3 to 20 years
10 years
3 years
20 years

The estimated useful lives, residual value and depreciation method are reviewed at each balance sheet date, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets or, if there is
no certainty that the lessee will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset shall be fully depreciated over the shorter of
the lease term and its useful life.
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment under construction-in-progress, which includes costs for vessels under construction,
commences when these assets are ready for its intended use.
Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment that has already been recognised is added to the carrying amount
of the asset only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance expenses are recognised in profit or loss when incurred.

(d)

Disposal
On disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment, the difference between the disposal proceeds and its carrying amount is
recognised in profit or loss within “gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment – net”.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses on or after 1 January 2010 represents the excess of (i) the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over (ii) the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired.
Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries and businesses prior to 1 January 2010 and on acquisition of joint ventures and associated companies
represents the excess of the cost of the acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable assets acquired.
Goodwill on subsidiaries is recognised separately as intangible assets and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill on
associated companies and joint ventures are included in the carrying amount of the investments.
Gains and losses on the disposal of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associated companies include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to
the entity sold, except for goodwill arising from acquisitions prior to 1 January 2001. Such goodwill was adjusted against retained profits in
the year of acquisition and is not recognised in profit or loss on disposal.
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2.16

BORROWING COSTS
Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method except for those costs that are directly attributable to the
assets under construction. This includes those costs on borrowings acquired specifically for assets under construction, as well as those in
relation to general borrowings used to finance the and assets under construction.
Borrowing costs on general borrowings are capitalised by applying a capitalisation rate to construction or development expenditures that are
financed by general borrowings.

2.17

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
(a)

Goodwill
Goodwill recognised separately as an intangible asset is tested for impairment annually and whenever there is indication that the
goodwill may be impaired. For the purpose of impairment testing of goodwill, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s cashgenerating-units (“CGU”) expected to benefit from synergies arising from the business combination.
An impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of a CGU, including the goodwill, exceeds the recoverable amount of the
CGU. The recoverable amount of a CGU is the higher of the CGU’s fair value less cost to sell and value-in-use. The total impairment
loss of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the CGU and then to the other assets of the CGU
pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the CGU.
An impairment loss on goodwill is recognised as an expense and is not reversed in a subsequent period.

(b)

Property, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiaries, associated companies and joint ventures
Property, plant and equipment and investments in subsidiaries, associated companies and joint ventures are tested for impairment
whenever there is any objective evidence or indication that these assets may be impaired.
For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use)
is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets. If this is the case, the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs.

S W IB E R H OL D ING S L IMIT ED A N N UA L R EP ORT 2011

If the recoverable amount of the asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or
CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
The difference between the carrying amount and recoverable amount is recognised as an impairment loss in profit or loss.
An impairment loss for an asset is reversed if, and only if, there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s
recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The carrying amount of this asset is increased to its revised
recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any
accumulated amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of impairment loss for an asset other than goodwill is recognised in profit or loss, unless the asset is carried at revalued
amount, in which case, such reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. However, to the extent that an impairment loss on the same
revalued asset was previously recognised as an expense, a reversal of that impairment is also credited to profit or loss.
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2.18

PROVISIONS
Provisions are recognised when the group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is more likely than
not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Other provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects the current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as finance expense.
Changes in the estimated timing or amount of the expenditure or discount rate are recognised in profit or loss when the changes arise.

2.19

BORROWINGS
Borrowings are presented as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the
balance sheet date, in which case they are presented as non-current liabilities.

2.20

(a)

Borrowings
Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value (net of transaction costs) and subsequently carried at amortised cost. Any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

(b)

Convertible foreign currency loan notes
Convertible foreign currency loan notes are designated as a financial liability at fair value through profit or loss. When the conversion
option of the convertible foreign currency loan notes is exercised, the carrying amounts of convertible foreign currency loan notes are
derecognised with a corresponding recognition of share capital.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associated companies are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses in the Company’s
balance sheet. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associated companies, the difference between disposal proceeds
and the carrying amounts of the investments are recognised in profit or loss.

EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION
Employee benefits are recognised as an expense, unless the cost qualifies to be capitalised as an asset.
(a)

Defined contribution plans
Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the Group pays fixed contributions into separate entities
such as the Central Provident Fund on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid.

(b)

Share-based compensation
The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation plan. The value of the employee services received in exchange for
the grant of options is recognised as an expense with a corresponding increase in the share option reserve over the vesting period. The
total amount to be recognised over the vesting period is determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted on the date
of the grant. Non-market vesting conditions are included in the estimation of the number of shares under options that are expected to
become exercisable on the vesting date. At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates of the number of shares under
options that are expected to become exercisable on the vesting date and recognises the impact of the revision of the estimates in
profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve over the remaining vesting period. When the options are
exercised, the proceeds received (net of transaction costs) and the related balance previously recognised in the share option reserve
are credited to share capital account, when new ordinary shares are issued, or to the “treasury shares” account, when treasury shares
are re-issued to the employees.
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2.22

INCOME TAXES
Current income tax for current and prior periods is recognised at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using
the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.
Deferred income tax is recognised for all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the financial statements except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction.
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
A deferred tax liability is recognised on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
A deferred tax assets is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits against will be available against which the
temporary differences and tax losses can be utilised.
Deferred income tax is measured:
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2.23

(i)

at the tax rates that are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability
is settled, based on the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the balance sheet date;
and

(ii)

based on the tax consequence that will follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the balance sheet date,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Current and deferred income taxes are recognised as income or
expense in profit or loss, except to the extent that the tax arises from a business combination or a transaction which is recognised
directly in equity. Deferred tax arising from a business combination is adjusted against goodwill on acquisition.

CURRENCY TRANSLATION
(a)

Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each entity in the Group are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“functional currency”). The financial statements are presented in United States dollars,
which is the functional currency of the Company.

(b)

Transactions and balances
Transactions in a currency other than the functional currency (“foreign currency”) are translated into the functional currency using
the exchange rates at the date of the transactions. Currency translation differences resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the closing rates at the balance
sheet date are recognised in profit or loss. However, in the consolidated financial statements, currency translation differences arising
from borrowings in foreign currencies and other currency instruments designated and qualifying as net investment hedges and net
investment in foreign operations, are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the currency translation reserve.
When a foreign operation is disposed of or any borrowings forming part of the net investment of the foreign operation are repaid, a
proportionate share of the accumulated translation differences is reclassified to profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss on disposal.
Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings are presented in the income statement within “finance cost”. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses impacting profit or loss are presented in the income statement within “other losses – net”.
Non-monetary items measured at fair values in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
values are determined.
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2.23

CURRENCY TRANSLATION (Cont'd)
(c)

Translation of Group entities’ financial statements
The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:
(i)

Assets and liabilities are translated at the closing exchange rates at the reporting date;

(ii)

Income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates (unless the average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions); and

(iii)

All resulting currency translation differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the currency
translation reserve.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of foreign operations are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operations and translated at the closing rates at the reporting date.

2.24

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, bank overdrafts, and other short-term
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.25

SHARE CAPITAL AND TREASURY SHARES
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of new ordinary shares are deducted against the
share capital account. When any entity within the Group purchases the Company’s ordinary shares (“treasury shares”), the consideration paid
including any directly attributable incremental cost is presented as a component within equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders,
until they are cancelled, sold or reissued.

When treasury shares are subsequently sold or reissued pursuant to an employee share option scheme, the cost of treasury shares is reversed
from the treasury share account and the realised gain or loss on sale or reissue, net of any directly attributable incremental transaction costs
and related income tax, is recognised in the capital reserve.

2.26

SEGMENT REPORTING
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the executive committee whose members are
responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments.
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When treasury shares are subsequently cancelled, the cost of treasury shares are deducted against the share capital account if the shares
are purchased out of capital of the Company, or against the retained profits of the Company if the shares are purchased out of earnings of the
Company.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, ASSUMPTIONS AND JUDGEMENTS
Estimates, assumptions and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Construction contracts
The Group uses the percentage-of-completion method to account for its contract revenue. The stage of completion is measured by reference
to the contract costs incurred to date compared to the estimated total costs for the contract.
Significant assumptions are required to estimate the total contract costs and the recoverable variation works that affect the stage of completion
and the contract revenue respectively. In making these estimates, management has relied on past experience and the work of specialists.
If the revenue on uncompleted contracts at the balance sheet date increases/ decreases by 10% from management’s estimates, the Group’s
revenue will increase/decrease by US$52,098,000 and US$67,582,000 respectively.
If the contract costs of uncompleted contracts to be incurred increase/decrease by 10% from management’s estimates, the Group’s profit will
decrease/increase by US$42,000,000 and US$52,000,000 respectively.
Impairment of investment in associates and joint ventures
The Group assesses whether at each reporting date there is objective evidence that investment in associates and joint ventures are impaired.
In considering whether the associates and joint ventures are impaired, the Group has made its assessment based on estimates. It involves the
consideration of the performance of the associates and joint ventures and the market conditions in which the associates and joint ventures
operate in. This affects the Group’s share of net assets of the associates and joint ventures. Management has evaluated the recoverability of
the investments based on such estimates and is confident that no allowance for impairment is necessary.
If the performance of the associates and joint ventures and/or market conditions were to deteriorate which will affect the Group’s share of
net assets of the associates and joint ventures, impairment may be required. The carrying amounts of the investment in associates and joint
ventures at the end of the reporting period are disclosed in Notes 13 and 14 respectively.
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Impairment of loans and receivables
Management reviews its loans and receivables for objective evidence of impairment at least quarterly. Significant financial difficulties of the
debtor, the probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy, and default or significant delay in payments are considered objective evidence
that a receivable is impaired. In determining this, management makes judgement as to whether there is observable data indicating that there
has been a significant change in the payment ability of the debtor, or whether there have been significant changes with adverse effect in the
technological, market, economic or legal environment in which the debtor operates in.
Where there is objective evidence of impairment, management makes judgements as to whether an impairment loss should be recorded
as an expense. In determining this, management uses estimates based on historical loss experience for assets with similar credit risk
characteristics. The methodology and assumptions used for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly
to reduce any differences between the estimated loss and actual loss experience.
If the net present values of estimated cash flows increase/decrease by 10% from management’s estimates for all past due loans and
receivables, the Group’s allowance for impairment will decrease/increase by US$8,732,000.
Share-based compensation
The Group’s equity-settled, share-based compensation plan is significant and the amount of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of options recognised as an expense forms a significant component of total expenses charged to profit or loss. At each balance
sheet date, the Group reviews and revises its estimates of the number of shares under options that are expected to become exercisable on the
vesting date and recognises the impact of the revision of the estimates in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to the share option
reserve over the remaining vesting period.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, ASSUMPTIONS AND JUDGEMENTS (Cont'd)
Share-based compensation (Cont'd)
If the actual number of shares under options that are expected to become exercisable on the vesting date differs by 10% from management’s
estimates, total profit will be approximately US$400,000 higher or lower.
Uncertain Tax Position
The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. In determining the Group's income tax liabilities, management is required
to assess whether the Group's operations create permanent establishments, and the resulting appropriate tax rates to be applied, in certain
jurisdictions. In addition, management is required to estimate the amount of capital allowance and the deductibility of certain expenses at each
tax jurisdictions. Management believes that the Group's tax positions as at balance sheet date is sustainable.

4

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Group

Cash at bank
Fixed deposits
Cash on hand
Cash and bank balances
Pledged cash placed with banks
Cash and cash equivalents

Company

2011
US$’000

2010
US$’000

2011
US$’000

2010
US$’000

103,249
13,161
48
116,458
(13,070)
103,388

121,794
15,986
67
137,847
(13,939)
123,908

8,476
–
–
8,476
–
8,476

20,085
–
–
20,085
–
20,085

Cash amounting to US$13,070,000 (2010: US$13,939,000) is pledged by the group as collateral for bankers’ guarantee.

TRADE RECEIVABLES
Group
2011
US$’000

2010
US$’000

Trade receivables
Allowance for impairment of receivables (Note 35 (b)(ii))

141,885
(9,779)
132,106

110,319
(10,506)
99,813

Construction contracts: Due from customers (Note 6)

118,958

142,154

- Amount due from associates
- Amount due from joint ventures

18,908
6,688
276,660

2
9,456
251,425

S W IB E R H OL D ING S L IMIT ED A N N UA L R EP ORT 2011

5

86

N O T E S T O F I N A N C I A L S TAT E M E N T S
Year ended 31 December 2011

6

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS
Group
2011
US$’000

2010
US$’000

555,576
(436,618)
118,958

234,259
(92,105)
142,154

Presented as:
Due from customers on construction contracts (Note 5)

118,958

142,154

Advances received on construction contracts (Note 17)

9,050

–

Aggregate costs incurred and profits recognised (less losses recognised)
to date on uncompleted construction contracts
Less: Progress billings

7

INVENTORIES
Group

Pipelines
Consumables and spares
Work-in-progress

2011
US$’000

2010
US$’000

26,026
8,437
57,233
91,696

10,933
9,291
–
20,224

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense and included in “cost of sales” amounts to US$60,740,000 (2010: US$10,663,000).

8

OTHER ASSETS AND RECEIVABLES
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Group

Deposits
Prepayments
Capitalised vessel costs
Lease receivables
Amount due from third parties
Amount due from associates
Amount due from joint ventures
Amount due from subsidiaries
Less: Non-current portion

Note 1

Note 2

Company

2011
US$’000

2010
US$’000

2011
US$’000

2010
US$’000

1,516
10,516
49,762
2,562
60,354
19,330
57,600
–
201,640
(82,808)
118,832

2,443
17,979
39,188
3,256
93,060
12,457
11,104
–
179,487
(75,666)
103,821

13
85
–
–
22,247
14,150
–
743,926
780,421
(16,305)
764,116

612
195
–
–
49,277
7,457
–
394,733
452,274
(17,594)
434,680

Non-trade balances due from associates, joint ventures and subsidiaries as at balance sheet date are unsecured, interest free and repayable
on demand.
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OTHER ASSETS AND RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)
Note 1
Lease receivables
The Group leases equipment to non-related parties under finance leases and is expected to terminate in 2012.
Group
2011
US$’000
Gross receivable
Less: Unearned finance income
Net investment in finance leases

2010
US$’000

3,068
(506)
2,562

3,613
(357)
3,256

Note 2
Non-current portion of the Group’s other assets and receivables mainly relates to:
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

Capitalised vessel costs amount of US$41,974,000 (2010 : US$36,876,000) which is amortised over the lease term of the underlying
vessels;
Advances to third parties of US$19,475,000 (2010 : US$16,196,000) which bears fixed interest rate at 3.5% (2010 : 3.5%) per annum
and will be repayable within eight to ten years;
An amount due from an associate US$5,000,000 (2010 : US$5,000,000) which bears fixed interest rate at 3.5% (2010 : 3.5%) per
annum and will be repayable within eight to ten years, and
An amount due from third parties of US$16,305,000 (2010 : US$17,594,000) which interest rate repriced in every 3 months interval
and will be repayable within eight to ten years. This amount also makes up the Company’s non-current portion of other receivables as
at balance sheet date.

The fair values of non-current trade and other receivables are computed based on cash flows discounted at market borrowing rates of 2.9%
(2010: 3.5%). The fair values are as follows:

Advances to third parties (Note b)
Amount due from an associate (Note c)
Amount due from third parties (Note d)

9

2010
US$’000

16,473
4,333
16,305

15,395
4,068
14,348

ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
Group

Properties

2011
US$’000

2010
US$’000

–

1,334

In 2010, the management resolved to dispose properties which were initially accounted for under properties, plant and equipment. This
disposal was completed in 2011.
Gain on disposal of assets held for sale of US$830,000 (2010: US$26,576,000) was recognised in “SOCS” segment (Note 38).
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2011
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Constructionin-progress Vessels
US$’000
US$’000

Cranes and Leasehold Transportation
Drydocking machineries property
equipment
US$’000
US$’000
US$’000
US$’000

Motor
vehicles
US$’000

Furniture
and
equipment
US$’000

Total
US$’000

Group
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Cost:
At 1 January
2010
Additions
Acquisition of
subsidiary
Disposals
Disposal of
subsidiaries
Written off
Transfer
Exchange
differences
Reclassified
as held
for sale
At 31
December
2010
Additions
Disposals
Disposal of
subsidiary
Written off
Transfer
Exchange
differences
At 31
December
2011

72,112
83,627

133,542
17,518

5,628
17

7,023
1,168

7,037
2,652

151
–

1,806
455

28,073
24,626

255,372
130,063

–
(9,041)

–
(22,796)

–
(4,422)

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
(7)

122
(795)

122
(37,061)

–
–
(1,385)

(3,032)
–
7,500

–
–
–

–
–
–

–
–
–

(154)
–
–

(31)
–
–

(265)
(48)
(6,115)

(3,482)
(48)
–

–

240

–

57

538

3

5

631

1,474

–

–

–

–

(1,381)

–

–

–

(1,381)

145,313
76,085
(725)

132,972
179,967
(20,443)

1,223
1,499
(528)

8,248
144
–

8,846
31,084
(1,205)

–
–
–

2,228
237
(331)

46,229
8,537
(190)

345,059
297,553
(23,422)

–
(30)
(11,752)

(21,650)
–
5,445

–
–
–

–
–
–

–
–
–

–
–
–

–
–
–

(9)
(75)
6,307

(21,659)
(105)
–

(62)

(5)

–

(37)

(71)

–

(1)

(510)

(686)

208,829

276,286

2,194

8,355

38,654

–

2,133

60,289

596,740
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)

Constructionin-progress Vessels
US$’000
US$’000

Cranes and Leasehold Transportation
Drydocking machineries property
equipment
US$’000
US$’000
US$’000
US$’000

Motor
vehicles
US$’000

Furniture
and
equipment
US$’000

Total
US$’000

Group
Accumulated
depreciation:
At 1 January
2010
Depreciation
Disposals
Disposal of
subsidiaries
Written off
Exchange
differences
Reclassified
as held
for sale
At 31
December
2010
Depreciation
Disposals
Disposal of
subsidiaries
Written off
Exchange
differences
At 31
December
2011
Carrying
amount:
At 31
December
2011
At 31
December
2010

–
–
–

10,866
7,145
(7,456)

2,519
1,003
(2,396)

311
260
–

637
125
–

108
6
–

481
207
(1)

8,557
5,734
(284)

23,479
14,480
(10,137)

–
–

(205)
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

(116)
–

(10)
–

(189)
(33)

(520)
(33)

–

64

–

55

476

2

3

344

944

–

–

–

–

(47)

–

–

–

(47)

–
–
–

10,414
11,540
(3,760)

1,126
375
(184)

626
424
–

1,191
1,336
(37)

–
–
–

680
220
(106)

14,129
6,906
(60)

28,166
20,801
(4,147)

–
–

(575)
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
(74)

(575)
(74)

–

(4)

–

(21)

(64)

–

–

(78)

(167)

–

17,615

1,317

1,029

2,426

–

794

20,823

44,004

208,829

258,671

877

7,326

36,228

–

1,339

39,466

552,736

145,313

122,558

97

7,622

7,655

–

1,548

32,100

316,893
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)

Motor
vehicles
US$’000

Furniture
and
equipment
US$’000

Total
US$’000

Cost:
At 1 January 2010
Additions
Disposals
At 31 December 2010
Additions
At 31 December 2011

428
183
–
611
–
611

2,428
258
(3)
2,683
86
2,769

2,856
441
(3)
3,294
86
3,380

Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 January 2010
Depreciation
At 31 December 2010
Depreciation
At 31 December 2011

156
55
211
64
275

1,336
762
2,098
424
2,522

1,492
817
2,309
488
2,797

Carrying amount:
At 31 December 2011

336

247

583

At 31 December 2010

400

585

985

Company

During the financial year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment with an aggregate cost of US$297,553,000 (2010: US$130,063,000)
of which US$1,871,000 (2010: US$3,330,000) and US$123,750,000 (2010: Nil) were financed by finance leases and proceeds receivable from
redeemable preference shares respectively.
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The carrying amounts of the Group’s and Company’s property, plant and equipment at balance sheet date includes an amount of US$16,570,000
(2010: US$6,957,000) and US$442,000 (2010: US$614,000) respectively in respect of assets held under finance leases (Note 22).
The Group has pledged certain vessels, furniture and equipment with carrying amounts of approximately US$201,520,000 (2010: US$136,673,000)
on bank borrowings granted to the Group.
The Group’s and Company’s property, plant and equipment include capitalised borrowing costs of US$9,838,000 (2010: Nil) and Nil (2010: Nil)
respectively.
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GOODWILL
Group

Cost

2011
US$’000

2010
US$’000

309

309
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GOODWILL (Cont'd)
Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at acquisition, to the cash generating units (“CGUs”) that are expected to benefit
from that business combination.
The group tests goodwill annually for impairment or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be impaired.
The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined based on value in use. The key assumptions for the value in use calculations are those
regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expected changes to selling prices and direct costs during the period. Management estimates
discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The
growth rates are based on industry growth forecasts. Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based on past practices and expectations
of future changes in the market.
Cash flow projections used in the value-in-use calculations were based on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period were extrapolated using an estimated growth rate of 5% (2010: 5%) per annum. The growth
rate did not exceed the long-term average growth rate in which the CGU operates. The rate used to discount the forecast cash flows is 10%
(2010: 10%) per annum.
There is no impairment charge recognised for the financial years ended 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010.

SUBSIDIARIES
Company

Quoted equity shares, at cost
Unquoted equity shares, at cost

2011
US$’000

2010
US$’000

121,009
128,619
249,628

121,009
128,953
249,962

Details of the company’s subsidiaries as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

Country of
incorporation
and operation

Swiber Offshore Construction Pte Ltd

Singapore

100

100

Offshore marine engineering

Swiber Offshore Marine Pte Ltd

Singapore

100

100

Vessel owning and chartering

Newcruz International Pte Ltd

Singapore

100

100

Investment holding and provision of corporate
service

Kreuz Holdings Limited (1) (a)

Singapore

63.2

63.2

Investment holding

Equatoriale International Pte Ltd

Singapore

100

100

Investment holding

Swiber Offshore (India) Private Limited (b)

India

–

100

Operator and charterer of vessels

51

Offshore marine engineering and vessel
chartering

Swiber Rahaman Sdn Bhd

(2)

Brunei

Proportion of
ownership interest and
voting power held
2011
2010
%
%

51

Principal activity
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SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Name of subsidiary

Country of
incorporation
and operation

Proportion of
ownership interest and
voting power held
2011
2010
%
%

Swiber Corporate Services Pte Ltd

Singapore

100

100

Provision of corporate services

Swiber International Pte Ltd

Singapore

100

100

Investment holding

Swiber PJW 3000 Pte Ltd

Singapore

100

100

Investment holding

Swiber PJW 4000 Pte Ltd (3)

Singapore

100

100

Investment holding

Holmen Heavylift Offshore Pte Ltd (4)

Singapore

100

–

Investment holding

Resolute Offshore Pte Ltd (c)

Singapore

100

–

Vessel owning and chartering

Swiber Engineering Ltd (5)

Malaysia

100

100

Offshore marine engineering and
vessel chartering

Swiber Marine Pte Ltd

Singapore

100

100

Investment holding

Swiber Maritime Limited (3)

Republic of
Seychelles

100

100

Holding the Seychelles-flagged vessel on trust
for Swiber Offshore Marine Pte Ltd

Kreuz Engineering Limited (3)

Malaysia

100

100

Offshore marine engineering and vessel
chartering

Newcruz Shipbuilding & Engineering
Pte Ltd

Singapore

100

100

Building of ships, tankers and other
ocean-going vessels

Newcruz Offshore Marine Pte Ltd

Singapore

100

100

Vessel owning and chartering

Kreuz Offshore Contractors Limited (3)

Malaysia

100

60

Project and engineering management services

Equatoriale Pte Ltd

Singapore

100

100

Deep water drilling

Equatoriale Services Pte Ltd

Singapore

100

100

Provision of drilling services

Equatoriale Offshore Pte Ltd (3)

Singapore

100

100

Provision of drilling services

Kreuz Subsea Pte Ltd (1)

Singapore

100

100

Subsea services

Kreuz Subsea Marine Pte Ltd (1)

Singapore

100

100

Vessel owning and chartering

KSS Engineering Ltd

Malaysia

100

100

Subsea services

Brunei

100

100

Subsea services

90

Provision of services and materials for use in
oilfield development

Principal activity
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Held by subsidiaries

(3)

Kreuz Subsea (B) Sdn Bhd (6)
Swiber-Equatorial Oil Field Services
(Uganda) Limited (3)

Uganda

90

IN T H E BI G L E A G UE

93

N O T E S T O F I N A N C I A L S TAT E M E N T S
Year ended 31 December 2011

SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Name of subsidiary

Country of
incorporation
and operation

Proportion of
ownership interest and
voting power held
2011
2010
%
%

Principal activity

Equatoriale Resources (Mauritius) Limited (7) Mauritius

100

100

Investment holding

Newcruz Offshore (Australia) Pty Ltd (3)

Australia

100

100

Offshore marine support services

Swiber Offshore Middle East FZE (8)

United Arab
Emirates

100

100

Offshore marine support services

Swiber Marine (B) Sdn Bhd (2)

Brunei

100

100

Offshore marine engineering, vessel chartering
and crew management services

PAPE Engineering Pte Ltd

Singapore

80

80

Offshore marine engineering

Newcruz Engineering Ltd (3)

Malaysia

100

100

Building of vessels, offshore marine engineering
and vessels chartering

–

100

Vessel owning and chartering

Vallianz Marine Pte Ltd (b)
(formerly known as Bentley Marine Pte Ltd) Singapore
PJW 4000 LLC (3)

Marshall Islands

100

100

Vessel owning and chartering

Holmen Pacific Pte Ltd (c)

Singapore

100

–

Vessel owning and chartering

Holmen Atlantic Pte Ltd (c)

Singapore

100

–

Vessel owning and chartering

Holmen Arctic Pte Ltd (4)

Singapore

100

–

Vessel owning and chartering

All the subsidiaries were audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Singapore unless otherwise indicated as follows:
(1)

Audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, Singapore.

(2)

Audited by Sylvester Leong & Co, Brunei.

(3)

Not required to be audited by law in its country of incorporation and not material to the group’s results and financial position.

(4)

Newly incorporated in 2011 and not material to the group’s results and financial position.

(5)

Audited by Ernst & Young, Malaysia.

(6)

Audited by Deloitte & Touche, Brunei.

(7)

Audited by Kemp Chatteris Deloitte, Mauritius.

(8)

Audited by Deloitte & Touche (M.E.), United Arab Emirates.

Notes
(a)

Listed on Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited – Catalist.

(b)

Reclassified to associates during the year (Note 13 and 37).

(c)

Incorporated during the year.
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ASSOCIATES
Group
2011
US$’000

Company
2010
US$’000

Equity investment as at cost
Beginning of financial year
Addition during the year
Reclassified from subsidiaries (Note 37)
Share of profits
Currency translation differences
Dividend received
End of financial year

57,190
51,085
109
10,639
70
(8,646)
110,447

2011
US$’000

2010
US$’000

33,428

7,173

17,879
35,278
4,264
4,469
(50)
(4,650)
57,190

Details of the group’s associates at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Name of associate

Country of
incorporation
and operation

Vallianz Holdings Limited (1)(a)

Singapore

28.9

28.9

PT Swiber Berjaya (2)

Indonesia

49

49

Vessel owning and chartering

PT Rajawali Swiber Cakrawala (2)
(previously known as PT Swiber Offshore)

Indonesia

49

49

Offshore marine engineering

49

–

Operator and charterer of vessels

49

49

Vessel owning and chartering

Offshore Engineering Resources Pte Ltd (5) Singapore

25

25

HR and engineering consultancy services

PT Kreuz Berjaya (6)

Indonesia

49

49

Offshore marine engineering

PJW 3000 LLC (7)

Marshall Islands

33.3

33.3

Vallianz Marine Pte Ltd
(formerly known as Bentley Marine
Pte Ltd) (1)(b)

Singapore

49

–

Vessel owning and chartering

Resolute Pte Ltd (1)(c)

Singapore

49

–

Investment holding

Swiber Offshore (India) Private Limited (3)(b) India

Proportion of
ownership interest and
voting power held
2011
2010
%
%

Principal activity

Investment holding

Held by subsidiaries
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Victorious LLC (4)

Marshall Islands

Vessel owning, operating and chartering
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ASSOCIATES (Cont'd)

Name of associate

Country of
incorporation
and operation

SWP Engineering Pte Ltd (6)

Singapore

Atlantis Navigation AS (8)

Norway

Proportion of
ownership interest and
voting power held
2011
2010
%
%

Principal activity

49

49

Engineering services

49.3

–

Vessel chartering

(1)

Audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, Singapore.

(2)

Audited by Ernst & Young, Indonesia.

(3)

Audited by Devesh K Shah & Co, India.

(4)

Audited by Ernst & Young, New York.

(5)

Audited by LTC LLP, Singapore.

(6)

Not required to be audited by law in its country of incorporation and not material to the group’s results and financial position.

(7)

Audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Singapore.

(8)

Audited by Deloitte AS, Norway.

Notes
(a)

Listed on Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited – Catalist.

(b)

Reclassified from subsidiaries during the year (Note 12 and 37).

(c)

Incorporated during the year.

Summarised financial information of associated companies, not adjusted for the proportion of ownership interest held by the Group,
is as follows:

Assets
Liabilities
Revenue
Net profit for the year

14

2010
US$’000

660,360
(418,189)
133,181
28,377

271,219
(131,584)
28,794
10,676

JOINT VENTURES
Group

Beginning of financial year
Addition during the year
Share of losses
Currency translation differences
Dividend received
Disposal during the year
End of financial year

2011
US$’000

2010
US$’000

18,504
10,024
(8,150)
(140)
–
–
20,238

32,480
5,111
(657)
503
(1,161)
(17,772)
18,504
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JOINT VENTURES (Cont'd)
Details of the group’s joint ventures as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Name of joint venture

Country of
incorporation
and operation

Proportion of
ownership interest and
voting power held
2011
2010
%
%

Principal activity

Held by subsidiaries
Swiwar Offshore Pte Limited (1)

Singapore

50

50

Vessel owning and chartering

Rawabi Swiber Offshore Marine Pte Ltd (1)

Singapore

50

50

Vessel owning and chartering

Rawabi Swiber Offshore Services Co. Ltd (2) Saudi Arabia

50

50

Offshore marine engineering

British Virgin
Rawabi Swiber Offshore Services Co. Ltd (3) (a) Islands

50

–

Offshore marine engineering and vessel
chartering

Alam Swiber DLB 1 (L) Inc (4)

Malaysia

50

50

Operate and manage vessel

Alam Swiber Offshore (M) Sdn Bhd (4)

Malaysia

50

50

Engineering and technical support services

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)

Audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Singapore.
Audited by Deloitte & Touche, Bakr Abulkhair & Co, Saudi Arabia.
Not required to be audited by law in its country of incorporation and not material to the group’s results and financial position.
Audited by Ernst & Young, Malaysia.

Note
(a) Incorporated during the year.

Summarised financial information in respect of the group’s joint ventures is set out below:
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Group
2011
US$’000

2010
US$’000

19,978
250,798
270,776

23,021
172,762
195,783

181,420
48,880
230,300

72,156
86,619
158,775

Net assets

40,476

37,008

Revenue
Expenses
Loss for the year
Tax expense
Loss after tax

27,347
(43,666)
(16,319)
–
(16,319)

19,631
(20,369)
(738)
(586)
(1,324)

(8,150)

(657)

Assets
- Current assets
- Non-current assets
Liabilities
- Current liabilities
- Non-current liabilities

Group’s share of joint ventures’ loss for the year
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Group
Fair value
Contract
notional
amount
US$'000

Asset
US$'000

286,505

Company
Fair value
Liability
US$'000

Contract
notional
amount
US$'000

Asset
US$'000

Liability
US$'000

–

3,855

286,505

–

3,855

5,700
29,167

–
–

5
48

–
–

–
–

–
–

72,046

5,783

–

72,046

5,783

–

5,700

–

38

–

–

–

2011
Non-current
Derivative held for hedging:
Cash-flow hedges
Cross currency interest rate swap contracts
Non-hedging instruments:
Interest rate swaps
Currency forwards

Derivative held for hedging:
Cash-flow hedges
Cross currency interest rate swap contracts
Non-hedging instruments:
Interest rate swaps

16

(a)

Cross currency interest rate swaps
The group utilises cross currency interest rate swap contracts to hedge variable interest payments and eventual settlement on bonds
that will mature between October 2012 to July 2014. Fair value gains and losses on the cross currency interest rate swaps recognised
in the other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss over the period of the borrowings.

(b)

Currency forwards
Currency forwards are transacted to hedge highly probable forecast transactions denominated in foreign currency expected to occur
at various dates within four months from the balance sheet date. The currency forwards have maturity dates that coincide within
the expected occurrence of these transactions. Gains and losses on currency forwards not designated as hedge instruments are
recognised in profit or loss.

DEFERRED INCOME TAX
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current income tax assets against current
income tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The amounts, determined after appropriate
offsetting, are shown on the balance sheet as follows:
Group

Deferred income tax assets
Deferred income tax liabilities

Company

2011
US$’000

2010
US$’000

2011
US$’000

2010
US$’000

–

1,414

–

–

9,005

3,208

19

72
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DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Cont'd)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses and capital allowances carried forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax
benefits through future taxable profits is probable. The Group has unrecognised tax losses of US$35,675,000 (2010: Nil) and capital allowances
of US$22,000 (2010: Nil) at the balance sheet date which can be carried forward and used to offset against future taxable income subject to
meeting certain statutory requirements by those companies with unrecognised tax losses and capital allowances in their respective countries
of incorporation.
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities (prior to offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction) is as follows:
Group
Deferred income tax liabilities
2011
Accelerated tax
depreciation
US$’000
Beginning of financial year
Charged to profit or loss
End of financial year

4,218
13,706
17,924

2010
Accelerated tax
depreciation
US$’000
3,563
655
4,218

Group
Deferred income tax assets
2011

Beginning of financial year
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss
End of financial year

Provisions
US$’000

Tax losses
US$’000

Others
US$’000

Total
US$’000

(107)
58
(49)

(2,317)
(6,553)
(8,870)

–
–
–

(2,424)
(6,495)
(8,919)

–
–
(107)
(107)

–
–
(2,317)
(2,317)

(26)
38
(12)
–

(26)
38
(2,436)
(2,424)
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2010
Beginning of financial year
Disposal of subsidiary
Credited to profit or loss
End of financial year
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DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Cont'd)
Company
Deferred income tax liabilities

Beginning of financial year
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss
End of financial year

17

2011
Accelerated tax
depreciation
US$’000

2010
Accelerated tax
depreciation
US$’000

72
(53)
19

–
72
72

TRADE PAYABLES
Group

Third parties
Advances received on construction contracts (Note 6)
Deposits received from customers
Amount owing to an associate
Amount owing to joint ventures

2010
US$’000

143,443
9,050
2,118
82
89
154,782

66,966
–
2,752
–
1,680
71,398

OTHER PAYABLES
Group

Accruals
Other payables
Amount due to a joint venture
Amount due to associates
Amount due to subsidiaries

Company

2011
US$’000

2010
US$’000

2011
US$’000

2010
US$’000

66,496
24,060
273
7,277
–
98,106

51,836
27,200
295
54
–
79,385

11,933
5,227
–
2,501
442,519
462,180

10,019
6,823
–
–
215,599
232,441

Non-trade balances due to associates, joint ventures and subsidiaries as at balance sheet date are unsecured, interest free and repayable on
demand.
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BANK LOANS
Group

Current
Non-current

2011
US$’000

2010
US$’000

105,757
76,625
182,382

83,018
48,195
131,213

The exposure of the borrowings of the Group to interest rate changes and the contractual repricing dates at the balance sheet are as follows:
Group

Less than 1 year
1 - 5 years
More than 5 years

2011
US$’000

2010
US$’000

163,092
6,090
13,200
182,382

109,919
21,294
–
131,213

Fair value of non-current bank loans
Group

Bank loans

2011
US$’000

2010
US$’000

75,107

47,729

The fair values above are determined from the cash flow analyses, discounted at market borrowing rates of an equivalent instrument at the
balance sheet date which the directors expect to be available to the Group as follows:
Group

Bank loans

2011

2010

2.91%

2.60%

S W IB E R H OL D ING S L IMIT ED A N N UA L R EP ORT 2011

The bank loans are secured by:
(i)

First legal mortgage over certain vessels, furniture and office equipment,

(ii)

Assignment of all marine insurances in respect of the vessels mentioned above, and

(iii)

Assignment of earnings/charter proceeds in respect of the vessels mentioned above.

At 31 December 2011, the group has available US$22,800,000 (2010 : Nil) of undrawn borrowing facilities in respect of which all conditions
precedent had been met.
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BONDS
Group and Company
2011
2010
US$’000
US$’000
Current portion:
Notes due in 1st year
Fixed rate
Floating rate
Total current portion
Non-current portion:
Notes due in 2nd year
Fixed rate
Notes due in 3rd year
Fixed rate
Total non-current portion

128,445
–
128,445

38,209
38,209
76,418

60,620

84,337

90,710
151,330

61,912
146,249

At the end of the balance sheet date, the Company has four series of notes maturing in August and October 2012, October 2013 and July 2014
respectively, amounting to S$370,000,000 (equivalent to US$284,641,000).
Simultaneously, cross currency interest rate swap contracts were established in relation to the issued bonds creating an effective cash flow
hedge against the foreign currency and interest rate movement on the notes issued. The interest rate swap contracts exchanges floating rate
interest in Singapore Dollars to fixed rate interest in United States Dollars.

CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES
Group and Company
2011
2010
US$’000
US$’000
Nominal value of convertible loan notes issued
Fair value through profit or loss

100,000
2,570
102,570

100,000
13,813
113,813

The convertible loan notes were issued on 16 October 2009. The notes are convertible into ordinary shares of the Company at any time after
40 days from the issue of the notes and their settlement date at the option of the holder. On issue, the loan notes were convertible at S$1.14
per share. The convertible bonds may be converted at the option of bondholders at any time from 26 November 2009 to 6 October 2014, at
an initial conversion price of S$1.14, into fully paid-up ordinary shares of the Company at the fixed exchange rate of US$1.00 = S$1.44. The
conversion price will be reset on each interest payment date based on the average market price, defined as the volume weighted average
price of shares for up to 20 consecutive trading days immediately preceding the relevant reset date. On 16 April 2011, the conversion price
had been reset downwards to S$0.864 per share.
If the notes are not converted, they will be redeemed on 15 October 2012 at their nominal value. Interest of 5% will be paid annually until
settlement date.
The fair value of the notes are based on quoted market price of the notes as at the end of the respective reporting period.
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FINANCE LEASES

Minimum lease payments
2011
2010
US$’000
US$’000

Present value of minimum
lease payments
2011
2010
US$’000
US$’000

Group
Amounts payable under finance leases:
Within one year
In the second to fifth years inclusive
After fifth year
Total
Less: Future finance charges
Present value of lease obligations

4,876
8,411
–
13,287
(1,063)
12,224

2,118
3,612
168
5,898
(592)
5,306

Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 months
(shown under current liabilities)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months

4,384
7,840
–
12,224

1,899
3,283
124
5,306

(4,384)
7,840

(1,899)
3,407

184
225
–
409

181
401
12
594

(184)
225

(181)
413

Company
Amounts payable under finance leases:
Within one year
In the second to fifth years inclusive
After fifth year
Total
Less: Future finance charges
Present value of lease obligations

208
290
–
498
(89)
409

210
480
24
714
(120)
594
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Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 months
(shown under current liabilities)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months

The Group and Company’s obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessors’ title to the lease assets.
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SHARE CAPITAL
Group and Company
2011
2010
2011
Number of ordinary shares
US$’000
Issued and paid up:

508,350,000

508,350,000

158,006

Fully paid ordinary shares, which have no par value, carry one vote per share and carry a right to dividends.

2010
US$’000
158,006
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TREASURY SHARES
Group and Company
2011
2010
2011
Number of ordinary shares
US$’000
At beginning and end of the year

2,995,000

2,995,000

2010
US$’000

2,507

2,507

The Company acquired 2,995,000 of its own shares through purchases on the Singapore Exchange. The shares has been deducted from the
shareholders’ equity and held as “treasury shares”.

OTHER RESERVES
Hedging Reserve
The hedging reserve represents hedging gains and losses recognised on the effective potion of cash flow hedges. The cumulative deferred
gain or loss on the hedge recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in hedging reserves is reclassified to profit or loss
when the hedged transaction impacts the profit or loss, or is included as a basis adjustment to the non-financial hedged item, consistent with
the applicable accounting policy.
Movement:
Group

Beginning of financial year
Fair value losses
Reclassification to profit and loss
– Finance costs (Note 28)
– Other operating expenses
End of financial year

Company

2011
US$’000

2010
US$’000

2011
US$’000

2010
US$’000

(1,704)
(2,467)

1,644
(2,334)

(1,704)
(2,467)

1,705
(2,395)

1,576
604
(1,991)

3,091
(4,105)
(1,704)

1,576
604
(1,991)

3,091
(4,105)
(1,704)

Translation Reserve
Exchange differences relating to the translation from the functional currencies of the Group’s subsidiaries into United States Dollars are brought
to account by recognising those exchange differences in other comprehensive income and accumulating them in a separate component of
equity under the header of foreign currency translation reserves. Gains and losses on hedging instruments that are designated as hedges of
net investments in foreign operations are also recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in a separate component of equity
under the header of foreign currency translation reserves.
Movement:
Group

Company

2011
US$’000

2010
US$’000

2011
US$’000

2010
US$’000

Beginning of financial year
Reclassification on disposal of subsidiaries
Net currency translation differences on financial statements of
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associated companies
Less : Non-controlling interests

508
(2)

493
(1,695)

–
–

337
–

33
(1)
32

3,754
(2,044)
1,710

–
–
–

(337)
–
(337)

End of financial year

538

508

–

–
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25

OTHER RESERVES (Cont'd)
Equity Reserve
Movement:
Group
2011
US$’000

2010
US$’000

Beginning of financial year
Less : Non-controlling interests
Reclassification on dilution of a subsidiary
Less : Non-controlling interests

(8,206)
–
–
–
–

–
(162)
15,306
(23,350)
(8,044)

End of financial year

(8,206)

(8,206)

Employees' Share Option Reserve
(a)

Swiber Employee Share Option Scheme ("Scheme")
Share options were granted to directors of the Group under the Scheme, which became operative on 29 September 2006.
The terms of the exercise of options are set out in the Directors’ Report under the caption “Swiber Employee Share Option Scheme”
On 26 January 2011, options to subscribe for 15,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company at an exercise price of S$0.97 per ordinary
shares were granted pursuant to the Scheme. The Options have a one year vesting period and are exercisable from 26 January 2012
and expire on 25 January 2016.
The fair value of options granted on 26 January 2011, determined using the Black Scholes Model, was US$3,261,000. The significant
inputs into the model were the share price of S$0.965 at the grant date, the exercise price of S$0.97, standard deviation of expected
share price returns of 53%, the option life shown above and the annual risk-free interest rate of 1.54%. The volatility measured as the
standard deviation of expected share price returns was estimated based on statistical analysis of share prices over the last two years.

(b)

Swiber Performance Share Plan ("Plan”)
Share awards were granted to directors of the Group under the Plan, which became operative on 29 September 2006.
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The terms of the share awards are set out in the Directors’ Report under the caption “Swiber Performance Share Plan”
On 26 January 2011, 3,095,000 ordinary shares of the Company were granted pursuant to the Plan. These share awards have a
3-year vesting period commencing from the date of the grant. The fair value of these share awards was determined based on the
share price of S$0.965 at the grant date.
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OTHER RESERVES (Cont'd)
Movement:
Group and Company
2011
2010
US$’000
US$’000
Beginning of financial year
Share options
Share awards
End of financial year (Note 36)

26

–
3,261
748
4,009

–
–
–
–

REVENUE
Group

Revenue from engineering contracts
Charter hire income
Diving services
Others

2010
US$’000

499,526
52,870
91,566
10,525
654,487

372,089
72,978
18,068
2,608
465,743

OTHER OPERATING INCOME
Group

Net gain on disposal of joint venture and subsidiaries
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment, net
Gain on disposal of assets held for sale
Interest income
Sale of scrap metal
Fair value gain on financial liabilities designated as fair value through profit or loss
Realised gain on interest rate swap
Claim received
Others

2011
US$’000

2010
US$’000

788
1,007
830
2,197
352
11,243
2,566
13,634
3,096
35,713

1,865
5,177
26,576
1,856
329
–
3,590
458
879
40,730
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FINANCE COSTS
Group

Interest expense on:
Bank loans
Bills payable
Finance leases
Bonds
Cash flow hedges, reclassified from hedging reserve (Note 25)
Less: Interest capitalised

2011
US$’000

2010
US$’000

15,463
4,515
485
10,232
30,695
1,576
32,271
(9,838)
22,433

3,204
3,392
163
10,852
17,611
3,091
20,702
–
20,702

Borrowing costs on general financing were capitalised at a rate of 6% (2010: Nil).

29

INCOME TAXES
(a) Income tax expense
Group
2011
US$’000

2010
US$’000

Current income tax
Deferred income tax

20,230
7,211
27,441

7,409
(1,781)
5,628

(Over)/under provision in prior financial years

(214)
27,227

1,130
6,758
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Tax expense attributable to profit is made up of:

The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the Singapore standard rate of income tax
as follows:
Group

Profit before tax
Share of profits of associates and joint ventures (Note 13, 14)

2011
US$’000

2010
US$’000

69,405
2,489
71,894

46,154
3,812
49,966
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INCOME TAXES (Cont'd)
Group

Tax calculated at tax rate of 17% (2010: 17%)
Group relief
Deferred tax benefits not recognised
Utilisation of deferred tax previously not recognised
Income not subject to tax
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating
in other jurisdictions
Others

2011
US$’000

2010
US$’000

12,222
–
6,078
–
(11,070)
5,791

8,494
(25)
–
(9,334)
(9,622)
17,710

14,839
(419)
27,441

(1,543)
(52)
5,628

(b) The tax credit relating to each component of other comprehensive income is as follows:

Fair value losses and reclassification
adjustments on cash flow hedges
Currency translation differences on
translation of foreign operations
Other comprehensive income

2011
Tax credit
US$’000

After tax
US$’000

Before tax
US$’000

2010
Tax credit
US$’000

After tax
US$’000

(346)

59

(287)

(4,034)

686

(3,348)

30
(316)

–
59

30
(257)

1,627
(2,407)

–
686

1,627
(1,721)

EXPENSES BY NATURE

Group

Purchases of inventories
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Directors’ fees
Employee compensation expense (Note 31)
Allowance for impairment of receivables
Bad debts written off
Fair value loss on financial liabilities designated as fair value through profit or loss
Rental of equipment
Net foreign exchange losses
Non audit fees:
Auditors of the company

2011
US$’000

2010
US$’000

75,023
20,801
564
37,097
–
31
–
12,438
–

34,544
14,480
460
33,302
10,090
48
9,313
9,695
17,091

22

240
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EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION EXPENSE
Group

Salaries, bonus and other benefits
Employer’s contribution to defined contribution plans including Central Provident Fund
Staff welfare
Share based compensation expense

32

2011
US$’000

2010
US$’000

30,540
1,213
1,335
4,009
37,097

29,282
1,178
2,842
–
33,302

EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a)

Basic earnings per share
Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the Group’s net profit attributable to shareholders of the Company for the year by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the financial year as follows:
Group

Net profit attributable to owners of the Company (US$’000)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (’000)
Basic earnings per share (in US cents)
(b)

2011

2010

32,067
505,355
6.34

37,269
505,355
7.37

Diluted earnings per share
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, profit attributable to equity holders of the Company and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
Convertible bonds are assumed to have been converted into ordinary shares at issuance and the net profit is adjusted to eliminate the
interest expense and fair value gains less tax effect.
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Diluted earnings per share attributable to equity holders of the Company is calculated as follows:
Group
2011

2010

Net profit attributable to owners of the Company (US$’000)
Interest expense on convertible bonds, net of tax (US$’000)
Fair value gains on convertible bonds designated as fair value to profit or loss (US$'000)
Net profit used to determine diluted earnings per share (US$’000)

32,067
4,150
(11,243)
24,974

37,269
–
–
37,269

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (’000)
Adjustment for convertible bonds (’000)

505,355
166,667
672,022

505,355
–
505,355

3.72

7.37

Diluted earnings per share (in US cents)

Share options and awards were not included in the computation of diluted earnings of share because they were anti-dilutive.
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Group

Commitments to contracts for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment

34

2011
US$’000

2010
US$’000

209,599

166,085

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS – WHERE THE GROUP IS A LESSEE
The Group leases land, apartments, equipment and vessels from non-related parties under non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The
leases have varying terms, escalation clauses, and renewal rights.
The future minimum lease payables under non-cancellable operating leases contracted for at the balance sheet date but not recognised as
liabilities are as follows:
Group

Not later than one year
Between one and five years
Later than five years

2010
US$’000

140,155
394,625
246,254
781,035

99,392
385,773
335,909
821,074

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Financial risk factors
The Group’s activities expose it to market risk (including currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall
risk management strategy seeks to minimise any adverse effects from the unpredictability of financial markets on the Group’s financial
performance. The Group uses financial instruments such as cross currency interest rate swaps, currency forwards and foreign currency
borrowings to hedge certain financial risk exposures.
The Board of Directors is responsible for setting the objectives and underlying principles of financial risk management for the Group. Financial
risk management is carried out by a central treasury department (“Group Treasury”) in accordance with the policies set by the Board of
Directors.
(a)

Market risk
(i)

Currency risk
The Group operates in Asia with dominant operations in Singapore, Malaysia, Brunei and India. Entities in the Group regularly
transact in currencies other than their respective functional currencies (“foreign currencies”).
Currency risk arises within entities in the Group when transactions are denominated in foreign currencies such as the Singapore
Dollar (“SGD”), United States Dollar (“USD”), Malaysian Ringgit (“MYR”), Euro (“EUR”), Brunei Dollar (“BND”) and Indian Rupee
(“INR”). Group Treasury manages the overall currency exposure mainly by entering into currency forwards with banks.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
(a)

Market risk (Cont'd)
(i)

Currency risk (Cont'd)
The Group’s currency exposure based on the information provided to key management is as follows:
Group
2011

Singapore
Dollars
US$’000

United
States
Dollars
US$’000

Malaysian
Ringgit
US$’000

Euro
US$’000

Brunei
Dollars
US$’000

Others
US$’000

Total
US$’000

6,541
2,881
1,172
10,594

105,507
153,519
136,640
395,666

21
78
–
99

97
528
1
626

1,423
276
25
1,724

2,869
420
2,008
5,297

116,458
157,702
139,846
414,006

344,369
18,428
3,164
365,961

232,506
112,622
18,993
364,121

–
178
3
181

–
1,957
150
2,107

76
774
169
1,019

–
12,273
9,131
21,404

576,951
146,232
31,610
754,793

Net financial (liabilities)/assets
Effect of currency forwards
Currency exposure

(355,367)
365,943
10,576

31,545
–
31,545

(82)
–
(82)

(1,481)
–
(1,481)

705
–
705

(16,107)
–
(16,107)

(340,787)
365,943
25,156

Currency exposure of financial
(liabilities)/assets net of those
denominated in the respective
entities’ functional currencies

(58,119)

–

(82)

(1,481)

675

–

(59,007)

Singapore
Dollars
US$’000

United
States
Dollars
US$’000

Malaysian
Ringgit
US$’000

Euro
US$’000

Brunei
Dollars
US$’000

Others
US$’000

Total
US$’000

24,891
2,051
3,121
30,063

109,687
107,220
110,573
327,480

–
–
21
21

–
–
5,942
5,942

2,221
–
1,008
3,229

1,048
–
1,655
2,703

137,847
109,271
122,320
369,438

254,772
11,892
6,300
272,964

218,227
50,836
16,341
285,404

–
628
21
649

–
931
110
1,041

–
3,055
411
3,466

–
1,304
4,366
5,670

472,999
68,646
27,549
569,194

Net financial (liabilities)/assets
Effect of currency forwards
Currency exposure

(242,901)
222,667
(20,234)

42,076
–
42,076

(628)
–
(628)

4,901
–
4,901

(237)
–
(237)

(2,967)
–
(2,967)

(199,756)
222,667
22,911

Currency exposure of financial
(liabilities)/assets net of those
denominated in the respective
entities’ functional currencies

(12,498)

–

(628)

4,901

(308)

–

(8,533)

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables
Other receivables
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Trade payables
Other payables
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2010

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables
Other receivables
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Trade payables
Other payables

IN T H E BI G L E A G UE

111

N O T E S T O F I N A N C I A L S TAT E M E N T S
Year ended 31 December 2011

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
(a)

Market risk (Cont'd)
(i)

Currency risk (Cont'd)
The Company’s currency exposure based on the information provided to key management is as follows:
Company
2011
Singapore
Dollars
US$’000
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Other receivables
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Other payables

Net financial (liabilities)/assets
Effect of currency forwards
Currency exposure
Currency exposure of financial liabilities net of those
denominated in the respective entities’ functional
currencies

2010

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Other receivables
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Other payables

Net financial (liabilities)/assets
Effect of currency forwards
Currency exposure
Currency exposure of financial assets net of those
denominated in the respective entities’ functional
currencies

United States
Dollars
US$’000

Others
US$’000

Total
US$’000

798
229
1,027

7,678
780,094
787,772

–
–
–

8,476
780,323
788,799

280,184
818
281,002

102,570
449,414
551,984

–
9
9

382,754
450,241
832,995

(279,975)
279,776
(199)

235,788
–
235,788

(9)
–
(9)

(44,196)
279,776
235,580

(199)

–

–

(199)

Singapore
Dollars
US$’000

United States
Dollars
US$’000

Total
US$’000

18,373
2,054
20,427

1,712
450,025
451,737

20,085
452,079
472,164

223,261
1,027
224,288

113,813
221,395
335,208

337,074
222,422
559,496

(203,861)
222,667
18,806

116,529
–
116,529

(87,332)
222,667
135,335

19,400

–

19,400
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
(a)

Market risk (Cont'd)
(i)

Currency risk (Cont'd)
If the SGD, MYR, EUR and BND change against the USD by 8% (2010: 7%), 5% (2010: 10%), 6% (2010: 5%) and 8% (2010: 7%)
respectively with all other variables including tax rate being held constant, the effects arising from the net financial liability/
asset position will be as follows:
Increase/(Decrease)
2011

S W IB E R H OL D ING S L IMIT ED A N N UA L R EP ORT 2011

Profit after
tax
US$’000

Profit after
tax
US$’000

Other
comprehensive
income
US$’000

Group
SGD against USD
- Strengthened
- Weakened

(4,845)
4,845

–
–

(1,250)
1,250

–
–

MYR against USD
- Strengthened
- Weakened

(4)
4

–
–

(63)
63

–
–

EUR against USD
- Strengthened
- Weakened

(88)
88

–
–

490
(490)

–
–

BND against USD
- Strengthened
- Weakened

56
(56)

–
–

(30)
30

–
–

(17)
17

–
–

1,940
(1,940)

–
–

Company
SGD against USD
- Strengthened
- Weakened
					
(ii)

2010

Other
comprehensive
income
US$’000

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks
Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due
to changes in market interest rates. The Group has no significant variable interest-bearing assets, except for amounts due
from third parties as disclosed in Note 8.
The Group’s and Company’s exposure to cash flow interest rate risks arises mainly from non-current variable rate borrowings.
The Group manages these cash flow interest rate risks using floating-to-fixed interest rate swaps.
The Group’s and Company’s borrowings at variable rates on which effective hedges have not been entered into are denominated
mainly in SGD. If the SGD interest rates had increased/decreased by 0.50% (2010: 0.50%) with all other variables including
tax rate being held constant, the profit after tax would have been lower/higher by US$577,000 (2010: US$725,000) as a
result of higher/lower interest expense on these borrowings. Other comprehensive income would have been higher/lower
by US$558,000 (2010: US$508,000) mainly as a result of higher fair value of interest rate swaps designated as cash flow
hedges of variable rate borrowings.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
(b)

Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group. The
major classes of financial assets of the Group and of the Company are bank balances and trade receivables. For trade receivables, the
Group adopts the policy of dealing only with customers of appropriate credit history to mitigate credit risk. For other financial assets,
the Group adopts the policy of dealing only with high credit quality counterparties.
As the Group and the Company do not hold any collateral, the maximum exposure to credit risk for each class of financial instruments
is the carrying amount of that class of financial instruments presented on the balance sheet, except as follows:
Company
2011
US$’000

2010
US$’000

128,572

117,511

Corporate guarantees provided to banks on borrowings

The trade receivables of the Group comprise 5 debtors (2010: 5 debtors) that represented approximately 50% of trade receivables.
The credit risk for trade receivables based on the information provided to key management is as follows:
By geographical areas
Group

East Asia
South East Asia
Middle East
South Asia
Others

(i)

2011
US$’000

2010
US$’000

32,578
102,098
12,231
9,477
1,318
157,702

19,912
68,446
597
19,535
781
109,271

Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired
Bank deposits that are neither past due nor impaired are mainly deposits with banks with high credit-ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies. Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are substantially companies
with a good collection track record with the Group.

(ii)

Financial assets that are past due and/or impaired
There is no other class of financial assets that is past due and/or impaired except for trade receivables.
The age analysis of trade receivables past due but not impaired is as follows:
Group

Past due by:
Less than one month
One to two months
More than two months

2011
US$’000

2010
US$’000

24,439
11,237
52,156
87,832

5,375
137
21,062
26,574
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
(b)

Credit risk (Cont'd)
(ii)

Financial assets that are past due and/or impaired (Cont'd)
The carrying amount of trade receivables individually determined to be impaired and the movement in the related allowance
for impairment is as follows:

Group
2011
US$’000

(c)

2010
US$’000

Past due more than two months
Less : Allowance for impairment of receivables (Note 5)

15,330
(9,779)
5,551

16,989
(10,506)
6,483

As at beginning of the year
Amount written back during the year
Disposal of subsidiaries
Allowance (utilised)/made during the year
Translation difference

10,506
(115)
(626)
14
9,779

4,480
(343)
(3,768)
10,090
47
10,506

Liquidity risk

S W IB E R H OL D ING S L IMIT ED A N N UA L R EP ORT 2011

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash, the availability of funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities (Note 19). At the balance sheet date, assets held by the Group and Company for managing liquidity risk
included cash and fixed deposits as disclosed in Note 4.
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s and Company’s liquidity reserve (comprises undrawn borrowing facility (Note
19) and cash and cash equivalents (Note 4)) on the basis of expected cash flow. This is generally carried out at local level in the
operating companies of the Group in accordance with the practice and limits set by the Group. These limits vary by location to take
into account the liquidity of the market in which the entity operates. In addition, the Group’s liquidity management policy involves
projecting cash flows in major currencies and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these, monitoring liquidity ratios
and maintaining debt financing plans.
The table below analyses non-derivative financial liabilities of the Group and the Company into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period from the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying amounts as the impact of discounting is not
significant.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
(c)

Liquidity risk (Cont'd)
Less than
1 year
US$’000

Between 1 and
5 years
US$’000

Over 5 years
US$’000

Group
At 31 December 2011
Trade and other payables
Borrowings

(177,839)
(262,393)

–
(342,846)

–
(26,638)

At 31 December 2010
Trade and other payables
Borrowings

(96,086)
(173,000)

–
(321,167)

–
(838)

Less than
1 year
US$’000

Between 1 and
5 years
US$’000

Over 5 years
US$’000

Company
At 31 December 2011
Trade and other payables
Borrowings
Financial guarantee contracts

(450,240)
(151,967)
(73,390)

–
(277,693)
(31,911)

–
–
(23,271)

At 31 December 2010
Trade and other payables
Borrowings
Financial guarantee contracts

(450,247)
(87,062)
(52,110)

–
(271,068)
(65,401)

–
(24)
–
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
(c)

Liquidity risk (Cont'd)
The table below analyses the derivative financial instruments of the Group and the Company for which contractual maturities are
essential for an understanding of the timing of the cash flows into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period from the
balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Less than
1 year
US$’000

Between 1 and 5
years
US$’000

14,156
(15,828)

11,309
(12,826)

Net-settled interest rate swaps
- Net cash inflows

–

228

Net-settled currency forwards
- Net cash outflows

–

(133)

9,151
(9,806)

9,723
(10,152)

–

228

Group
At 31 December 2011
Gross-settled cross currency interest rate swaps
- Receipts
- Payments

At 31 December 2010
Gross-settled cross currency interest rate swaps
- Receipts
- Payments
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Net-settled currency forwards
- Net cash inflows

Company
At 31 December 2011
Gross-settled cross currency interest rate swaps
- Receipts
- Payments
At 31 December 2010
Gross-settled cross currency interest rate swaps
- Receipts
- Payments

Less than
1 year
US$’000

Between 1 and 5
years
US$’000

14,156
(15,828)

11,309
(12,826)

9,151
(9,806)

9,723
(10,152)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
(d)

Capital risk
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain an
optimal capital structure so as to maximise shareholder value. In order to maintain or achieve an optimal capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividend payment, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, buy back issued shares, obtain new
borrowings or sell assets to reduce borrowings.
Management monitors capital based on a gearing ratio. The Group and the Company are also required by the banks to maintain a
gearing ratio of not exceeding 2.1 times (2010: 2.1 times). The Group’s and Company’s strategies, which were unchanged from 2010,
are to maintain gearing ratios below 2.1.
The gearing ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided by total equity.
Group

Total borrowings
Total equity
Gearing ratio

2011
US$’000

2010
US$’000

Company
2011
2010
US$’000
US$’000

576,951
523,592

472,999
356,272

382,754
223,585

337,074
160,730

1.1

1.3

1.7

2.1

The Group and the Company are in compliance with all externally imposed capital requirements for the financial years ended 31
December 2010 and 2011.
(e)

Fair value measurements
The following table presents assets and liabilities measured at fair value and classified by level of the following fair value measurement
hierarchy:
(a)

quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1);

(b)

inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) (Level 2); and

(c)

inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs) (Level 3).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
(e)

Fair value measurements (Cont'd)
Level 1
US$’000

Level 2
US$’000

Level 3
US$’000

Total
US$’000

–
102,570
102,570

3,908
–
3,908

–
–
–

3,908
102,570
106,478

–

5,783

–

5,783

–
113,813
113,813

38
–
38

–
–
–

38
113,813
113,851

–
102,570
102,570

3,855
–
3,855

–
–
–

3,855
102,570
106,425

–

5,783

–

5,783

113,813

–

–

113,813

Group
At 31 December 2011
Liability
Derivative financial instruments
Convertible loan notes
At 31 December 2010
Asset
Derivative financial instruments
Liability
Derivative financial instruments
Convertible loan notes
Company
At 31 December 2011
Liability
Derivative financial instruments
Convertible loan notes
At 31 December 2010
Asset
Derivative financial instruments
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Liability
Convertible loan notes

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. The quoted
market price used for financial liabilities held by the Group is the current bid price. These instruments are included in Level 1.
The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by dealer quotes provided by third party
financial institutions as at balance sheet date. These financial instruments are classified as Level 2.
(f)

Financial Instruments by category
The carrying amount of the different categories of financial instruments is as disclosed on the face of the balance sheet and in Note
15 and Note 21 to the financial statements, except for the followings:
Group

Loans and receivables
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

2011
US$’000

2010
US$’000

Company
2011
2010
US$’000
US$’000

414,006
652,223

366,995
455,381

782,436
730,424

801,408
445,683
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36

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the information disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the following transactions took place between the Group and
related parties at terms agreed between the parties:
2011
US$’000

2010
US$’000

44,845
6,951

3,645
55,483

65,918
7,735

20,076
7,165

Revenue from engineering contracts and charter line
- Associates
- Joint ventures
Purchase of services from
- Associates
- Joint ventures

Outstanding balances at 31 December 2011, arising from sale/purchase of goods and services, are unsecured and receivable/payable within
12 months from balance sheet date and are disclosed in Notes 5 and 17 respectively.
Key management personnel compensation
Key management personnel compensation is as follows:
Group

Short-term benefits
Post-employment benefits
Share based compensation expense (Note 25)

2011
US$’000

2010
US$’000

8,485
66
4,009
12,560

10,259
33
–
10,292

37

DIVESTMENT OF SUBSIDIARIES
a)

In 2011, the Company disposed 51% of its equity interest in its subsidiary, Vallianz Marine Pte Ltd (formerly known as Bentley Marine
Pte Ltd), to its associated company, Vallianz Holdings Limited. Subsequent to the disposal, Vallianz Marine Pte Ltd is no longer a
subsidiary but remains as an associate of the group.

b)

In 2011, the Company disposed 51% of its equity interest in its subsidiary, Swiber Offshore (India) Private Limited, to third parties.
Subsequent to the disposal, Swiber Offshore (India) Private Limited is no longer a subsidiary but remains as an associate of the group.
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Details on directors’ remuneration are disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report.
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DIVESTMENT OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
Details of the disposals were as follows:
Carrying amounts of assets and liabilities disposed of

2011
US$’000
Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Liabilities
Other payables
Provision for taxation
Borrowings

21,084
5,705
784
27,573
15,134
26
12,191
27,351

Net assets derecognised

222

Gain on disposal:
Cash consideration received
Net assets derecognised
Fair value of retained interest as associates
Translation differences reclassified on disposal of a subsidiary
Gain on disposal

899
(222)
109
2
788

The gain on disposal of the subsidiaries is charged to current year profit or loss in the income statement.
2011
US$’000
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Net cash inflow arising on disposal:
Cash consideration received
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of

899
(784)
115

In 2010, the Company:
a)

Disposed 50.5% of its equity interest in its subsidiary, PT Swiber Offshore (“PTSO”), to a third party. Subsequent to the disposal, PTSO
is no longer a subsidiary but remains as an associate of the group.

b)

Interest in PT Swiber Berjaya (“PTSB”) was diluted from 80% to 49% due to the allotment of 4,500 new ordinary shares in PTSB to another
existing shareholder of PTSB. Subsequent to the dilution, PTSB ceased to be a subsidiary and became an associate of the group.

c)

Disposed its entire equity interest in Swiber Marine (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd (“SMM”) to a third party.
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DIVESTMENT OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
Details of the disposals were as follows:
Carrying amounts of assets and liabilities disposed of
2010
US$’000
Current assets
Cash and bank balances
Trade and other receivables
Total current assets

3,703
55,495
59,198

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Deferred tax assets
Total non-current assets

2,962
38
3,000

Current liabilities
Bank loans
Trade and other payables
Current income tax liabilities
Total current liabilities

1,477
57,895
225
59,597

Net assets derecognised

2,601

Loss on disposal:
Cash consideration received
Net assets derecognised
Non-controlling interest derecognised
Fair value of retained interest as associates
Translation differences reclassified on disposal of subsidiaries
Loss on disposal

25
(2,601)
761
1,819
(47)
(43)

The loss on disposal of the subsidiaries is charged to profit or loss in the income statement.

2010
US$’000
Net cash outflow arising on disposal:
Cash consideration received
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of

25
(3,703)
(3,678)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION
Management has determined the operating segments based on the reports reviewed by the Executive Committee ("Exco") that are used to
make strategic decisions. The Exco comprises the Executive Chairman, Group Chief Executive Officer and Chief Executive Officers of each
business segments.
Reportable segments
The group’s reportable segments are as follows:
Swiber Offshore Construction Services (“SOCS”)
Newcruz Offshore Marine Services (“NOMS”)

–
–

Kreuz Offshore Subsea Services (“KOSS”)

–

Provision of a full suite of offshore construction services
Provision of offshore marine support services that are complementary to offshore
EPIC services
Provision of commercial saturation and air diving services

The Exco considers the business from both a geographic and business segments prospective. Geographically, management manages and
monitors the business in four geographic regions, South Asia, Southeast Asia, East Asia and Middle East. All geographic regions are engaged
in engineering, charter hire and diving services.

S W IB E R H OL D ING S L IMIT ED A N N UA L R EP ORT 2011

Other services included ship repair services, corporate and offshore development services, these are not included within the reportable
operating segments as they are not included in the reports provided to the Exco. The results of these operations are included in the
“Others” column.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)
Reportable segments (Cont'd)
This segmental information provided to the Exco for the reportable segments are as follows:
SOCS
US$’000

NOMS
US$’000

KOSS
US$’000

Others
US$’000

Eliminations
US$’000

Total
US$’000

499,526
83,747
583,273

52,870
298,037
350,907

91,566
62,234
153,800

10,525
14,580
25,105

–
(458,598)
(458,598)

654,487
–
654,487

97,183

(39,377)

37,787

(9,348)

–

86,245
3,104
(22,433)

2011
Revenue
External sales
Inter-segment sales
Total revenue
Results
Segment result
Unallocated income
Finance expenses
Share of profits of associates and
joint ventures
Profit before tax
Income tax expense
Profit for the year
Other information
Additions to property, plant and equipment
Unallocated additions to property, plant
and equipment

Depreciation
Unallocated depreciation
Assets
Segment assets
Unallocated assets
Consolidated total assets
Liabilities
Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities
Consolidated total liabilities

2,489
69,405
(27,227)
42,178

221,306

31,346

3,553

41,055

297,260
293
297,553

5,972

4,532

5,800

3,858

20,162
639
20,801

874,203

164,675

132,927

64,318

1,236,123
138,829
1,374,952

215,536

100,615

80,675

48,475

455,301
406,059
851,360
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)
Reportable segments (Cont'd)
SOCS
US$’000

NOMS
US$’000

KOSS
US$’000

Others
US$’000

Eliminations
US$’000

Total
US$’000

372,089
2,437
374,526

72,978
200,673
273,651

18,068
36,484
54,552

2,608
38,294
40,902

–
(277,888)
(277,888)

465,743
–
465,743

15,513

20,106

11,513

3,774

–

50,906
12,138
(20,702)

2010
Revenue
External sales
Inter-segment sales
Total revenue
Results
Segment result
Unallocated income
Finance expenses
Share of profits of associates and
joint ventures
Profit before tax
Income tax expense
Profit for the year
Other information
Additions to property, plant and equipment
Unallocated additions to property, plant
and equipment

Depreciation
Unallocated depreciation
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Assets
Segment assets
Unallocated assets
Consolidated total assets
Liabilities
Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities
Consolidated total liabilities

3,812
46,154
(6,758)
39,396

69,631

38,262

11,779

3,788

123,460
6,603
130,063

2,724

6,925

2,321

1,362

13,332
1,148
14,480

428,939

242,292

94,679

51,955

817,865
174,106
991,971

125,181

85,213

13,707

15,244

239,345
396,354
635,699

Sales between segments are carried out at arm’s length. The revenue from external parties reported to the Exco is measured in a manner
consistent with that in the consolidated Income Statement.
The Exco assesses the performance of the operating segments based on profits before tax. Finance expenses are not allocated to segments,
as this type of activity is driven by the Group Treasury, which manages the cash position of the Group.
The amounts provided to the Exco with respect to total assets and total liabilities are measured in a manner consistent with that of the financial
statements. Segment assets and liabilities include all operating assets and liabilities used by the segments.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)
Reportable segments (Cont'd)
Geographical information

Revenue (1)

Non-Current
Assets (2)

US$’000

US$’000

South Asia

387,469

–

South East Asia

2011
182,081

766,486

East Asia

59,931

–

Middle East

12,317

52

12,689

–

654,487

766,538

South Asia

143,725

268

South East Asia

276,942

475,353

34,860

–

553

138

Others

(3)

2010

East Asia
Middle East
Others

(3)

9,663

–

465,743

475,759

(1) Analysis of the group’s sales is by geographical location of customers, irrespective of the origin of the work/services.
(2) Analysis of the carrying amount of segment assets and additions to the property, plant and equipment analysed by the geographical area in which the assets
are located.
(3) Others comprise of operations in Europe, Southern Caribbean and New Zealand.

39

GUARANTEES
As at 31 December 2011, the Company has provided corporate guarantee of approximately US$128,572,000 (2010: US$117,511,000) on
borrowings taken by the Group's subsidiaries. Based on expectations at the balance sheet date, the Company considers that it is unlikely that
a claim will be made against the Company under the guarantees. However, this estimate is subject to change depending on the probability
of the counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is a function of the likelihood that the financial receivables held by the counterparty
which are guaranteed suffer credit losses.
The management is of a view that the fair value of the financial guarantees provided by the Company is not significant.
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Revenues of approximately US$358,700,000 (2010: US$115,826,000) are derived from a single external customer. These revenues are
attributable to the SOCS segment.
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41

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
1)

On 13 January 2012, the Company's wholly-owned subsidiary, Newcruz International Pte Ltd, incorporated a wholly-owned subsidiary,
Newcruz Offshore Services Pte Ltd with an initial paid up capital of US$10. The newly incorporated subsidiary will be prinicipally
engaged in owning and chartering of vessels.

2)

Pursuant to the Swiber Performance Share Plan, the Company re-issued 1,031,666 treasury shares on 26 January 2012 at nil
consideration. The cost of treasury shares re-issued amounted to approximately US$864,000.

3)

On 6 March 2012, Swiber Engineering Limited, wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, subscribed to 22,500 additional new shares
in its joint venture company, Alam Swiber DLB1 (L) Inc ("ASDLB") out of a total 250,000 shares offered by ASDLB. This reduces the
Company's interest in ASDLB from 50% to 49%. ASDLB remains as a joint venture company after the subscription of the additional
new shares.

4)

On 21 March 2012, the Company allotted and issued 101,071,000 new ordinary shares at an issue price of S$0.635 per share to
provide funds for the Group's operations. The newly issued shares rank pasi passu in all respects with the previously issued shares. As
a result of this share issue, the conversion price for the Company's US$100,000,000, 5 per cent convertible loan notes ("loan notes")
was adjusted to S$0.84 per share accordingly, pursuant to the terms of the loan notes.

NEW OR REVISED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
Below are the mandatory standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that have been published, and are relevant for the
Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012 or later periods and which the Group has not early adopted:
• Amendments to FRS 107 Disclosures - Transfers of Financial Assets (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011)
The management anticipates that the adoption of the above FRSs, INT FRSs and amendments to FRS in the future periods will not have a
material impact on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company in the period of their initial adoption.

42

AUTHORISATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT
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These financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors of Swiber Holdings Limited and
its subsidiaries on 26 March 2012.
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DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS
Size of Shareholdings
1 – 999
1,000 – 10,000
10,001 – 1,000,000
1,000,001 and above
TOTAL

No. of Shareholders
11
6,546
3,926
30
10,513

%
0.10
62.27
37.34
0.29
100.00

No. of Shares
4,047
40,264,472
156,409,666
309,708,481
506,386,666

%
0.00
7.95
30.89
61.16
100.00

No. oF Shares
58,866,697
53,712,605
44,922,453
18,000,000
16,159,000
12,274,000
11,743,136
10,302,000
8,376,000
8,000,000
7,983,000
7,254,000
7,000,000
5,863,740
4,979,376
4,349,000
4,037,917
3,000,000
2,785,000
2,472,000
292,079,924

%
11.62
10.61
8.87
3.55
3.19
2.42
2.32
2.03
1.65
1.58
1.58
1.43
1.38
1.16
0.98
0.86
0.80
0.59
0.55
0.49
57.66

No.
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20

Name
HSBC (SINGAPORE) NOMINEES PTE LTD
CITIBANK NOMINEES SINGAPORE PTE LTD
DBS NOMINEES PTE LTD
OVERSEA CHINESE BANK NOMINEES PTE LTD
HONG LEONG FINANCE NOMINEES PTE LTD
MAYBAN NOMINEES (SINGAPORE) PTE LTD
RAFFLES NOMINEES (PTE) LTD
OCBC SECURITIES PRIVATE LTD
UNITED OVERSEAS BANK NOMINEES (PTE) LTD
YEO CHUNG SUN
PHILLIP SECURITIES PTE LTD
UOB KAY HIAN PTE LTD
SWISSCO INTERNATIONAL PTE LTD
MERRILL LYNCH (SINGAPORE) PTE LTD
MAYBANK KIM ENG SECURITIES PTE LTD
HENDRIK EDDY PURNOMO
DB NOMINEES (S) PTE LTD
NITISH GUPTA
CIMB SECURITIES (SINGAPORE) PTE LTD
DBS VICKERS SECURITIES (SINGAPORE) PTE LTD
TOTAL
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TWENTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS
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Total no. of issued shares excluding treasury shares
Total no. and percentage of treasury shares
Class of shares
Voting rights

:
:
:
:

506,386,666
1,963,334 (0.39%)
Ordinary share
One vote per share

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
Substantial shareholders of the Company (as recorded in the Register of Substantial Shareholders) as at 8 March 2012:

Name
Pang Yoke Min

Direct Interest
No. of shares
%*
–

–

Indirect Interest
No. of shares
%*
54,745,000

10.811

Notes :
*

Computed based on 506,386,666 shares, being the total number of issued voting shares of the Company (excluding treasury shares).

1

Registered in the name of Citibank Nominees Singapore Pte Ltd.

FREE FLOAT

S W IB E R H OL D ING S L IMIT ED A N N UA L R EP ORT 2011

As at 8 March 2012, the percentage of shareholdings of the Company held in the hands of the public was approximately 76 per cent and therefore
Rule 723 of the Listing Manual is complied with.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

SWIBER HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)
(Company Registration No. 200414721N)
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of Swiber Holdings Limited (the “Company”) will be held at 12 International Business Park,
Swiber@lBP #03-02 Singapore 609920, on Wednesday, 18 April 2012, at 10:00am for the following purposes:

ORDINARY BUSINESS
1.

To receive and adopt the Directors’ Report and Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2011 together
with the Auditors’ Report thereon.
(Resolution 1)

2.

To re-elect the following directors of the Company (“Director”) retiring pursuant to Article 93 of the Articles of Association of the Company:
Mr Jean Pers
Mr Nitish Gupta
Mr Oon Thian Seng

(Resolution 2)
(Resolution 3)
(Resolution 4)

Mr Jean Pers will, upon re-election as a Director, remain as Executive Director of the Board.
Mr Nitish Gupta will, upon re-election as a Director, remain as Executive Director of the Board.
Mr Oon Thian Seng will, upon re-election as a Director, remain as the Chairman of the Nominating Committee and member of the Audit and
Remuneration Committees. He will be considered independent for the purposes of Rule 704(8) of the Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited.
3.

To approve the payment of Directors’ fee of US$310,000 for the financial year ending 31 December 2012 (2011: US$310,000). 		
(Resolution 5)

4.

To re-appoint Messrs PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the Company’s Auditors and to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration. 		
(Resolution 6)

5.

To transact any other ordinary business which may properly be transacted at an Annual General Meeting.

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions, with or without any modifications:
Authority to allot and issue shares up to fifty per cent. (50%) of issued capital
“THAT, pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 of Singapore (the "Companies Act") and Rule 806(2) of the Listing Manual
of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (the “Listing Manual”), authority be and is hereby given to the Directors to:
(a)

allot and issue shares in the Company (the “Shares”); and

(b)

issue convertible securities and any Shares pursuant to convertible securities

(whether by way of rights, bonus or otherwise) at any time and upon such terms and conditions and for such purposes and to such persons
as the Directors shall in their absolute discretion deem fit, provided that the aggregate number of Shares (including any Shares to be issued
pursuant to the convertible securities) to be issued pursuant to such authority shall not exceed fifty per cent. (50%) of the total number of
issued Shares excluding treasury shares of the Company for the time being and that the aggregate number of Shares to be issued other than
on a pro rata basis to the then existing shareholders of the Company (including any Shares to be issued pursuant to the convertible securities)
will not exceed twenty per cent. (20%) of the total number of issued shares excluding treasury shares of the Company for the time being.
Unless prior shareholder approval is required under the Listing Manual, an issue of treasury shares will not require further shareholders’
approval, and will not be included in the aforementioned limits. Unless revoked or varied by the Company in general meeting, such authority
shall continue in full force until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company or the date by which the next Annual General
Meeting is required by law to be held, whichever is earlier, except that the Directors shall be authorised to allot and issue new Shares pursuant
to the convertible securities notwithstanding that such authority has ceased.
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6.
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For the purposes of this Resolution and Rule 806(3) of the Listing Manual, the total number of issued Shares excluding treasury shares is
based on the total number of issued Shares excluding treasury shares of the Company at the time this Resolution is passed after adjusting for:

7.

(i)

new Shares arising from the conversion or exercise of convertible securities;

(ii)

new Shares arising from exercising share options or vesting of share awards outstanding or subsisting at the time of the passing of
this Resolution, provided the options or awards were granted in compliance with the rules of the Listing Manual; and

(iii)

any subsequent bonus issue, consolidation or subdivision of Shares.” [See Explanatory Note (i)]

(Resolution 7)

The Proposed Renewal of the Share Buyback Mandate
“THAT,
(1)

for the purposes of the Companies Act (as defined in Resolution 7) approval be and is hereby given generally and unconditionally for
the exercise by the Directors of all the powers of the Company to purchase or otherwise acquire Shares not exceeding in aggregate
the Maximum Limit (as hereafter defined), at such price(s) as may be determined by the Directors from time to time up to the
Maximum Price (as hereafter defined), whether by way of:
(a)

market purchase(s) (“Market Purchase”), transacted on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”)
through the ready market, through one or more duly licensed stock brokers appointed by the Company for the purpose; and/
or

(b)

off-market purchase(s) (“Off-Market Purchase”) effected pursuant to any equal access scheme(s) in accordance with
Section 76C of the Companies Act, as may be determined or formulated by the Directors as they consider fit, which scheme(s)
shall satisfy all conditions prescribed by the Companies Act;

and otherwise in accordance with all other laws and regulations and rules of the SGX-ST as may for the time being be applicable (the
“Share Buyback Mandate”);
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(2)

unless varied or revoked by the members of the Company in a general meeting, the authority conferred on the Directors pursuant to
the Share Buyback Mandate may be exercised by the Directors at any time and from time to time during the period commencing from
the date of the passing of this Resolution and expiring on:
(a)

the date on which the next annual general meeting of the Company (“AGM”) is held or required by law to be held;

(b)

the date on which the purchases or acquisitions of Shares by the Company pursuant to the Share Buyback Mandate are
carried out to the full extent mandated; or

(c)

the date on which the authority conferred by the Share Buyback Mandate is revoked or varied by the Shareholders in a
general meeting,

whichever is the earliest;
(3)

in this Resolution:
“Maximum Limit” means that number of issued Shares representing 10% of the total number of issued Shares as at the date of the
passing of this Resolution unless the Company has effected a reduction of the share capital of the Company in accordance with the
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, at any time during the Relevant Period, in which event the total number of issued Shares
shall be taken to be the total number of issued Shares as altered (excluding any treasury shares that may be held by the Company
from time to time);
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“Relevant Period” means the period commencing from the date on which the last AGM was held and expiring on the date the next
AGM is held or is required by law to be held, whichever is the earlier, after the date of the passing of this Resolution; and
“Maximum Price”, in relation to a Share to be purchased or acquired, means the purchase price (excluding brokerage, stamp duties,
commission, applicable goods and services tax and other related expenses) to be paid for a Share which shall not exceed:
(a)

in the case of a Market Purchase, 105% of the Average Closing Price (hereinafter defined); and

(b)

in the case of an Off-Market Purchase pursuant to an equal access scheme in accordance with Section 76C of the Companies
Act, 120% of the Average Closing Price, where:

“Average Closing Price” means the average of the closing market prices of a Share for the last five (5) Market Days (a “Market Day”
being a day on which the SGX-ST is open for trading in securities) on which transactions in the Shares are recorded on the SGX-ST
immediately preceding the date of the Market Purchase by the Company or, as the case may be, the date of the making of the offer
pursuant to the Off-Market Purchase, and deemed to be adjusted in accordance with the Listing Manual for any corporate action
which occurs after the relevant five (5) Market Days period; and
“date of the making of the offer” means the day on which the Company announces its intention to make an offer for an Off-Market
Purchase, stating therein the purchase price (which shall not be more than the Maximum Price for an Off-Market Purchase calculated
on the foregoing basis) for each Share and the relevant terms of the equal access scheme for effecting the Off-Market Purchase; and
(4)

8.

the Directors and/or any of them be and are hereby authorised to complete and do all such acts and things (including executing such
documents as may be required) as they and/or he may consider necessary, expedient, incidental or in the interests of the Company to
give effect to the transactions contemplated and/or authorised by this Resolution.” [See Explanatory Note (ii)]
(Resolution 8)

Authority to grant options and issue Shares under the Swiber Employee Share Option Scheme
“THAT pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act (as defined in Resolution 7) the Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised
to offer and grant options in accordance with the Swiber Employee Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”) and to issue such Shares as may
be required to be issued pursuant to the exercise of the options granted under the Scheme provided always that the aggregate number of
Shares to be issued pursuant to the Scheme, when added to the number of shares issued and issuable in respect of all options granted under
the Scheme, all awards granted under the Swiber Performance Share Plan and all shares, options or awards granted under any other share
option schemes or share plans of the Company, shall not exceed fifteen per cent. (15%) of the total number of issued Shares excluding treasury
shares of the Company from time to time.” [See Explanatory Note (iii)]
(Resolution 9)
Authority to allot and issue Shares under Swiber Performance Share Plan
“THAT pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act (as defined in Resolution 7) the Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to grant
awards in accordance with the provisions of the Swiber Performance Share Plan (the “Plan”) and to allot and issue from time to time such Shares
as may be required to be issued pursuant to the Plan provided always that the aggregate number of Shares to be issued pursuant to the Plan, when
added to the number of shares issued and issuable or existing shares delivered and deliverable in respect of all awards granted under the Plan, all
options granted under the Swiber Employee Share Option Scheme and all shares, options or awards granted under any other share scheme of the
Company, shall not exceed fifteen per cent. (15%) of the total number of issued Shares excluding treasury shares of the Company from time to time.”
[See Explanatory Note (iv)]
(Resolution 10)

By Order of the Board
Lee Bee Fong
Tan Ping Ping
Company Secretaries
Singapore, 3 April 2012
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Explanatory Notes:
(i)

The Ordinary Resolution 7 proposed in item 6 above, if passed, will empower the Directors from the date of the above Meeting until the date
of the next AGM, to allot and issue Shares and convertible securities in the Company. The aggregate number of Shares (including any Shares
issued pursuant to the convertible securities) which the Directors may allot and issue under this Resolution will not exceed fifty per cent. (50%)
of the total number of issued Shares excluding treasury shares (as defined in Resolution 7) of the Company. For issues of Shares other than on
a pro rata basis to all Shareholders, the aggregate number of Shares to be issued will not exceed twenty per cent. (20%) of the total number
of issued Shares excluding treasury shares (as defined in Resolution 7) of the Company. This authority will, unless previously revoked or varied
at a general meeting, expire at the next AGM of the Company or the date by which the next AGM of the Company is required by law to be held,
whichever is earlier. However, notwithstanding the cessation of this authority, the Directors are empowered to issue Shares pursuant to any
convertible securities issued under this authority.

(ii)

The Ordinary Resolution 8 proposed in item 7 above, if passed, renews the Share Buyback Mandate and will authorise the Directors from the
date of the above Meeting until the date of the next AGM, or the date by which the next AGM of the Company is required by law to be held or
the date on which such authority is revoked or varied by the Shareholders in a general meeting, whichever is the earliest, to purchase up to
10% of the total number of issued Shares in the capital of the Company. Please refer to the Letter to Shareholders dated 3 April 2012 appended
to the Annual Report for details.

(iii)

The Ordinary Resolution 9 proposed in item 8 above, if passed, will empower the Directors to grant options and to allot and issue Shares upon
the exercise of such options in accordance with the Swiber Employee Share Option Scheme.

(iv)

The Ordinary Resolution 10 proposed in item 9 above, if passed, will empower the Directors to grant awards and to allot and issue Shares in
accordance with the Swiber Performance Share Plan.
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Notes:
1.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint not more than two proxies to attend and vote instead of him. A proxy
need not be a member of the Company.

2.

If the appointor is a corporation, the proxy must be executed under seal or the hand of its duly authorised officer or attorney.

3.

The instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the registered office of the Company at 12 International Business Park, Swiber@IBP,
#04-01, Singapore 609920 not less than forty-eight hours (48) before the time for holding the AGM.
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PROXY FORM

SWIBER HOLDINGS LIMITED

IMPORTANT:
1. For investors who have used their CPF monies to buy Swiber Holdings
Limited shares, the Annual Report is forwarded to them at the request of
their CPF Approved Nominees and is sent FOR INFORMATION ONLY.

(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)
(Company Registration No. 200414721N)

2.

This Proxy Form is not valid for use by CPF Investors and shall be ineffective
for all intents and purposes if used or purported to be used by them.

I/We

(Name)
(Address)

of
being a member/members of Swiber Holdings Limited (the “Company”) hereby appoint:
Name

Address

NRIC/Passport
Number

Proportion of
Shareholdings (%)

Address

NRIC/Passport
Number

Proportion of
Shareholdings (%)

and/or (delete as appropriate)
Name

or failing him/her/them, the Chairman of the meeting as my/our proxy/proxies to attend and vote for me/us on my/our behalf and, if necessary,
to demand a poll, at the Annual General Meeting of the Company (the “Meeting”) to be held at 12 International Business Park, Swiber@IBP,
#03-02, Singapore 609920, on Wednesday, 18 April 2012, at 10:00 a.m. and at any adjournment thereof. I/We direct my/our proxy/proxies to
vote for or against the Resolutions to be proposed at the Meeting as indicated hereunder. If no specific direction as to voting is given, the proxy/
proxies will vote or abstain from voting at his/her/their discretion, as he/she/they will on any matter arising at the Meeting:
No.
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.

Resolutions Relating to:
Directors’ Report and Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2011
Re-election of Mr Jean Pers
Re-election of Mr Nitish Gupta
Re-election of Mr Oon Thian Seng
Approval of Directors’ fees of US$310,000 for the financial year ending 31 December 2012
Re-appointment of Messrs PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as Auditors
Authority to allot and issue shares
Proposed Renewal of the Share Buyback Mandate
Authority to grant options and issue shares under the Swiber Employee Share Option Scheme
Authority to allot and issue shares under the Swiber Performance Share Plan

Dated this

day of

IMPORTANT: PLEASE READ NOTES OVERLEAF

Against

2012.
Total Number of Shares
In CDP Register
In Register of Members

Signature(s) of Member(s)
or, Common Seal of Corporate Member

For

Number of Shares

NOTES
1.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint not more than two proxies to attend and vote in his stead.

2.

Where a member appoints more than one proxy, the appointments shall be invalid unless he specifies the proportion of his holding (expressed
as a percentage of the whole) to be represented by each proxy.

3.

A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

4.

A member should insert the total number of shares held. If the member has shares entered against his name in the Depository Register (as
defined in Section 130A of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 of Singapore), he should insert that number of shares. If the member has shares
registered in his name in the Register of Members of the Company, he should insert that number of shares. If the member has shares entered
against his name in the Depository Register and registered in his name in the Register of Members, he should insert the aggregate number of
shares. If no number is inserted, this form of proxy will be deemed to relate to all shares held by the member.

5.

The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be deposited at the Company's registered office at 12 International Business Park,
Swiber@IBP, #04-01, Singapore 609920, not less than 48 hours before the time set for the Meeting.

6.

The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly authorised in writing. Where the
instrument appointing a proxy or proxies is executed by a corporation, it must be executed either under its common seal or under the hand of
its attorney or a duly authorised officer.

7.

Where an instrument appointing a proxy is signed on behalf of the appointor by an attorney, the power of attorney or a duly certified copy
thereof must (failing previous registration with the Company) be lodged with the instrument of proxy, failing which the instrument may be
treated as invalid.

GENERAL:
The Company shall be entitled to reject a proxy form which is incomplete, improperly completed, illegible or where the true intentions of the appointor
are not ascertainable from the instructions of the appointor specified on the proxy form. In addition, in the case of shares entered in the Depository
Register, the Company may reject a proxy form if the member, being the appointor, is not shown to have shares entered against his name in the
Depository Register as at 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the Meeting, as certified by The Central Depository (Pte) Limited to the
Company.

